
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive 
Committee 
 
 
 
Thursday 2 December 
2010 
7.00 pm 
 
Committee Room 2 
Town Hall 
Redditch 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

Access to Information - Your Rights 
 

The Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 
1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend 
Local Authority meetings 
and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the 
Freedom of Information Act 
2000, has further broadened 
these rights, and limited 
exemptions under the 1985 
Act. 

Your main rights are set out 
below:- 

• Automatic right to attend 
all Council and 
Committee meetings 
unless the business 
would disclose 
confidential or “exempt” 
information. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
agenda and public reports 
at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
minutes of the Council 
and its Committees (or 
summaries of business  

 

undertaken in private) for 
up to six years following a 
meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
lists of background 
papers used in the 
preparation of public 
reports. 

• Access, upon request, to 
the background papers 
on which reports are 
based for a period of up 
to four years from the 
date of the meeting. 

• Access to a public 
register stating the names 
and addresses and 
electoral areas of all 
Councillors with details of 
the membership of all 
Committees etc. 

• A reasonable number of 
copies of agenda and 
reports relating to items to 
be considered in public 
must be made available 
to the public attending 
meetings of the Council 
and its Committees etc. 

• Access to a list specifying 
those powers which the 
Council has delegated to its 
Officers indicating also the 
titles of the Officers 
concerned. 

• Access to a summary of the 
rights of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council and 
its Committees etc. and to 
inspect and copy 
documents. 

• In addition, the public now 
has a right to be present 
when the Council 
determines “Key Decisions” 
unless the business would 
disclose confidential or 
“exempt” information. 

• Unless otherwise stated, all 
items of business before the 
Executive Committee are 
Key Decisions.  

• (Copies of Agenda Lists are 
published in advance of the 
meetings on the Council’s 
Website: 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to 

exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact  
Denise Sunman 

Committee Support Services  
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel: (01527) 64252 ext 3270  Fax: (01527) 65216 

e.mail: denise.sunman@redditchbc.gov.uk                Minicom: 595528 
 



Welcome to today’s meeting. 
Guidance for the Public 
 
 
Agenda Papers 

The Agenda List at the front 
of the Agenda summarises 
the issues to be discussed 
and is followed by the 
Officers’ full supporting 
Reports. 
 
Chair 

The Chair is responsible for 
the proper conduct of the 
meeting. Generally to one 
side of the Chair is the 
Committee Support Officer 
who gives advice on the 
proper conduct of the 
meeting and ensures that 
the debate and the 
decisions are properly 
recorded.  On the Chair’s 
other side are the relevant 
Council Officers.  The 
Councillors (“Members”) of 
the Committee occupy the 
remaining seats around the 
table. 
 
Running Order 

Items will normally be taken 
in the order printed but, in 
particular circumstances, the 
Chair may agree to vary the 
order. 
 
Refreshments : tea, coffee 
and water are normally 
available at meetings - 
please serve yourself. 
 

 
Decisions 

Decisions at the meeting will 
be taken by the Councillors 
who are the democratically 
elected representatives. 
They are advised by 
Officers who are paid 
professionals and do not 
have a vote. 
 
Members of the Public 

Members of the public may, 
by prior arrangement, speak 
at meetings of the Council or 
its Committees.  Specific 
procedures exist for Appeals 
Hearings or for meetings 
involving Licence or 
Planning Applications.  For 
further information on this 
point, please speak to the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Special Arrangements 

If you have any particular 
needs, please contact the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Infra-red devices for the 
hearing impaired are 
available on request at the 
meeting. Other facilities may 
require prior arrangement. 
 
Further Information 

If you require any further 
information, please contact 
the Committee Support 
Officer (see foot of page 
opposite). 

Fire/ Emergency  
instructions 
 
If the alarm is sounded, 
please leave the building 
by the nearest available 
exit – these are clearly 
indicated within all the 
Committee Rooms. 
 
If you discover a fire, 
inform a member of staff 
or operate the nearest 
alarm call point (wall 
mounted red rectangular 
box).  In the event of the 
fire alarm sounding, leave 
the building immediately 
following the fire exit 
signs.  Officers have been 
appointed with 
responsibility to ensure 
that all visitors are 
escorted from the 
building. 
 
Do Not stop to collect 
personal belongings. 
 
Do Not use lifts. 
 
Do Not re-enter the 
building until told to do 
so.  
 
The emergency 
Assembly Area is on 
Walter Stranz Square. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

Declaration of Interests: 
Guidance for Councillors 
 
 
DO I HAVE A “PERSONAL INTEREST” ? 
 
• Where the item relates or is likely to affect your  registered interests 

(what you have declared on the formal Register of Interests) 
OR 
 
• Where a decision in relation to the item might reasonably be regarded as affecting your 

own well-being or financial position, or that of your family, or your close associates more 
than most other people affected by the issue, 

 
you have a personal interest. 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare the existence, and nature, of your interest and stay 
 
• The declaration must relate to specific business being decided - 

a general scattergun approach is not needed 
 
• Exception - where interest arises only because of your membership of another public 

body, there is no need to declare unless you speak on the matter. 
 
• You can vote on the matter. 
 
 
IS IT A “PREJUDICIAL INTEREST” ? 
 
In general only if:- 
 
• It is a personal interest and 
 
• The item affects your financial position (or conveys other benefits), or the position of your 

family, close associates or bodies through which you have a registered interest (or 
relates to the exercise of regulatory functions in relation to these groups) 

 
 and 
 
• A member of public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably believe the 

interest was likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare and Withdraw 
 
BUT you may make representations to the meeting before withdrawing, if the public have similar 
rights (such as the right to speak at Planning Committee). 



 
 

 
 
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

 

 

Thursday, 2nd December, 2010 

7.00 pm 

Committee Room 2 Town Hall 

 

Agenda Membership: 

 Cllrs: Carole Gandy (Chair) 
Michael Braley (Vice-Chair) 
Juliet Brunner 
Greg Chance 
Brandon Clayton 
 

Malcolm Hall 
Gay Hopkins 
Jinny Pearce 
Debbie Taylor 
 

1. Apologies  To receive the apologies of any Member who is unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
  

2. Declarations of Interest  To invite Councillors to declare any interests they may have 
in items on the agenda. 
 
  

3. Leader's Announcements  1. To give notice of any items for future meetings or for 
the Forward Plan, including any scheduled for this 
meeting, but now carried forward or deleted; and 

 
2 any other relevant announcements. 
 
(Oral report) 
  

4. Minutes  

Chief Executive 

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Executive Committee held on the 10th November 2010. 
 
(Minutes to follow) 
 
  

5. Budget Update 2011/12 - 
Presentation  

J Pickering - Exec Director 
(Finance and Corporate 
Resources) 

To consider an update on the budget-setting process for the 
2011/12 financial year. 
 
(Oral Presentation) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

6. New Cemetery - Site and 
Funding  

(Pages 1 - 18)  

Head of Environmental 
Services 

To consider proposed locations for a new cemetery. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(Various Wards)  



 
 
Executive 
Committee  

 

 

Thursday, 2nd December, 2010 
 

7. Tenant Involvement 
Agreement  

(Pages 19 - 30)  

Head of Housing 

To ask Members approval to implement the new Tenant 
Involvement Agreement as part of the Tenant Involvement 
Strategy Action plan approved by Members in December 
2009. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(All Wards)  

8. Voluntary and 
Community Sector 
Grants Policy  

(Pages 31 - 56)  

Head of Community 
Services 

To consider and approve changes to the Grants Policy. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

9. Quarterly Budget 
Monitoring - Quarter 2 - 
July to September 2010  

(Pages 57 - 74)  

Head of Finance and  
Resources 

To provide Members with an overview of the budget, 
including the achievement of approved savings as at the end 
of Quarter 2, 2010/11. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

10. Quarterly Performance 
Monitoring - Quarter 2 - 
July to September 2010  

(Pages 75 - 92)  

Director of Policy, 
Performance and 
Partnerships 

To consider the quarterly performance report, showing 
indicators which have improved, declined or remained static 
when compared to the same period in the previous financial 
year. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

11. Quarterly Monitoring of 
the Benefits Service 
Improvement Plan - 
Quarter 2 - July to 
September 2010  

(Pages 93 - 108)  

Head of Finance and  
Resources 

To advise Members of actual performance during Quarter 2 
of the Improvement Plan. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  



 
 
Executive 
Committee  

 

 

Thursday, 2nd December, 2010 
 
 

12. Quarterly Monitoring of 
Formal Complaints and 
Compliments - Quarter 2 
- June to September 2010  

(Pages 109 - 126)  

Head of Customer Services 

To consider a report which provides a view on aspects of the 
Council’s Formal Complaints Procedure, the compliments 
recorded during the same period and the Ombudsman 
Annual Review. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

13. Disposal of Land – “Tear 
Drop” adj. A441 
Alvechurch Highway  

(Pages 127 - 136)  

Head of Finance and  
Resources 

To consider a report on the disposal of the ‘Teardrop’ site at 
Abbey Stadium. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(Abbey Ward)  

14. Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

(Pages 137 - 146)  

Chief Executive 

To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on the 27th October 2010. 
 
There are no recommendations to consider. 
 
  

15. Worcestershire 
Enhanced Two Tier 
Shared Service Joint 
Committee  

To consider the minutes and any recommendations arising 
from the most recent meeting of the Worcestershire 
Enhanced Two Tier Shared Service Joint Committee. 
 
(Minutes and/or recommendations to follow, if available) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

16. Minutes / Referrals - 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, Executive 
Panels etc.  

Chief Executive 

To receive and consider any outstanding minutes or referrals 
from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Executive 
Panels, etc. since the last meeting of the Executive 
Committee, other than as detailed in the items above. 
 
  

17. Advisory Panels - update 
report  

(Pages 147 - 150)  

Chief Executive 

To consider, for monitoring / management purposes, an 
update on the work of the Executive Committee’s Advisory 
Panels and similar bodies, which report via the Executive 
Committee. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
  



 
 
Executive 
Committee  

 

 

Thursday, 2nd December, 2010 
 
 

18. Action Monitoring  
(Pages 151 - 152)  

Chief Executive 

To consider an update on the actions arising from previous 
meetings of the Committee. 
 
 (Report attached) 

19. Exclusion of the Public  It may be necessary, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, to 
consider excluding the public from the meeting in relation to 
the following items of business on the grounds that exempt 
information is likely to be divulged. It may be necessary, 
therefore, to move the following resolution: 

“that, under S.100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, 
as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following matter(s) on 
the grounds that it/they involve(s) the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in the relevant 
paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) 
of the said Act, as amended.” 
 
Item 13 – Disposal of Land – “Tear Drop” adj. A441 
Alvechurch Highway 
  

20. Confidential Minutes / 
Referrals (if any)  

To consider confidential matters not dealt with earlier in the 
evening and not separately listed below (if any). 
 
  

 
 



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

NEW CEMETERY - SITE AND FUNDING 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Brandon Clayton, Portfolio 
Holder for Housing, Local Environment 
and Health 

Relevant Head of Service Guy Revans, Head of Environmental 
Services 

Key Decision / Non-Key Decision  
 
1.   SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

To identify a new site, on which a cemetery can be established.  To be 
owned and managed by Redditch Borough Council; and to agree funding for 
a feasibility study and the development of a timetable. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that  
 

1) a sum of £35,000 be allocated in the 2011/12 the capital 
programme for the pre-planning permission survey works and 
any preliminary civil works of the chosen site so that a report can 
be brought to a future meeting of the Executive Committee 
regarding future capital funding requirements; and 

 
 subject to which, to RESOLVE that 
 
2) the location of the new cemetery site at Brooklands Lane be 

approved by members; and  
 
3) expenditure of up to the sum agreed by the Council at 1) above be 

approved in accordance with Standing Order 41, for the purposes 
defined in the report. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Redditch Borough Council operates and manages three cemeteries 

Plymouth Road, Edgioake Lane and Abbey Cemetery and one closed 
church yard at Feckenham. 

 
3.2 Plymouth Road is closed to new burials, Edgioake Lane Cemetery has 

approximately 25 years burial provision available and Abbey now has 
approximately 4 years left.  These figures are only indicative based on 

Agenda Item 6Page 1



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

trends; however they can change for a number of reasons.  Some reasons 
include greater take up of exclusive right reservation, unsuitable ground 
conditions leading to plots being made unavailable and high death rates to 
name but a few. 

 
3.3 It is with this in mind that preliminary work has been carried out by Officers 

on sites located at Ipsley Church Lane, Brooklands Lane and Foxlydiate 
Woods Brockhill Lane. 

 
3.4 Two prime sites for the development had been identified and a legal 

appraisal commissioned to ensure there were no fundamental legally based 
issues which would eliminate them from further consideration.  As none 
were found, the various evaluations for both sites have been progressed.   
A third site will also be included although a legal appraisal has not been 
commissioned as this site has only recently been identified. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 Abbey Cemetery is quickly running out of burial space.  It is therefore a 

priority to look at sites within this area of the borough.  There is a need to 
identify new burial land as matter of increasing urgency.  With this forward 
planning the Authority should identify, in order of preference, a new site 
designing the chosen site as a cemetery which is a place of beauty and not 
a ‘blot on the landscape’. 

 
4.2 A badly selected and poorly laid out cemetery will be difficult to manage.  In 

the long term it will become expensive to administer and a constant source 
of concern for the Authority and for future managers.  We should therefore 
attempt to identify a site with the future in mind. 

 
4.3 Given the length of time, due to the exhaustive enquiries which need to take 

place on the Archaeological, Ecological, Environmental and Planning 
aspects of a new cemetery, Officers felt that this should now be progresses 
to ensure that the borough has a site for burials into the future.   

 
4.4 Site selection 

Land of gently rolling characteristics provides a good landscape effect and 
is suitable for burial grounds.  Flat land can be monotonous, even with the 
addition of planting, although maintenance is generally easier and grave 
excavations can normally be done without problems.   

 

Page 2



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

4.5 Steep contoured land should be avoided.  It is both expensive to layout and 
consequently to maintain.  Not only does it cause problems with excavations 
but can be a constant source of trouble in maintaining memorials.   

 
4.6 Size of site 

One of the major considerations is size.  Obviously the larger the site the 
more burial capacity will be available.  As a general rule approximately 800 
full earth graves can be accommodated within each acre of land.  Space will 
also be needed for roads and pathways. 

 
4.7 Accessibility 

The site chosen should be easily accessible, though ideally not on a busy 
main road.  It would also be useful if the site was easily accessible by public 
transport. 

 
4.8 Land near to a stream / canal / river etc should be avoided due to the 

potential for water-logging.  Land that is known to have a high water table 
can cause similar problems.   

 
4.9 The neighbouring area should be considered carefully.  Noise from 

workplaces or schools can cause problems when people are attending a 
funeral or visiting a grave. 

 
4.10 Drainage from the graves must not have the potential to pollute the 

domestic water supply or groundwater. 
 
4.11  Trial excavations 
 Prior to selecting a site it will be necessary to excavate trial holes to a depth 

of at least 8ft (the depth of a treble depth interment).  These holes should be 
dug in various locations around the site in order to determine the general 
nature of the subsoil.   

 
4.12 The ideal soil is light sandy loam which is easily worked and drains itself.  

However the geology of Redditch could mean that the less favourable 
dense clay which is almost always wet and makes excavation both difficult 
and expensive to work, will be our main option. 

 
4.13 The available options 

Ipsley Church Lane – The main site is an area of 16.2 acres and has a 
public right of way more or less across the middle of it.  There is a second 
area on the other side of the lane, currently known as The Arboretum, which 
has areas of established and dense woodland which could be developed 

Page 3



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

into a green burial site.  The aerial views of the proposed site are shown in 
Appendix 5 of the background paper. 

 
4.14 Brooklands Lane – This is effectively un-developed agricultural/grazing 

land divided into two areas one of 11.2 acres and one of 11 acres on either 
side of the lane.  The aerial view of the proposed site is shown in Appendix 
5 of the background paper. 

 
4.15  Foxlydiate Woods site – this is a steep sloping mounded area of open 

grassland space, which forms a buffer for the Foxlydiate woodland against 
the Bromsgrove Highway and adjacent Brockhill Lane.  The area of the site 
measures 10.3 acres. 

 
4.16 All three sites are owned by Redditch Borough Council. 
 
4.17 Analysis of Potential Sites and Facilities Required 

Following initial meetings with relevant parties, a summary of the perceived 
advantages and disadvantages of each site were summarised as shown 
below. 

 
Ipsley Church Lane 

 
Advantages 
 

Disadvantages 

 
Proximity of Near by Pub 
 
Good Access from Main Highway – 
only Minor Changes required for Better 
Visibility 
 
Land Easily Adaptable 
 
Less Isolated Site but Well Screened 
to Give Seclusion 
 
Perceived Larger Area and Less 
Infrastructure Required 
 
Space has Estimated 75 year Life 
 
Potential for Church Services 
 

 
Presence of tournament standard Skate 
Board Park/BMX Track which has 
potential to host major national and 
European competitions and festivals. 
 
Relatively Narrow Width of Lane 
 
Potential archaeological issues 
Stemming from the Proximity of the 
Church. 
 
Bore hole and well in centre of site. 
 
Loss of Existing Amenity  
 
Drainage at the Lower End 
 
Football Pitches 

Page 4



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

Ideal topography. 
 
Good scope for cemetery 
development. 
 

 
Public Right of Way 
 
Access – Possible New Entrance 
Required 
 
Widening of Lane – Probably 
Necessary 

 
Neutral Issues: Potential for Catering: Bus Services: Cycle Path: Pedestrian 
Access 

 
The Arboretum – Ipsley Church Lane 

 
Advantages 
 

Disadvantages 

 
Potential for Woodland Burial 
 
Good Natural Appearance 
 
Closer to Buildings than location would 
suggest and therefore less secluded. 
 
Little Impact on Current Residential 
and Other Property 
 
 
 
 

 
Assumption that it is a Woodland Site 
 
Potential Ground Water Issues as  Soil 
is thought to be Clay 
 
Impact of the Removal of Trees on the 
Eco-system 
 
Requires the most Ground Work of all 
Sites but could be Considered as More 
Adaptable 
 
The Need to Remove Roots 
 

 
Neutral Issues:  The Need to Have the Entrance close to the Church 
 
Brooklands Lane 
 
Advantages Disadvantages 

 
 
Available 
 
Good Proximity 
 

 
Topography – Quite Hilly on the Smaller 
Site 
 
Ground Water – Drainage 

Page 5



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

Affects Less People 
 
Medium Amount of Preparation Work 
 
 
Utilities Already in Place 
 
Not a Cut-through or Walkway 
 
Oast House Pub Near by 
 
Potential Parking for Horses 
 
Tree Planting Facility 
 
Blank canvas 
 
Good road links 
 
Near to bus service 

 
Security – No Overlook/Need for 
Lighting 
 
 
Access – Possible New Entrance 
Required 
 
Widening of Lane – Probably Necessary 
 
No Horizon/Views as it Sits in a Trough 
 
Buildings Currently in Use on Smaller 
Site 
 
No existing Roadways 
 
Terms of Existing Leases not Known 
 
Smaller Site not well Screened 
 
Underground Power Cables 
 

 
Foxlydiate woods site 
 
Advantages Disadvantages 

 
Central proximity to Redditch and 
Bromsgrove  
 
Relative close proximity to current 
administrative base. 
 
Already a car park on site which could 
be adapted for frequent cemetery 
visits. 
 
Location away from residential area 
and therefore away from possible 
antisocial behaviour. 
 
Good road links. 

Not near to public transport- does need 
to be a major consideration as not 
everyone has access to a car. 
 
Contours- the whole location is a steep 
mounded feature.  This is not ideal for 
a cemetery as there are likely to be 
elderly visitors. 
 
Same feature make the process of 
grave digging harder and is a greater 
likelihood that spaces can be lost 
therefore reducing the cemetery 
capacity. 
 

Page 6



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

 
Easily accessible by car 
 
Nice views 
 
Public house nearby 

Noisy- the site is located adjacent to 
the main Bromsgrove highway.  In its 
current state it does not have any 
buffer to that noise.   
 
Very exposed- it is used by kite fliers.  
A lot of screening and landscaping will 
need to be done to protect the site from 
noise, to assist with a feeling of 
seclusion and to possibly level the site. 
 
First impression is that there is only 20 
years usable burial space available 
unless the mounded feature is 
removed. 
 
Difficult to separate main religious 
organisations roman catholic, Muslim 
and others including Church of 
England.   
 
Poorly drained boggy even at the 
summit with evidence of wetland flora. 
 

 
4.18 There are other elements which would require further investigations in 

relation to the above site include; 
 

a) Environmental searches eg soil, ground water. 
b) Utilities.  Doesn’t appear to be any mains utilities. 
c) Archaeological  
d) Previous uses  

 
4.19 It is difficult to define precisely the facilities that need to be available on site.  

Although it is desirable that the site have a service chapel, however, toilet 
facilities and multiple water points for use by visitors would be the priority.  It 
is a moot point whether or not in the early stages of development it would be 
economic to have a café/catering facility on site, although it should be noted 
that these are becoming increasingly popular.  Visitor forecasts, based on 
experience at the current Cemetery, will need to be calculated in order to 
judge the viability of more optional services.  The overriding concern should 
be the availability of land for future burials as any infrastructure would 
reduce the potential for longevity of the site. 

Page 7



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

 
4.20 Stakeholders’ Opinions and Reports 

The following policies and guidance notes are included in full as Appendices 
within the Appendix - feasibility study, which is available on request: 

 
Appendix 6  - Connecting Redditch – Community Facilities Cemeteries 

– Policy C(CF) Point 2 
Appendix 7  - Summary Notes from the Environment Agency on New 

Cemetery Provision 
Appendix 8  - Assessing the Groundwater Pollution Potential of 

Cemetery Developments 
Appendix 9  - Requirements for an Archaeological Evaluation at Two 

Proposed Cemetery Sites 
Appendix 10  - Ecologist Report by Peter Gondris 
Appendix 11  - Environmental Report by Mark Holland 

 
4.21 Summary Comparison of the Alternative Sites 

In overall terms, all sites have the potential to provide a new cemetery 
facility for Redditch Borough Council.   

 
4.22 On two prime criteria, namely the cost of development and the extent of the 

facilities that would be available if equal capital sums were invested in each 
site, Ipsley Church Lane and its associated arboretum would be seen as 
having the advantage over both the Brooklands Lane and Foxlydiate Woods 
site.  

 
4.23 However, its adoption would not be without penalty and therefore the 

advantages have to be balanced against the loss of the existing amenity of 
being an open public space which has a public right of way across it.  The 
impact and social effects of a cemetery here also needs to be assessed in 
relation to the presence of nearby leisure facilities such as the skateboard 
park, the tournament standard BMX track with its proposed festival 
expectations and the football pitches.    

 
4.24 In terms of ecological and physical restraints, in relation to the main Ipsley 

Church Lane site, there is a concern that drainage at the lower end of the 
site may restrict the ultimate capacity of the cemetery.    

 
4.25 There are also potential groundwater issues to be addressed in relation to 

the arboretum, because the soil is mainly clay, as well as the need to 
assess the ecological impact of removing trees and roots from this area.    

 

Page 8



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

4.26 The two possible areas for development in Brooklands Lane do not impact 
any existing public amenities and leisure facilities.  However, the topography 
of the smaller site is quite hilly and will require additional heavy landscaping 
to realise the potential.    

 
4.27 There are no existing paths or roadways within either site so then the 

development of these would require a level of investment . 
 
4.28 The smaller site on Brooklands lane is not well screened so a detailed long-

term tree planting scheme would need to be put in place.    
4.29 The believed presence of underground power cables is a very definite 

concern and the decision will ultimately be dependent upon the lease 
agreements, as to whether they are relocated or removed. 

 
4.30 This site does not have the horizon or views from it that Ipsley Church Lane 

offers and therefore trying to create an environment of openness and 
tranquillity is likely to be a challenge. 

 
4.31 The area adjacent to the Foxlydiate woods has not undergone the same 

initial searches as the two other sites but the gradient of the area does not 
lend itself to be a good alternative.  The topography is steep throughout 
most of the site which in itself reduces the availability of useable ground for 
burial.   

 
4.32 The obvious and easy decision on balance for reasons of loss of amenity, 

cost and ultimate benefit to the bereaved, would  be to assess the potential 
of the Brooklands Lane site first. 

 
4.33 Phasing of the development 

As a general guide there are phases of cemetery development.  These will 
start once a site has been identified. 

 
4.34 Stage 1 - Site survey, feasibility study, risk assessment and liaison with the 

Environment Agency  
The overall aim of this stage is to provide sufficient information such that the 
viability of the proposed development can be assessed, and a detailed 
project plan can be developed.  Stage 1 normally comprises a Tier 1 risk 
assessment a topographic survey, geophysical (soil) survey, site technical 
appraisal (excavation of test pits, removal of soil samples for laboratory 
analysis etc), production of outline development/construction options to 
mitigate risk to the environment, and liaison with the Environment Agency 
(EA).  For sites considered against EA criteria to be of intermediate or high 
risk to the environment, more detailed investigative work will be conducted 

Page 9



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

to conform to the requirements of Tier 2 or Tier 3 risk assessments.  This 
may include the installation of dipwells to facilitate the monitoring of 
groundwater over an extended period.     

 
 
4.35 Stage 2 - Design  

This will take into account all of the information gathered during Stage 1,  
this stage is develop the design which will form the basis for producing a set 
of detailed designs, specifications, bills of quantities and construction 
drawings for the project. 
The resulting detailed design and specification will be scientifically sound in 
terms of addressing the specific issues prevailing at the site, and will 
provide the basis for the production of tender documentation for potential 
contractors 
 

4.36 Stage 3 - The Tender Process 
Depending on requirements, this is where the production of all of the 
necessary documentation required for the tender process.   
 

4.37 Stage 4 - Project Management  
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There is a recommendation that £35 000 be allocated from the capital 

budget to allow the initial work to be carried out. If these investigations show 
that the Brooklands Lane site is unsuitable as a cemetery then further sites 
would need to be brought back to the executive committee. This would 
require additional investigation costs. 

 
5.2 Once the initial phase has been carried out there will be an additional 

funding requirement to carry out stage 2, 3 and 4.  Although this figure 
cannot yet be defined, indicative costs have been advised at £250k -£300k 
for the first hectares development.  This figure would include civil works to 
incorporate approximately 1600 burials.  The development of the second 
hectare onwards would cost between £40k - £70k  

 
5.3 There will still be a cost of carrying out burials and maintenance of the 

existing burial sites even when closed to new burials in addition to the cost 
of carrying out burials and maintaining the new cemetery.  This will include 
the provision of additional maintenance staff. 

 
5.4 Budgetary provision does not exist for this development. 
 

Page 10



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Local Authorities Cemetery Order 1977 must be adhered to when identifying 
a new location for a cemetery. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

C (CF).2 Connecting Redditch - Community Matters. 
Appendix 6 of Feasibility study - Appendix 1,  

 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 

The new cemetery will encompass aspects of all the council objectives but 
with a focus on the clean and green priority.  The new cemetery will meet all 
aspects of council’s values and deliver a quality service that meets the 
needs of its residents, that of a continuation of a choice between burial and 
cremation. 

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

 
a) The main risk is that of agreeing to the site(s) and none of the chosen 

options being usable following specific environment agency 
investigations. 

 
b) Long term commitment to the provision of a cemetery.   
 
c) Adverse publicity in relation to the chosen location. 

 
9.2 These risks are being managed as follows:  
 

a) The main risk is that of agreeing to the site(s) and none of the chosen 
options being usable following specific environment agency 
investigations. 

 
9.3 Risk Register: n/a 
 Key Objective Ref No: n/a  
 Key Objective: Maximise collection of Council Tax and Business Rates 
 
9.4 Long term commitment to the provision of a cemetery including financial 

commitment. 

Page 11



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

 
9.5 Risk Register: n/a 

Key Objective Ref No: n/a  
Key Objective: n/a 
a) Adverse publicity in relation to the chosen location 

 
9.6 Risk Register: n/a 

Key Objective Ref No: n/a  
Key Objective: n/a 
 

9.7 Currently the risk identified in the first, second and third bullet points in 9.1 
are not addressed by any risk register and will be added to the (insert 
appropriate name e.g.  Financial Services) risk register as follows: 

 
9.8 Management of risks identified above 
 
9.9 Actions 
 
9.10 Risk 1- Continue to search for available land for future burial, this land may 

have to be purchased at additional costs not included in this report or be 
land available outside the Redditch Borough Council boundary the same 
may apply. 

 
9.11 Risk 2- Provide a wide choice of burial and memorial options to offset any 

costs which will initially and in future be incurred by the authority. 
 
9.12 Risk 3- Allow adequate consultation during the planning process, following 

stage one environment agency investigations. 
 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The loss of the use of a cemetery for residents of Redditch Borough would 

reduce the choice in relation to death.  If a site were not identified and 
developed would mean that they are either cremated, buried locally in a 
private woodland style cemetery, buried in their local parish church yard or 
have to be buried outside of the Redditch boundary, this may include a none 
resident tariff. 

 
10.2 The specific customer implications relating to the 3 site options can be 

drawn from the advantages and disadvantages as listed above. 
 
10.3 Due to the sensitivity of the proposals weighed against the pressing need to 

locate a new site for burial, it is important that recommendations are 

Page 12



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

communicated to the customer.  This will take form during the planning and 
design process, once the preferred list is approved and the environment 
agency are satisfied with the chosen location following site investigations. 

 
10.4 Internal customers will be affected as whichever site is chosen work to 

maintain the site will be called upon. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

Depending upon the site chosen the new cemetery will provide the 
opportunity and capability to offer a number of alternative styles of burial as 
well as a greater range of memorial styles to provide greater emphasis on 
creativity, in addition areas for specific faith groups could be facilitated, 
something which in a dwindling area we have been unable to enhance for 
some years. 

 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1 No other sites have been identified by Officers as being available for 

development.  But the loss of cemetery amenity for residents would limit 
choice (as above) for residents when deciding their final resting place. 

 
12.2 Variety of memorial and burial schemes can offset maintenance costs 

associated with cemetery management. 
 
12.3 Both asset management and procurement will be involved when the 

development begins. 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 

Whichever site is identified as the location for the new Redditch Borough 
Council cemetery, a great opportunity will exist to develop the cemetery in 
line with industry thinking in this field.  Areas will be marked and designed 
with the eco-system in mind.  All three sites offer the opportunity to 
encourage biodiversity. 

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  

The identification, planning, design and development of the new cemetery 
will involve a number of internal departments, but not directly specific to 
human resources.   

 

Page 13



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  

None. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  

The public cemetery will need to be safe and secure.  This will require a 
gentle balance of aesthetic screening incorporating security features such 
as fencing.  There will also be a need to provide security measures when 
the cemetery is not open to the public. 

 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 

None identified. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 

The bereavement service industry has a very good network of people and 
organisations that have been through this process and are always available 
to assist and advise including a number them working within neighbouring 
authorities. Currently of the areas looked at, Brooklands Lane appears to be 
the only suitable site (subject to the site evaluation)and if this proves not to 
be the case, officers would need to bring a further report on alternatives 
back to the Executive Committee. 

 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 

Not applicable at this juncture.  However, once a site has been identified 
this will form part of the planning process. 

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

yes 

Chief Executive 
 

no 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
(must approve Financial Implications before 
report submitted to Leader’s Group/Portfolio 
Holders Briefing) 

yes 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 

yes 

Page 14



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\7\AI00004702\Item6NewCemeteryReportfinal1.doc/19.10.10/LW/amended 
19.11.10.IW & 22.11.10 IW 

 
Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  

yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 

no 

Head of Service 
(i.e.  your own HoS) 

yes 

Head of Resources  
(must approve significant HR Implications 
before report submitted to Leader’s 
Group/Portfolio Holders Briefing  

no 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
(for approval of any significant Legal 
Implications) 

no 

Corporate Procurement Team 
(for approval of any procurement implications) 

no 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All wards will be affected if no site is positively identified but cemetery 
options are located in abbey ward (Brooklands Lane), Matchborough Ward 
(Ipsley Church Lane) and Batchley Ward (Brockhill Lane). 

 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 - Feasibility Study carried out by Goldray Ltd.  Available on 

request  
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:   Ian N Gregory 
E Mail:  ian.gregory@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:       01527 62174 
 

Page 15



Page 16



APPENDIX 5 

B98 8PX - Brooklands Lane 

Page 17



Page 18



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

TENANT INVOLVEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Clayton, Portfolio Holder for 

Housing, Local Environment and Health 
Relevant Head of Service Liz Tompkin – Head of Housing 
Key Decision  
 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
 The purpose of this report is to ask members to approve the new Tenant 

Involvement Agreement which is the Council’s recognition criterion for 
formal resident panels and guidance to enable tenants and residents to be 
actively involved with the delivery of housing services. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that  
 

the new Tenant Involvement Agreement (Appendix 1) be adopted. 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Tenant Involvement has been themed throughout housing services since 

the mid 1990's in the formation of tenant groups and the Borough Tenants 
Panel the umbrella group over all local groups.   

  
3.2 In June 2006 Members approved the Borough Wide Tenant Compact which 

is an agreement between Redditch Borough Council and its Tenants. 
 
3.3 Since 2006 Tenant Involvement has moved forward considerably and 

inspectorates of Housing have themed involvement with tenants as high 
priority. 

 
3.4 Central Government was the driver behind involving tenants in housing and 

as a result of this Officer’s presented Members with Housing Services first 
Tenant Involvement Strategy which was approved in December 2009. 

 
3.5 In order to modernise Tenant Involvement in Housing a 3 year action plan 

was devised within the Tenant Involvement Strategy and as part of our 
modernisation we committed to review the existing Borough Wide Tenant 
compact with our tenants and draw up a new modern agreement. 

Agenda Item 7Page 19



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

 
3.6 The compact was reviewed by Officers and research into other housing 

providers tenant agreements was undertaken.  As a result of this a new 
draft ‘Tenant Involvement Agreement’ was drawn up  

 
3.7 It is imperative that our Tenants are consulted on any documents; 

therefore, the draft has been presented to our all of our resident groups 
that are currently constituted for consultation and feedback. 

 
3.7 The final document has been produced taking into account our tenants 

views and was taken to Borough Tenants Panel on 20th October 2010 for 
sign off. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 Tenant involvement is considered to be central element of good service 

delivery in housing. 
 
4.2 An agreement for recognition criteria and guidance for formal panels who 

want to be actively involved in how local housing services are delivered is 
considered to be best practice and will also contribute to Redditch Borough 
Council’s commitment to offer as many involvement opportunities in 
parallel with the Tenant Involvement Strategy. 

 
4.4 In consultation with tenants a new ‘Tenant Involvement Agreement’ to 

replace the existing ‘Borough Wide Tenant Compact’ has been produced 
(Appendix 1). 

 
  
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Within existing budgets. 
 
 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Under Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the 

power to do anything (whether or not involving expenditure, borrowing or 
lending of money or acquisition or disposal of any property or rights) which 
is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental, to the discharge of 
any of its functions. 

 
 

Page 20



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 Tenant Involvement Strategy and Action plan December 2009.  
 
7.2 Tenant Services Authority, a new regulator to ensure tenants have the 

opportunity to be involved in management of housing.  The Tenant 
Involvement and Empowerment’ standard. 

 
7.3 Public policy  

1. Strong and Prosperous Communities  
2. Cave review 
3. Housing and Regeneration bill 
4. Duty to involve 

 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 Housing Service Business plan key deliverable, in partnership with tenants 

increase the opportunities for tenant involvement in decisions on their 
services. 

 
8.2 The vision for Redditch Sustainable Community Strategy, adopted by 

Council on 27 October 2008 is for ‘Redditch to be successful and vibrant 
with sustainable communities built on partnership and shared responsibility.  
Shared responsibility promotes active community participation 

 
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified, impact assessment completed. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
 None identified. 

Page 21



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 None identified. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
 None identified. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None identified. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
 None identified. 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 None identified. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

No 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

No 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  

Yes 

Page 22



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All wards 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1: Redditch Borough Council Housing Services Tenant 

Involvement Agreement. 
 
  
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 Existing Borough wide Tenant Involvement Compact 
 Tenant Involvement Strategy and Action Plan 2009-12 
 Tenant Involvement Agreement Equality Impact Assessment 
  
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Jayne Bough (Housing Services Manager). 
E Mail: jayne.bough@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:  01527 64252 or Extn: 3131 
 

Page 23



Page 24



 
 

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL HOUSING SERVICES 
TENANT INVOLVEMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 

                                                                                                                                                         
 
 
This Tenant Involvement Agreement is the Council’s recognition criteria for 
formal Panels and guidance to enable tenants and residents to be actively 
involved with the delivery of housing services.  
 
The agreement is also part of the Councils commitment to offer as many 
opportunities of involvement in parallel to Redditch Borough Councils Tenant 
Involvement Strategy.  
  
This agreement has been developed in consultation with Tenant 
representatives. 
 
There are different ways in which tenants can become involved; however, in 
order to be formally recognised by Redditch Borough Council and to be 
involved in decision making that affect how Services are delivered Panels 
must have a constitution. 
 
Constitution: 
 
Panels must have a constitution that: 

• Shows the Council it is accountable, representative, open and honest. 
• Demonstrates inclusiveness through an equal opportunities statement 

that is regularly reviewed. 
• Have clear aims and objectives to include making their local area a 

better place to live by working together. 
• Has a code of conduct and clear and open procedures for election and 

suspension of members. 
• Is not party-political.  
• Identify the geographical area they are representing. 
• States clearly how changes can be made to the constitution. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 
Agreement Standards 
 
Meetings: 
 
Panels must: 

• Hold three general meetings a year as a minimum, one of which shall 
be an AGM. 

• Have a quorum (the number of people who must attend meetings) of 4 
- 6 tenants or residents. 

• Any resident living in the area may join a group but have no voting 
rights on tenant related matters e.g., Capital improvement programme.  

• Notify Tenant Involvement Officers of all meetings and invite area 
Officers to attend. 

 
Committee: 
 
Panels must: 

• Have a committee that live in the area they represent and consists of 
as a minimum, Chair, Secretary and Treasurer. (If applying for grant 
funding). 

• Have a committee that is elected at the AGM. 
• Elect up to 2 of its members to join the Borough Tenants Forum. 
• When a decision is required by vote each member present is entitled to 

one vote with decisions by simple majority.  The chair has a casting 
vote. 

 
Communication: 
 
Panels must: 

• Produce regular newsletters or other written communication for their 
members. 

• Provide notice of meetings.  
• Produce a brief, written annual report which is given to Redditch 

Borough Council. 
 
Finance: 
 
To be eligible for an annual running grant Panels must: 

• Hold a bank account in the name of the Panel. 
• Produce independently audited accounts every year or if a change of 

Treasurer occurs. 
• Have a least 3 nominated signatories (to include the Treasurer) for the 

bank account (only 2 to sign at any time). 
• Make the latest bank statements available at all committee meetings. 
• Balance sheet to be made available at the AGM. 

 
 
 

Page 26



 
Performance Development Panel Agreement 
 
The Performance Development Panel is responsible for monitoring and 
reviewing Tenant Involvement as well as housing performance. 
 
The Panel will meet bi-monthly and agenda’s will be set with the Chair and 
Tenant Involvement Officers. 
 
Membership of the group will consist of the following: 

• Chair (Tenant) 
• Vice Chair 
• 2 Co-opted Local Councillors  
• A maximum of 2 members from each recognised Community Panel 
• Tenant Involvement Officer (support – no voting rights) 
• Volunteers from the database of interest or any involvement 

groups/panels to undertake Mystery Shopping. 
• Representative from the Housing Services Wider Management Team 

(depending on the service area that is being monitored or reviewed). 
 
Information discussed during these meetings will be fed back to the Borough 
Tenants Forum as a standard Agenda item and will be the responsibility of the 
Chair and Tenant Involvement Officer. 
 
An AGM will be conducted annually where the Chair and Vice Chair will be 
elected and an annual action plan produced. 
 
All members of the Forum must comply with the Tenant Involvement 
Agreement Standards and Code of Conduct. 
 
An annual budget will be provided for this Panel and will be held by Tenant 
Involvement Officers. 
 
Borough Tenants Forum Agreement 
 
The Borough Tenants Forum is the umbrella group of Tenant Involvement and 
is representative of all groups and panels. 
 
The Forum will meet bi-monthly and agenda’s will be set with the Chair and 
Tenant Involvement Officers. 
 
Membership of the group will consist of the following: 

• Chair (Tenant) 
• Vice Chair 
• 2 Co-opted Local Councillors  
• A maximum of 2 members from each recognised Community Panels 
• Tenant Involvement Officer (support – no voting rights) 

 
 

Page 27



 
NB: Non-tenants can be part of the Forum; however, hold no voting rights on 
any housing related matter. 
 
It is the responsibility of the Members of the Forum to feedback and consults 
with members within their local Community Panels. 
 
An AGM will be conducted annually where the Chair and Vice Chair will be 
elected and an annual action plan produced. 
 
The purpose of the Forum is to focus on strategic aims of involvement and to 
be consulted on council documents such as policies and procedures where 
key decisions will be reached.  An annual action plan will be produced in line 
the Councils Forward Plan and Overview and Scrutiny Committee planned 
actions. 
  
All members of the Forum must comply with the Tenant Involvement 
Agreement Standards and Code of Conduct. 
 
An annual budget will be provided for this Panel and will be held by Tenant 
Involvement Officers. 
 
Involvement in the Housing Advisory Panel 
 
The Housing Advisory Panel is a panel of local Councillors specifically elected 
to oversee Housing and is chaired by the Portfolio Holder for Housing.  
Officers are invited to the Panel to present any information central to the 
delivery of Housing Services. 
 
The Panel meet 4 times and year and the Chair from the Borough Tenants 
Forum (or representative in their absence) are co-opted onto the Panel. 
 
Involvement in Overview and Scrutiny Reviews 
 
Any member of the community is entitled to request to be involved in a 
Scrutiny Review being under taken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
In Housing related reviews Members of any panel or group are encouraged to 
become involved and information upon request will be provided by Tenant 
Involvement Officers.  
 
To express an interest in becoming part of an Overview and Scrutiny review 
should be done by contacting either the Councils Committee Services or the 
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 
 
De-recognition: 
 
The Borough Tenants Forum is the umbrella group of representatives from all 
groups and includes local Councillors. 
 
The Forum has responsibility for tenant involvement and will make the final 
decision on whether a Panel should continue to be recognised.  A Panel will 
only be de-recognised as a last resort. 
 
Any grant funding will be returned to the Council should a group be de-
recognised. 
 
Code of Conduct: 
 
It is a condition of all groups, panels and forums that members behave in an 
appropriate way.  Members must promote good working relationships and 
practice and abide by this Code of Conduct. 
 

• All members shall commit themselves to promote equal opportunities 
within the community and within their memberships. 

• Members must not be political 
• At meetings members should speak through the Chair and conduct 

themselves in a manner which will not cause offence to another person 
or bring the role of the group into disrepute.  This includes 

o Racist, sexist or other inflammatory remarks 
o Preventing other members from having a say and 
o Refusing to accept instructions from the chair. 

• The Chair has a right to ask any member behaving in such a manner to 
leave the meeting. 

• Any group member may be excluded from the group, panel or forum for 
breach of the Code of conduct by a majority vote. 

• Any member that has been excluded has the right of appeal to the 
Tenant Involvement Team.   

 
 

Page 29



Page 30



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR GRANTS POLICY  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllrs Carole Gandy, Leader of the 

Council and Michael Braley, Portfolio 
Holder for Corporate Management 

Relevant Head of Service Angie Heighway, Head of Community 
Services 

Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 The Executive Committee is requested to consider changes to the Grants 

Policy 2010 to ensure the Council’s voluntary sector grant funding provides 
value for money and increased access for voluntary and community sector 
organisations. 

 
1.2 The Executive Committee is also requested to recommend the themes for the 

Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) grants process for 2011/12. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Executive Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that  
 

1) the updated Voluntary Sector Grants Policy attached to the report 
at Appendix 1 be approved; 

 
2) the following themes and percentages of funding be allocated for 

the 2011/12 voluntary and community sector grants process: 
 

§ Enterprising Communities   -   55% =  £130,000 
§ Safe/ Clean & Green    -     8% =  £  20,000 
§ LSP theme - Health and Wellbeing  -     8% =  £  20,000 
§ LSP theme - Education    -   25% =  £  60,000 
§ LSP theme – Stronger Communities -   4% =   £    9,000 

 
3) £2,000 be re-allocated from the existing Grants budget for the use 

by the Grants Team to deliver: 
• workshops, networking and promotional events; 
• advertising and communication support; 
• newsletters; and 

Agenda Item 8Page 31



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

• support packages;  
 
and 

 
the Executive Committee is asked to RESOLVE that, subject to the 
Council’s approval of the above recommendations 1) & 2),   
 
4) authority be delegated to the Head of Community Services, in 

consultation with the Grants Panel, to agree the allocation of 
community grants under the Local Strategic Partnership ‘Stronger 
Communities’ theme. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 There is increasing awareness of the role the Voluntary and Community 

Sector can and does play in local communities, in particular contributing to 
community empowerment, local partnerships and the design and delivery of 
public services.  By adopting a pro-active plan of engagement with the local 
VCS, Redditch Borough Council will be in a position to support significant 
improvements in the way that it works with the third sector to achieve stronger 
more sustainable communities and better outcomes for local people. 

 
3.2 Following an Overview and Scrutiny Committee review in 2008, a more 

transparent and inclusive grants scheme was agreed.  The 2010 Grants Policy 
has been reviewed taking on board issues raised by Officers, the Grants Panel 
and VCS organisations. 

 
3.3 To ensure that the Council moves forward and delivers grants that provide 

value for money, Officers have suggested changes to the current policy (see 
Appendix 1) that will allow the sector to grow and build stronger partnerships 
both with Redditch Borough Council and other organisations and meet the 
long term needs of the local VCS.   

 
3.4 Redditch Borough Council can help facilitate the building of effective 

relationships with our local VCS organisations, who will then have the 
opportunity to contribute to the Council’s priorities by improving local services; 
strengthening democracy; achieving increased value for money; and in 
leadership and ‘place-shaping’.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

 
 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Council needs to ensure that it has a transparent and fair grants scheme.  

This policy relates to the ‘investing’ and ‘giving’ element of the funding 
framework.  

 
4.2 The ‘Shopping’ element forms part of the Council’s procurement process.  The 

Grants scheme should support and encourage the local VCS community to 
grow and become sustainable. 
 

4.3 The Council will deliver a Support Package to assist VCS organisations to 
become self sustaining / funding which in turn will build capacity and the skill 
base within the Sector, thus increasing the viability of well managed Voluntary 
Sector organisations.  

 
4.4 The Investing element of Redditch Borough Council’s grant scheme may 

during the application process become undersubscribed.  In order for the grant 
funding to remain a positive supporting scheme we can mitigate any negative 
funding issues by agreeing that the remaining funding allocation is transferred 
into the Stronger Communities giving element which encourages localised 
current project delivery by Local Community groups. 

 
4.5 Officers are working with the Council’s Economic Development and 

Procurement Teams to enable collaborative working to take place with both 
external funders and our local VCS organisations / groups to provide the VCS 
with the skills and knowledge to become sustainable. 

 
4.6 It is proposed that £2,000 should be allocated from the grants budget for the 

use by the Grants Team to enable delivery of: 
 

• Workshops, networking and promotional events 
• Advertising and communication support 
• Newsletters 
• Support packages. 
 

4.7 To enable the Council to deliver its grants programme, Officers will need to 
work closely with the Communications Team to ensure that a full and 
informative guide to the new procedure is implemented and that Officers are 
engaging with the full range of VCS organisations and groups within the local 
area. 

Page 33



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

 
 
4.8 There is a need to support and up skill the vibrant Redditch VCS for growth.  

Working with the sector Officers can reduce the reliance on Redditch Borough 
Council for grants, which in turn will help the organisations to become self 
sufficient and give them a broader base of funding streams to help build and 
sustain them. 

 
4.9 Local Authorities will be expected under the ‘Big Society’ banner to support 

and help build capacity and up-skill those organisations operating within the 
third sector. 

 
4.10 The ‘Shopping’ element of the funding framework does not form part of this 

Policy as the procurement of services is dealt with by the Council’s 
Procurement Strategy.  Officers are identifying how they can work with the 
VCS to ensure they are engaging with the sector to look at delivery via 
Redditch Borough Council’s procurement process. 

 
4.11 After reviewing the 2010/11 grants programme, Officers noted that there were 

no applications from smaller community groups.  For the 2011/12 grant 
programme, Officers propose a mechanism for funding smaller community 
projects and to put into place a funding pot to ensure the Council meets the 
needs of these grassroots organisations for 2011/12. 

 
4.12 Officers are proposing the level of split between the relevant themes based on 

the current priorities and needs of the Borough.  Following the announcement 
of the Comprehensive Spending Review and the current economic climate it 
was considered that the largest funding stream should be for the priority of 
enterprising community. 

 
4.13 Officers considered that the remaining themes and priorities had significant 

mainstream funding in tackling issues and there were fewer opportunities for 
the VCS to make impacts on the outcomes of these. 

 
4.14 Below are the proposed timescales for the 2011/12 Grant programme. By 

adopting the proposed allocation of grants for 2011/12, Redditch Borough 
Council’s grants programme will have the opportunity to support 20 projects 
from the main grant themes with up to 18 community grants being allocated 
throughout 2011/12. 

 
 
 
 

Page 34



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The total budget for grants to voluntary organisations for 2011/12 is £241,000.  
The proposed provision of £2,000 to deliver support and events throughout 
2011/12 will leave £239,000 available to allocate as grant to outside bodies. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Under Section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the 

power to incur expenditure which in its opinion is in the interest of and will 
bring direct benefit to its area or any part of it or all or some of its inhabitants.  
The direct benefit accruing must also be commensurate with the expenditure 
to be incurred. 

 

Process for Main grants programme Timescale 

Launch of the 2011/12 Grant Process Tuesday 14th December 2010 
Update timetable per conversation 

Application deadline 4.00pm Thursday 20th January 2011 

Initial screening out of ineligible applications Friday 22nd January 2011 

Full assessment of applications by Grants Panel February 2011 

Executive Committee  17th March 

Successful and unsuccessful applicants 
informed 

21st March 

First instalment of funding released 1st April 2011  

Process for Community Grant programme Timescale 
Launch -1st Round  Tuesday 14th Dec 2010 
1st Application deadline for projects to 
commence from April 1st (Funds Released) 

4pm, Thursday 20th January 2011 

Launch - 2nd Round – Theme  Monday 14th March 
2nd Application deadline for projects to 
commence from July 1st (Funds Released) 

4pm Friday 8th April 2011 

Launch - 3rd Round - Theme Monday 20th June 
3rd Application deadline for projects to 
commence from 3rd October (Funds Released) 

4pm Friday 15th July 

Assessment of applications Within 14 working days of deadline 
Successful and unsuccessful applicants 
informed 

Within 21 working days of deadline 

Page 35



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

6.2 There is a further power to make grants to voluntary organisations providing 
recreational facilities under Section 19 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.   

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The Policy for Award of Grants to Voluntary and Community Sector 

Organisations (Grants Policy) previously was agreed by Executive Committee 
on 10th June 2009 and Full Council on the 22nd June 2009. 

 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 Enterprising Communities – Recognising the value of the Third Sector as an 

integral part of shaping and delivering better services for the citizens of 
Redditch.  The Council can be flexible in its approach to partnership and 
funding so as to recognise the Third Sector’s role in the sustainability of 
delivery of public services.  

 
8.2 Safe – Specific projects that will be delivered to support and raise awareness 

of issues that affect Redditch citizens. 
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT, INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  
 There is a risk that the Council could be criticised for failing to support the local 

Third Sector organisations or community groups in up-skilling and building the 
capacity to become self sustaining.  To mitigate this risk, Officers propose to 
put into place a provision of a support package delivered by the Grant Co-
ordinator to help build capacity, skills and options of alternative funding 
streams for the VCS organisations that are looking to strengthen their long-
term future. 

  
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Communities’ expectations are rising and require services tailored to the 

needs of local areas and residents.  By supporting the VCS organisations that 
receive funding from the grants scheme the Council can help them pro-actively 
source and successfully bid for alternative funding allowing the grants fund to 
move forward year on year to support new and expanding VCS organisations 
to deliver timely services / projects / events to the residents of Redditch. 

 
 
 

Page 36



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The Grants process facilitates engagement with and support for more 

marginalised people and promotes equality and diversity issues within the 
local authority.  

  
11.2 Value can be added to the local VCS by ensuring transparency of grant-giving 

practices thus promoting fairness and diversity. 
  
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1 Selection of successful applications will follow scoring criteria to ensure value 

for money is achieved. 
 
12.2 The ‘Shopping’ element of the Grants process will be delivered via the 

Council’s procurement process. Training and awareness of the process will be 
built into the support package. 

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 None identified. 

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
 None identified. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Members of the Grants Panel will be required to attend quarterly panel 

meetings. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  
 None identified. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
 None identified. 
 
 
 

Page 37



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
18.1 The application forms and guideline documents have been updated. This will 

give applicants clearer guidelines on the grants they are applying for and what 
information they need to submit and allows a smoother reviewing process of 
applications. 

 
18.2 The previous policy did not promote or engage with small community groups 

and, with only having one bidding round, small events / projects missed out on 
funding as projects were required to be designed several months before their 
inception.  

  
18.3 By not previously having a designated Grants Officer the monitoring of the 

grants scheme had been minimal.  This did not allow the grants scheme to 
reach a wider range of VCS organisations and add value to the Council’s 
priorities.  In order to cultivate an atmosphere of trust and partnership working 
within the VCS, it has been recognised that the support of a Grants Officer will 
be invaluable to ensure the long-term strength and success of Redditch 
Borough Council’s grant scheme.  

 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
19.1 A workshop has been booked for November to engage with VCS organisations 

to help up-skill and support bid writing and the grant making process.   
 
19.2  An event in December 2010 will be held to launch the new grants rounds for 

2011/12.  This event will be held at the Town Hall and will target all local VCS 
organisations.  The event will include a presentation on how the grants are 
allocated in 2011/12 and will have a provision for organisations to access 
support and advice from Redditch Borough Council’s Officers and BARN.  
Officers will also be surveying the groups to see where they historically go for 
advice and guidance on grants. 

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder(s) 
 

 

Chief Executive 
 

 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 

 

Page 38



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

 
Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

 

Director of Policy, Performance and Partnerships 
 

 

Head of Service 
 

 

Head of Resources  
  

 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services 
 

 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 
 

 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All 

 
22. APPENDICES  
 
 Appendix 1 – Voluntary and Community Sector Grants Policy 
 Appendix 2 – Proposed Themes and Percentages - 

55% allocated to Enterprising Communities -  
Total: 130k for the Delivery of Projects under the ‘Enterprising 
Communities’ Banner. 

 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 Policy for Award of Grants by Redditch Borough Council to Voluntary and 

Community Sector Organisations. 
  
 Worcestershire Compact: Link to Web-pages: 

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/community-and-living/vcs-
unit/worcestershire-compact.aspx 

 
24. KEY 

 
 BME – Black Minority Ethnic  

 
LSP – Local Strategic Partnership 

 

Page 39



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\6\2\AI00005264\Item8VoluntaryandCommunitySectorGrantsPolicyRe
portfinal2.DOC-(dg11.11.10) 

 ‘Place-Shaping’ – Local authorities are strategic leaders in place-shaping 
responding to residents' ambitions and aspirations and working with partners 
to deliver relevant services. 
 
‘Third Sector’ –The voluntary sector or community sector (also non-profit 
sector) is the sphere of social activity undertaken by organisations that are for 
non-profit and non-governmental. This sector is also called the third sector. 

 
VCS – Voluntary and Community Sector 
 . 

 
 AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
 Name: Donna Hancox    
 E Mail: donna.hancox@redditchbc.gov.uk   
 Tel: 01527 64252 ext: 3015       
 
 
 

Page 40



APPENDIX 1 

VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR 
GRANTS POLICY 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 

1. Introduction ............................................................................. 2 
2. Scope...................................................................................... 2 
3. Funding Framework ................................................................ 2 
3.2 Shopping........................................................................... 2 
3.3 Investing:........................................................................... 3 
3.4 Giving................................................................................ 3 

4.       Purpose of Grant Funding ................................................... 4 
5. Which Organisations are eligible to apply for a Grant?............ 5 
6. What will and will not be funded by a grant.............................. 6 
7. Risk considerations in grant giving .......................................... 6 
8. Grant Conditions ..................................................................... 7 
9. Assessment Process............................................................... 8 
10. Assessment Timescales........................................................ 10 
11. Monitoring ............................................................................. 10 
12.    Collaborative Working ........................................................ 11 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 41



 

 2 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Redditch Borough Council supports Voluntary and Community sector 

organisations because we believe that a vibrant Third Sector is vital to 
our community.  The Council is committed to supporting organisations 
that deliver projects and activities which have a beneficial impact on the 
local community. 

 
1.2 Under Section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has 

the power to incur expenditure which in its opinion is in the interest of 
and will bring direct benefit to its area or any part of it or all or some of 
its inhabitants.  The direct benefit accruing must also be commensurate 
with the expenditure to be incurred. 

 
1.3 There is further power to make grants to voluntary organisations 

providing recreational facilities under Section 19 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

 
1.4 This policy is written in conjunction with the “Let’s Do It Smarter – 

Worcestershire Compact:  Funding and Procurement Code of Good 
Practice”.  The Compact is a commitment to improve relationships 
between public and voluntary and community sector organisations, with 
a mutual objective of ‘delivering high quality, good value services and 
support to the local community’. 

2. Scope 
 
2.1 This policy applies only to the allocation of grants to voluntary and 

community sector organisations.  It does not apply to any other means 
of financial support from the Council that may be available under other 
schemes. 

 
2.2     This policy applies to all grant funding from Redditch Borough Council 

to voluntary and community sector organisations.  This includes grants 
made available from individual service budgets. 

3. Funding Framework 
 
3.1 The Council uses the Shopping, Investing and Giving funding 

framework 
 
3.2  Shopping: refers to procurement and contractual arrangements that 

are legally binding, where Redditch Borough Council seeks bids from 
external organisations to provide a specified service that Redditch 
Borough Council either has to provide by law, or it has made a decision 
to provide within its legal powers’ The technical differences between 
grants and contracts are as follows: 

 

Page 42



 

 3 

A public sector grant involves the provision of subsidy (capital or 
revenue) funding, by the relevant public sector body, in support of a 
charitable, or other public benefit, service, which the public body wishes 
to support, as part of fulfilling its own public benefit remit. A grant is 
provided on conditions aimed at ensuring the proper application of the 
grant funds, but not in return for anything. 
• A public sector contract involves the provision of goods or services, to 
the relevant public sector body, directly in return for payment 
representing the price of the relevant goods or services. Terms and 
conditions of a contract regulate the exchange of services for payment      
The Council is committed to extending the opportunities available 
to voluntary and community sector organisations and are 
committed to actively  encourage the VCS to be more involved in 
the design and delivery of more public services because of the 
‘added value’ they can bring..  However, this policy does not apply 
to those arrangements which will be managed using a contract. 

 
3.3 Investing: refers to the Council providing funding to develop the 

capacity of the voluntary and community sector.  This may include 
making funding contributions to voluntary and community sector 
infrastructure support services, or making funding available for training 
or business development activities within organisations. This element 
of the funding stream will be aligned to the overall strategy of 
Redditch Borough Council, thus ensuring a strategic investment 
in VCS  in order to skill up and strengthen front line VCS 
organisations to deliver value for money services and give a 
platform for the delivery of projects that strengthen and support 
the local communities.  Themes and the percentage of funding 
allocated for this element will be set prior to November by the 
Executive Committee for projects commencing after the 1st April 
of the following year.  If this element is undersubscribed at the 
end of the Grant application process the remaining funding will be 
transferred into the giving element in order to support the 
Stronger Communities priority. 

 
3.4 Giving: refers to the Council providing funding to voluntary and 

community sector organisations to support work that contributes 
to the Council’s aims, but which the Council does not have a 
statutory duty to provide. Awarding grants to the VCS is a key 
opportunity for the Council to reinforce its community leadership 
role.  Small grants to local community groups (a maximum of 
£500.00 per application) can generate a significant amount of 
community activity and positive impact. Percentage of funding 
allocated for this element will be set prior to November by the 
Executive Committee for projects/events commencing after the 1st 
April of the following year. The percentage for this element may 
increase if the funding allocations from the investing element are 
undersubscribed through the Grant application process.  These 
groups will not need to be formally constituted but will need to 
have a recognised role within the community they serve. 
The giving element will consist of 3 rounds of grant making:  

Page 43



 

 4 

• April  
• July  
• November  

with the total percentage of funding allocated to the giving 
element evenly distributed to each round. Head of Community 
Services, in consultation with the Grants Panel, to agree the 
allocation of community grants under the Local Strategic 
Partnership ‘Stronger Communities’ theme. 

 
3.5 This policy applies to grants made to support the Investing and Giving 

elements of the Council’s funding framework.  For the purposes of this 
policy, a grant is a financial contribution to an activity designed and 
delivered by a voluntary and community sector organisation which the 
Council has chosen to support because it is broadly aligned with the 
Council’s own objectives.  A grant can be given either to contribute 
towards organisational costs, or to wholly or partly fund a specific piece 
of work.  A grant is a financial contribution with an expectation of 
mutually agreed, clearly defined outcomes.  These outcomes are 
specified in a grant funding agreement, and monitoring arrangements 
are commensurate with the value of grant given. 

 
3.6 The giving element is regarded as sums of up to and including 

£500.00 and the investing element is regarded as sums valued at 
over £500.00.  These limits will affect risk considerations (section 
7), grant assessment criteria (section 9) and monitoring 
requirements (section 11). 

4.       Purpose of Grant Funding 
 
4.1 The Council provides grants to assist the development of a vibrant 

voluntary and community sector that delivers projects and activities of 
value to the local community. 

 
4.2 Funding will only be provided where it can be demonstrated that a 

defined impact will be made.  Organisations should demonstrate an 
outcomes focus in applications for funding. 

 
4.3 The Council will require that all grant awards support Council 

objectives.  The specific objectives to be supported will be made clear 
in all publicity relating to each grant opportunity.  Demonstrating 
support of Council objectives may include: 

 
a)  linking grant awards to an approved list of Council priorities, 

the current priorities are Enterprising Communities, Safe, 
Clean and Green.  With the option of including LSP or other 
priorities as identified by Redditch Borough Council 

 
b)  the Council choosing one or more specific outcomes in advance 

that will be achieved with the grant award.  This will be particularly 

Page 44



 

 5 

appropriate for individual departments wishing to make grants 
available to support the delivery of a particular service aim. 

 
 
 

5. Which Organisations are eligible to apply for a Grant? 
 
5.1 In order to be eligible to apply for a grant, an organisation must be able 

to prove that: 
 

a) it is voluntarily run, non-profit making and operated with no undue 
restrictions or limitations on membership; 
 

b) it has a democratic structure and can demonstrate effective 
management of the organisation’s business; 

 

c) it has a bank account that requires the authorisation of at least two 
people who are unrelated to each other to make payments or 
withdrawals of any kind from the account; 

 

d) it operates in the Borough of Redditch on behalf of Borough 
residents; 

 

e) it can demonstrate the need for financial assistance.  An 
organisation will not normally be eligible for grant assistance if it 
holds reserves in excess of six months’ average expenditure, 
unless the Council is satisfied that this position is justified by the 
organisation’s reserves policy.  Reserves are defined as those 
assets in the unrestricted funds of an organisation that can be 
made available for all or any of the organisation’s purposes, once 
known commitments and planned expenditure have been provided 
for; 

 

f) it can demonstrate the service it is providing by giving details of its 
activities and the number of people it is in contact with; 

 

g) it meets all applicable legal requirements; 
 

h) it actively promotes equality issues within its structure and 
operations; 

 i) all previous grants received from Redditch Borough Council have 
been spent in accordance with the grant award conditions attached 
to them. 

 
5.2 The Council will not make grants to any organisation that it deems to 

be a political party, has the nature of a political party, or is engaged in 
campaigning for a political purpose or cause. 

5.3 The Council will not provide funds for the furtherance or propagation of 
a faith promoted by any organisation which is, or is deemed by the 
Council to be, of a religious nature.  This will not preclude religious 
organisations applying for assistance to provide social or welfare work 
connected with their organisation and which do not directly promote a 
religious aspect. 

Page 45



 

 6 

6. What will and will not be funded by a grant 
 

6.1 Grant aid will only be considered for work that will be undertaken in the 
Borough of Redditch, and/or will be wholly or principally for the direct 
benefit of residents of the Borough of Redditch. 

 
6.2 Grants cannot be used for retrospective funding; that is to replace 

money that has already been spent, or to cover items or services that 
have already been bought, this will include consultancy and 
brokering fees. 

 
6.3 Any grant awarded must only be spent for the approved purpose, i.e. 

applicants must be able to demonstrate that the funding has been 
spent as outlined in the grant application form as amended by the final 
grant offer letter for example by providing receipts. 

 
6.4 Full cost recovery will not be considered for any grant awarded for 

projects under £5,000. 

7. Risk considerations in grant giving 
 
7.1 The Council has a duty to ensure that best use is made of its 

resources.  This section considers risk in grant giving related to failure 
to achieve best use of Council resources.  It does not consider risk 
assessment of, for example, items related to health and safety, which 
should form part of the grant assessment criteria as outlined in 
paragraph 9.6. 

 
7.2 The Council acknowledges that the creativity and innovation of the 

voluntary sector can carry risks for non-delivery, for example where a 
new idea does not work out as intended. 

 
7.3 The Council uses the general principle of requiring a lower level of risk 

the higher the amount of funding provided.  Maximum levels of funding 
will only be provided where the risk of non-delivery is very low.  
 

7.4 In order to achieve an appropriate balance between managing risk and 
supporting innovative ideas or new organisations, a grant limit of 
£5,000 will apply to: 

 
a) organisations that have been in existence for less than one 

year; 
b) organisations that do not have audited accounts; 
c) organisations that are not registered with either the Charity 

Commission or Companies House, or other appropriate 
government regulator; 

d) innovative pieces of work testing a new approach to service 
delivery. 

 

Page 46



 

 7 

7.5 Assessment of all voluntary and community sector grants made by the 
Council will look more favourably on applications that: 

 
a) have a strong evidence base of need; 
b) provide strong evidence that the proposed approach is likely 

to achieve the desired outcomes; 
c) do not contain high revenue costs that cannot be sustained; 
d) demonstrate how a lasting benefit will be achieved. 

 
7.6 The higher the sum of money applied for, the greater the need for 

applications to: 
 

a) be from organisations with a good track record of delivery; 
b) be from organisations with a range of funding streams; 
c) meet wider aims and objectives of the Council; 
d) support delivery of Redditch Sustainable Community 

Strategy or other appropriate document; 
e) demonstrate co-operative working relationships with other 

organisations. 
 
7.7 Payment schedules will balance the need for the Council to ensure 

proper accountability for use of public money with appropriate 
recognition of cash-flow issues that may be experienced by voluntary 
and community sector organisations.  The general principle will be that 
payment is made in advance of project delivery, with instalment 
frequency and size commensurate with the overall size of the grant 
awarded.  General guidelines for payment schedules are: 

 
a) Grants of a total of £5,000 or less will be paid in full in 

advance of the project being delivered, payment will be 
made to successful applicants within 1 month of the 
submission deadline date, with monitoring information 
required following the project; 

b) Grants of between £5,000 and £10,000 will be paid in two 
instalments of 50% each.  The first instalment will be paid in 
advance of the project being delivered.  The second 
instalment will be paid after satisfactory monitoring 
information has been supplied on the progress of the project.  
For projects lasting one year, the second instalment will 
usually be due to be paid six months after the start of the 
project. 

c) Grants in excess of £10,000 will be paid by quarterly 
instalments in advance of project activity.  Each instalment 
will only be released after satisfactory monitoring information 
has been supplied on progress of the project. 

8. Grant Conditions 
 
8.1 Information on the conditions that will apply to a grant will be made 

available to applicants before they apply. 

Page 47



 

 8 

 
8.2 Monitoring information will be required on all grants, as outlined in 

section 11. 
 
8.3 All grant offers will be subject to the grant recipient accepting the grant 

conditions.  A full set of grant conditions and monitoring requirements 
will be agreed with grant recipients before the final grant award is 
made.  No changes will be made after this time. 

9. Assessment Process 
 
9.1 Themes and the percentage of funding allocated for the ‘Investing’ and 

‘Giving’ elements will be set prior to November by the executive 
Committee for projects commencing after the 1st April of the following 
year.  

 
9.2 All opportunities for Voluntary and Community Sector grant funding 

from Redditch Borough Council will be openly advertised using a 
minimum of: 

 
• Notice of the opportunity on the ‘Voluntary Sector Support’ section 

of the Redditch Borough Council website; 
• Notice of the opportunity circulated among an appropriate network 

or infrastructure organisation. 
 
9.3 In addition to the minimum requirements outlined in paragraph 9.1, 

other advertising may be undertaken to promote grant opportunities as 
openly as possible. 
 

9.4 Information provided to grant applicants will include as a minimum: 
 

• The amount of money that is available in total; 
• The minimum and maximum amount of money that is available to 

each applicant; 
• Clear information on the purposes for which funding is offered; 
• Clear information on eligibility criteria; 
• Details of the full assessment criteria against which applications 

will be judged; 
• A full list of conditions that will apply to the grant, including 

payment schedules and required monitoring information; 
• The deadline by which applications must be submitted; 
• The date by which applicants will be informed of the outcome of 

their application. 
 

Grant application forms will be made available in paper and electronic 
formats. 
 

 

Page 48



 

 9 

9.5 Applicants must complete a Standard Application form and provide 
relevant supporting documents.  This is to ensure objective 
assessment of all grant applications.  The Council will not award any 
grant to an organisation whose application has not been formally 
assessed. 
 
 

9.6 All grant applications will be assessed using pre-selected assessment 
criteria.  The details of the assessment criteria will be made available to 
all applicants before they apply for funding.  The assessment criteria 
will be chosen as relevant for the funding opportunity, but as a 
minimum will include: 

 
• Clear outline of how the purposes for which the grant is made 

available will be met; 
• The outcome(s) that the proposal will achieve; 
• The structure and delivery plan that will support the achievement 

of the stated outcomes; 
• The clarity of the proposal’s financial outline; 
• The organisation’s ability to successfully manage finance, 

evidenced by submission of accounts, bank statements and cash 
flow forecasts as appropriate; 

• The approach to health and safety, duty of care, and other 
appropriate best practice requirements, and the organisation’s 
ability to successfully manage these on the project; 

• The sustainability of work after the period of grant aid. 
 
9.7 All assessment criteria will be based on meeting need within the 

community.  There will be no pre-determined demographic allocation of 
funds.  Some funding opportunities may be restricted to a particular 
delivery area, e.g. to a specific ward, but only where this is to address a 
specific identified need. 

 
9.8 Full cost recovery is the process of sharing an organisation’s core costs 

proportionately between its projects and areas of work.  The Council 
supports the principle of full cost recovery for all grants over £5,000.  
However, applicants must provide clear explanations and justification 
for all calculations related to full cost recovery, which will be judged on 
a case by case basis. 

 
9.9 All grant applications will be assessed by the Council’s Grants Panel.  

The Grants Panel will consist of a minimum of five elected Members, 
with a minimum of three Members required to make decisions 
regarding grant awards.  Conflicts of interest will be recorded, and 
members with a conflict of interest for a particular grant round will not 
participate in the assessment of any application in that grant round. 

 
9.10 The Grants Panel will receive appropriate training in grant assessment, 

and will be supported by at least one officer with appropriate 

Page 49



 

 10

knowledge and expertise in the area for which the grant is being 
offered. 

 
9.11 The Grants Panel will report its recommended decisions on grant 

applications to the Council’s Executive Committee for approval. 
 
9.12 Unsuccessful applicants will be offered feedback on the strengths and 

weaknesses of their application. 
 
 

9.13 Appeals against the process used to award a grant will be dealt with 
using Redditch Borough Council’s complaints procedure.  The Head of 
Community Services will handle the initial complaint.  There is no 
right of appeal as to the decision itself. 

10. Assessment Timescales 
 
10.1 Other opportunities may be made available to apply for grants, for 

example from individual Council services seeking to deliver a specific 
objective.  In all cases, there will be a minimum of three weeks from 
announcement of the grants opportunity to the closing date for 
applications, and a maximum of 12 weeks from the closing date for 
applications to applicants receiving notification of the outcome. The 
length of the bidding process will be proportionate to the type and value 
of the grant.  

 
10.2  For the 2012/13 grants round Officers will ensure that the Grants 

process begins in August 2011. Advertising from September 2011 
and approval by December 2011 for projects commencing 1st 
April of the following year – allowing successful applicants to 
place the project into their delivery calendar and to apply for 
match funding grants and giving unsuccessful applicants 
feedback and enough time to secure funding from alternative 
channels. 

11. Monitoring 
 
11.1 All grant funded projects will be regularly monitored with applicants 

obliged to submit details of how the project is progressing.  Monitoring 
requirements that will apply to a grant will be commensurate with the 
amount of money awarded, and will be agreed with the funded 
organisation before final confirmation of a grant award is made. 

 
11.2 All Grant panel members will be offered a training support 

package to ensure they are up to date with current trends and 
policies within the grant giving arena that affect the VCS.    

  
11.2 All grant recipients will be required to attend Quarterly monitoring 

workshops.  These will be delivered to gauge the outcomes and 

Page 50



 

 11

effectiveness of the funding is consistent with the Funding 
application. 

 
11.3 A quarterly breakdown of the funding expenditure is submitted to 

the Grants team for review. 
 
11.4 Receipts and other monitoring information must be submitted to the 

Council as proof of spend within six months of the grant being received 
by the organisation (till slips, credit card vouchers, photocopied or 
altered receipts will not be accepted).  

 
11.5  The Council reserve the right to withhold future payments and reject 

any further applications if they are dissatisfied with how grants funds 
have been used. 

12.    Collaborative Working 
 
12.1 The Council recognises the potential benefits of working collaboratively 

with other funders. The Council will investigate all opportunities for 
working with other funders where this will provide a better use of 
Council resources. 

 
12.2 Working with Economic Development the Grants Officer will work 

with the Local VCS to highlight and advertise all tendering and 
procurement opportunities available to the Sector. 

 
12.3 The Grants Officer will engage with the VCS to initiate partnership 

working with the Sector itself. 
 
12.4 To enable the collaborative working to take place with both 

external funders and our local VCS organisations/groups, it will be 
agreed on a year on year basis for a fund of £2000.00 to be 
allocated from the grants fund for the Grants team to enable 
delivery of: 
• Workshops, Networking and promotional events 
• Advertising and communication support 
• Newsletters: and 
• Support packages 

 

Page 51



Page 52



 REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL Appendix 2 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010  

 
 

  

55% allocated to Enterprising Communities -  
Total: 130k for the Delivery of Projects under the ‘Enterprising 
Communities’ Banner. 
 

90k – Investing Grant 

To deliver:  
Financial and Debt advice 

within the Town 
 

q With a commitment to 
help people resolve their 
legal, money and other 
problems by providing: 

q Free, independent and 
confidential advice. 

 

40k - Investing grants - 
Maximum grant of 10k for 
each project submitted 

 
 

To deliver: projects under 
the Enterprising 

Communities theme: 

q Providing supported 
employment, work 
experience and training 
to people disadvantaged 
by learning difficulties or 
other special needs.  

q Information and advice 
services for Elderly 
residents.  

q Projects to promote 
savings schemes within 
local schools and for 
people on lower incomes.   

q Promoting equality of 
opportunities for people 
from black, Asian or any 
other ethnic minority 
group. 

 
Sub Theme - 25% allocated to Education & Learning Development -  
Total: £60k for the delivery of projects under the ‘Education’ Banner. 
 

50k Investing grant 

To deliver: 
Childcare and Holiday 
schemes into the Town 

 

q Discounted childcare for 
local children with 
specific criteria for 
discounted places to be 
allocated to ensure the 
full benefit is gained from 
those families who have 
the highest need. 

q Discounted Holiday play 
schemes for local 
children that have 
outcomes linked into 
education and health and 
well being priorities. 

 

Page 53



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

Exec101202/Grants/dh/sms redraft/27.10.10 2 

10k Investing Grants - 
Maximum grant of 2k for 
each project submitted 

 

For delivery of projects that 
support: Young people’s 
participation in positive 
activities within Redditch 

q Education activities on 
Arts, culture and diversity 

q Working with disabled 
children 

q Raising awareness with 
13 to 18 yrs on 
volunteering opportunities 
and working with the 
community 

 
Sub theme - 8% allocated to ‘Safe/Clean & Green’ -  
Total: 20k for the delivery of projects under the ‘Safe / Clean & Green’ Banner. 
 

20k Investing Grants 
Maximum bids for each 
project submitted of 5k 

 
 

For delivery of projects that 
support the Council’s Safe / 
Clean & Green priorities. 

q Support for victims of 
Domestic violence with a 
focus on younger people 
and the BME 

q Reducing environment 
crime 

q Re-offending with a focus 
on getting women ex 
offenders into work 
Respect and 
responsibility activities 
with young people. 

 
Sub theme - 8% allocated to ‘Health and Well being’ -  
Total: 20k allocated for the delivery of projects under the Health & Well being 
Banner – This can be linked to the LSP priorities. 
 

20k Investing Grants 
Maximum bids for each 
project submitted of 4k 

 

For delivery of projects that 
support the Council’s Health 
& Well being priorities. 

q With focus on 
Adult/Childhood Obesity . 

q Increase in Adult 
participation in Sport. 

q Reducing under 18 
conception rate. 

q Heath awareness 
initiatives within the older 
community.   

q Arts, cultural and 
reminiscence activities for 
the older community.  
Working with the younger 
generation to raise 
awareness of history and 
culture. 

q Projects that support 
Veterans to readjust 
within the community. 

 

Page 54



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

Exec101202/Grants/dh/sms redraft/27.10.10 3 

 
Stronger Communities - Community Grant Fund – Total £9k -  
For the delivery of grassroots community projects/events 
 

 
£9k Giving Grants 

Maximum bid of £500.00 
per project submitted in 

each round 
 

For delivery of projects that 
that have a clearly identified 
need within the community 
working in partnership with 
Community groups Redditch 
Borough Council can support 
this grassroots sector  - these 
groups will not need to be 
formally constituted but will 
be required to have a 

recognised role within the 
community they represent 

  

q £9,000 for community 
projects 

q Three Rounds at £3000 
per round for community 
grants in 2011/12 

q Community groups 
invited to bid for up to 
£500 for delivery of 
community projects at 
each round. 

q Authority to approve 
projects that are within 
the criteria set by the 
Council. 

 
 
 

Page 55



Page 56



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QUARTERLYBUDGETMONITORINGAPRILSEPTEMBER
QUARTERReport0.DOC/12.11.10sc 

QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING - APRIL TO SEPTEMBER QUARTER 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Michael Braley, Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance and 

Resources 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

The report provides the Executive Committee with an overview of the 
budget including the achievement of approved savings as at the end of the 
second quarter of 2010/11. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
 subject to any comment, the report be noted. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
 The Council set its base budget for 2010/11 on the 22nd February 2010.  

This included budget savings which were approved on 6th April 2009, the 
detailed savings for 2010/11 are included in Appendix 1.  In addition to this 
there is a sum of £200k built into the base budget for vacancy/outturn 
savings. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 Appendices 2 and 3 detail the projected outturn variances as at the end of 

the first quarter.  The budget for 2010/11 includes £350k for vacancy / 
outturn savings.   

 
4.2 The savings detailed within Appendices 2 and 3 may fluctuate during the 

year particularly where they relate to vacant posts.  Any movements on 
these will be reflected in future monitoring reports. 

 
4.3 The projected variances for General Fund at the end of the second quarter 

are savings of £532.2. 
 
4.4 Appendix 4 details savings achieved at the end of the second quarter 

against the target of £1,153.9k. 

Agenda Item 9Page 57



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QUARTERLYBUDGETMONITORINGAPRILSEPTEMBER
QUARTERReport0.DOC/12.11.10sc 

 
4.5 At the end of September savings of £532.2K have been identified against 

the target of £1,153.9k.  This would indicate that the council is not on target 
to deliver the approved savings although the figure for vacancy/outturn 
savings may fluctuate during the year.  The savings for REDI however will 
start to be realised during the third quarter of the year.  The estimated 
shortfall at the end of 2nd quarter is 89K. 

 
4.6 Any shortfall in savings at the end of the year will need to be met from 

revenue balances.  General Fund balances as at the 1st April 2010 stood at 
£1.504million. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The financial implications are detailed in the report.  The report highlights 
areas of financial performance which are out of line with the approved 
budget.  Budgets will continue to be monitored during the year and reported 
to this committee. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 every local authority 
has a duty to make arrangements for the proper administration of their 
financial affairs. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None Specific – information only. 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 

The report is required to ensure that the authority is managing its budgets 
effectively and to ensure that Members are aware of any unexpected 
expenditure and effects on Council’s balances during the year.  This is part 
of a Well Managed Organisation. 

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 Without adequate budget monitoring procedures, the Council will not 

achieve its objectives.  The Council needs to monitor its financial 
performance in order that corrective action may be taken to minimise risks 
to the organisation. 

Page 58



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QUARTERLYBUDGETMONITORINGAPRILSEPTEMBER
QUARTERReport0.DOC/12.11.10sc 

 
9.2 There is also a risk that the Council will overspend its budget if action is not 

taken to monitor the delivery of planned savings during the year. 
 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None Specific. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

None Specific. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 

None Specific. 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 

None Specific. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 

None Specific. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 

None Specific. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 

None Specific. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 

None Specific. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 

None Specific. 
 
 

Page 59



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QUARTERLYBUDGETMONITORINGAPRILSEPTEMBER
QUARTERReport0.DOC/12.11.10sc 

 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 

None Specific. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

N/A 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All Wards 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 Budget savings approved on 6th April 2009 
 Appendix 2 Quarterly Monitoring Directorate Summary April – 

September 2010 (to follow) 
 Appendix 3 Explanations for projected variances 

Page 60



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QUARTERLYBUDGETMONITORINGAPRILSEPTEMBER
QUARTERReport0.DOC/12.11.10sc 

 Appendix 4 Budget savings – position as at end of second quarter 
2010/11 

23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Council Minutes 6th April 2009 and 22nd February 2010. 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Sam Morgan 
E Mail  sam.morgan@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:      (01527) 64252 extn 3790 
 

Page 61



Page 62



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

Appendix 1 
 

 
 
2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QuarterlyBudgetMonitoringAprilSeptAppendix10.doc/19
.02.10sc. 

Budget Savings approved 6th April 2009 
  

2010/11 
Description £'000 
    

Budget adjusted to reflect saving/additional income -  

Planning  53.2 

Corporate Training 50.0 

Building Control 20.7 

Head of Asset 25.0 

Switchboard 3.0 

Arrow Valley Countryside Centre 24.0 

Pay Award 120.0 

Property Services 10.3 

Licensing Officer 13.3 

Cllrs Personal Budgets 16.5 

INCOME   

Forge Mill 10.0 

Private Sector Lifeline to breakeven 28.4 

Car parking (Town Hall/Trafford Park) 22.0 

Dial- a- Ride 10.0 

Arrow Valley Countryside Centre 10.0 

Subject to ongoing monitoring -  

Pitcheroak Golf Course 56.9 

Shared Services 290.0 

Vacancy Management 125.0 

REDI 160.0 

Printing 52.0 

Procurement 70.0 

Committee Services  14.0 

Benefits Subsidy 100.0 

Community Meeting Rooms 61.0 

Support Service Costs 25.0 

  
    

Total savings/additional income 1,370.3 
 
 

Page 63



Page 64



 

Executive 
Committee 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

2nd December 2010 

  

 
 

 
 

 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

 Q
u
ar
te
rl
y 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 S
u
m
m
ar
y 
A
p
ri
l -
 S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
0 

 

 
A
 

B
 

C
 

D
 

E
  

(C
+D
) 

F
 

(B
 -
 E
) 

 
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 

B
u
d
g
et
 

£ 

P
ro
fi
le
d
 Y
T
D
 

B
u
d
g
et
 

£ 

Y
T
D
 A
ct
u
al
s 

£ 
C
o
m
m
it
m
en
ts
 

£ 

A
ct
u
al
 +
 

C
o
m
m
it
m
en
ts
 

£ 

V
ar
ia
n
ce
 t
o
 

D
at
e 

£ 

P
ro
je
ct
ed
  

O
u
tt
u
rn
 

£ 

P
ro
je
ct
ed
 

V
ar
ia
n
ce
 

£ 
C
hi
ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
14

,4
80

 
31

,2
13

 
(1
19

,6
82

) 
14

9,
91

0 
30

,2
28

 
98

5 
6,
06

0 
(8
,4
20

) 

Le
is
ur
e,
 

C
ul
tu
re
, 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

9,
40

4,
35

0 
5,
16

5,
21

6 
4,
86

1,
65

3 
92

,3
50

 
4,
95

4,
00

3 
21

1,
21

3 
9,
50

2,
58

9 
68

,2
39

  

P
la
nn

in
g,
 

R
eg

en
er
at
io
n,
 

R
eg

ul
at
or
y 

an
d 
H
ou

si
ng

 

2,
31

5,
11

0  
1,
02

6,
89

9 
65

1,
72

0 
5,
00

0 
65

6,
72

0 
37

0,
17

9 
2,
19

4,
12

8 
(1
20

,9
82

) 

F
in
an

ce
 a
nd

 
C
or
po

ra
te
 

R
es

ou
rc
es

 

3,
26

3,
44

0  
1,
01

6,
77

2  
1,
07

4,
54

0 
23

1,
37

9 
1,
30

5,
91

9 
(2
89

,1
47

) 
3,
18

4,
78

7 
(1
28

,6
53

) 

P
ol
ic
y,
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
an

d 
P
ar
tn
er
s 

16
6,
83

0  
88

,8
36

 
(2
14

,1
01

) 
26

0,
69

2 
46

,5
91

 
42

,2
45

 
16

6,
83

0 
0 

U
n-
ap

po
rt
io
ne

d 
O
ve

rh
ea

ds
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
(3
42

,3
84

) 

 
T
o
ta
l:
  

 
15
,1
64
,2
10
 

 
7,
32
8,
93
6 

 
6,
25
4,
13
0  

 
73
9,
33
1 

 
6,
99
3,
46
1 

 
33
5,
47
5 

 
15
,0
54
,3
94
 

 
(5
32
,2
00
) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H
ou

si
ng

 
R
ev

en
ue

 
A
cc

ou
nt
 

14
6,
00

0  
7,
30

0 
12

,4
00

 
0 

12
,4
00

 
5,
10

0 
14

6,
00

0 
(3
0,
00

0)
 

H
R
A
 R

ep
ai
rs
 

4,
08

0,
15

0 
2,
04

0,
05

1 
1,
88

4,
69

9 
0 

1,
88

4,
69

9 
(1
55

,3
52

) 
4,
08

0,
15

0 
30

,0
00

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l:
 

4,
22
6,
15
0 

2,
04
7,
35
1 

1,
89
7,
09
9 

0 
1,
89
7,
09
9 

(1
50
,2
52
) 

4,
22
6,
15
0 

0 
 

Page 65



Page 66



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

Appendix 3 
 

 

2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QuarterleyBudgetMonitoringAprilSeptemberQuarterAppendix30.doc/19.02.10sc./ame
nded 22.11.10 jw 

Budget Monitoring Apr – September 2010 
Explanations for projected outturn variances 
 

Chief Executive Directorate 
 
CE Head of Paid Service 
 
Cost 
Centre 

Description Variance 
£ 

Explanation 

0114 PA & 
Directorate 
Support 

(8,420) Vacant Post 

 
Total Chief 

Executive 
Directorate 

(8,420)  

 
 
Executive Director of Finance & Resource 
 

Head of Finance & Resources 
 

Cost 
Centre 

Description Variance 
£ 

Explanation 

0107 Local 
Taxation 

(20,740) Two Vacant Posts 

0606 Corporate 
Expenses 

(10,209) IFRS Rebate-Audit Commission 

0607 Corporate 
Activities 

15,056 Advert – Shared Services 

0430 M’Ment of 
Investment 
Properties 

12,070 Additional costs relating to Arrow 
Valley Social Club 

0435 Comm 
Related 
Asset 
Property 

(49,900) Additional provision for NNDR void 
properties 

0141 Human 
Resources 

(15,000) Salary savings, review to be 
undertaken January 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

Appendix 3 
 

 

2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QuarterleyBudgetMonitoringAprilSeptemberQuarterAppendix30.doc/19.02.10sc./ame
nded 22.11.10 jw 

 
 Head of Customer Services 
 

0124 Customer 
Service 
Centres 

(9,930) Vacant Post and Maternity Leave 

 
 

Total Finance & 
Resources 

(78,653)  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

Appendix 3 
 

 

2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QuarterleyBudgetMonitoringAprilSeptemberQuarterAppendix30.doc/19.02.10sc./ame
nded 22.11.10 jw 

Executive Director of Planning & Regeneration, Regulatory & Housing 
Services 
 
 
 Head of Housing & Community 
 

Cost 
Centre 

Description Variance 
£ 

Explanation 

    
0189 Hsg Capital (24,355) Vacant post 
0482 St Davids Hse 

Canteen 
6,295 Social Services reduced funding 

 
 
 
 Head of Planning & Regeneration 
  

Cost 
Centre 

Description Variance 
£ 

Explanation 

0432 Business 
Centres 

(39,270) Additional provision for NNDR void 
properties  

0142 Planning 
Services 

(33,652) Vacant posts 

0751 
 

Planning 
Applications 

(30,000) Additional receipts in first half of 
year 

 
Total Planning & 

Ren., 
Regulatory & 
Housing 

(120,982)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Director of Leisure, Environment & Community Services 
 

Head of Community Services  
 

Cost 
Centre 

Description Variance 
£ 

Explanation 

0705 Shopmobility 15,000 Town Centre Management have 
reduced grant to RBC & charged for 
electricity 

0780 
 

ASB (3,818) Salary saving vacant post 
80% HRA 

 

Page 69



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

Appendix 3 
 

 

2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QuarterleyBudgetMonitoringAprilSeptemberQuarterAppendix30.doc/19.02.10sc./ame
nded 22.11.10 jw 

 
Head of Environmental Services 

 
Cost 
Centre 

Description Variance 
£ 

Explanation 
 

0151 L’Scape & 
Cntryside/Waste 
Management 

(17,495) Staff vacancy 

0143 Environmental 
Service 
Management 

(19,769) Staff vacancies (now being 
covered by agency/fixed term 
staff) 

0717 Garden Waste 
Collection 

(10,322) Pilot scheme introduced in April – 
income received 

0472 Pay & Display 
Car parks 

19,000 Service not achieving budget 
income 

 
 
 

Head of Leisure and Cultural Services 
 

Cost 
Centre 

Description Variance 
£ 

Explanation 
 

0052 Free Swimming 23,143 Net effect of loss of grant and 
saving of pool hire 

0005 Hewell Rd 
Swimming Pool 

11,250 Loss of income due to free 
swimming pool hire 

0025 Kingsley School 
Swimming Pool 

11,250 Loss of income due to free 
swimming pool hire 

 
  

Total Leisure, 
Environment 
& Community 

28,239  

 
 
 
 

Housing Revenue Account 
 

Cost 
Centre 

Description Variance 
£ 

Explanation 
 

 Housing 
Repairs 

30,000 Increased boiler repairs and 
electrical contracts 

 Item 8 (30,000) Reduced interest rates on Item 8 
 
  

Total Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

(0)  

Page 70



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

Appendix 3 
 

 

2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QuarterleyBudgetMonitoringAprilSeptemberQuarterAppendix30.doc/19.02.10sc./ame
nded 22.11.10 jw 

 
Summary -  
 

Total variances £ 
General Fund (158,706) 
Housing Revenue 
Account 

(21,110) 

Total (179,816) 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 71



Page 72



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

Appendix 4 
 

 

8th September 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\3\AI00004393\Item9QuarterleyBudgtMonitoringAprilseptAppendix40.doc/19.02.10/sc. 

 
 
 
APPENDIX 4 
 

Position as at end of Second Quarter  
    

 Target 

Actual for 
2nd 

Quarter  
 2010/11 2010/11 Comments  

 £'000 £’000 
 
 

 
Pitcheroak Golf 
Course 

 
 

56.9 13.5 
Will not achieve income this year –expected to 
underachieve by 30K 

 
Shared Services 290.0 210.0 Identified from shared management structure 
 
Vacancy 
Management/Outturn 
savings* 325.0 158.7 Monitoring in place 

 
REDI 160.0 0.0 

This is likely to achieve just 30K this financial 
year no savings at present due to redundancy 
costs 

 
Printing 52.0 - 

Unlikely to be achieved/contract negotiations 
currently in place 

 
Procurement 70.0 70.0 On track to be achieved 
 
Committee Services  14.0  - Not likely to be achieved.   
 
Benefits Subsidy 100.0  50.0 On target to be achieved 
 
Community Meeting 
Rooms 61.0 30.0 

 
Will achieve this financial year 

 
Support Service 
Costs 25.0  - Added to vacancy savings 
    
*including £200k 
already built into base 
budget    
    
Total 1,153.9 532.2  

 
 
 

Page 73



Page 74



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\3\AI00004392\Item10DraftQ21011CPReportExec021210v2final3.docsw 

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT 
QUARTER 2, 2010/11 – PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 2010 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Michael Braley, Redditch Portfolio 
holder for Corporate Management 

Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Director of Policy, 
Performance and Partnerships 

Non-Key Decision  

 
1.   SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

This report provides Members with an opportunity to review the Council’s 
performance for quarter 2 of the 2010/11 financial year and to comment upon 
it. 

  
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 

subject to any comments, the update on key performance indicators for 
the period ending September 2010 be noted. 

 
3.  BACKGROUND 
 
3.1  The National Indicator (NI) set was introduced with effect from 1st April 2008 

and became the only indicators that public authorities are required to report 
on to central Government.  Figures collected for 2008/09 formed the baseline 
for future reporting.  27 national indicators are included in the Local Area 
Agreement (LAA) for Worcestershire of which 12 are district indicators. 

 
3.2 The LAA is to be abolished and NI set reduced.  We will review the indicator 

set as part of the production of the Council Plan 2011/12, however the 
situation may remain fluid for a while. 

 
3.3  To maintain data quality, the Council uses an electronic data collection (EDC) 

spread sheet.  This shows our current and historic performance against 
selected national indicators and local performance indicators. 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 75



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\3\AI00004392\Item10DraftQ21011CPReportExec021210v2final3.docsw 

 
 
4.  KEY ISSUES 
 
  Basis of Quarterly Reporting 
 
4.1  In moving the agenda forward, the Council looked to address the following: 
 

a) Retaining a tighter focus at a corporate level – with a clearly defined 
number of indicators reported and monitored. 

 
b) Developing capacity for Directorates to strengthen performance 

management by focusing on service plan commitments. 
 
c) Continuing to monitor selected National Indicators and retained Best 

Value Performance Indicators (BVPI’s) and local indicators at a Member 
level at least annually. 

 
d) The development of links to how the Council is performing in its key 

delivery projects. 
 

4.2 Member involvement in monitoring performance will continue during the 
2010/11 reporting year with quarterly performance updates. 

 
 Corporate Performance Report 
 
4.3 The corporate performance report compares the year to date outturn with the 

same period last year and shows those indicators which are included in the 
Council Plan and whether they have improved, declined and remained static 
in performance. 

 
4.4 In total, data has been provided for 34 indicators for quarter 2.  Of these, 20 

have improved in performance and 13 have declined compared to the same 
quarter last year.  In addition there is 1 indicator which has remained static, 
but this indicator is currently at optimum performance and as such no 
improvement is possible. 

 
4.5 This report shows that of the 34 indicators reported this quarter, 58.8% have 

improved when compared to the same period last year.  By way of example: 

• NI 195(a) – the levels of litter in the borough have also reduced  when 
compared to the same period last year, down from 9% to 3%; 

 

Page 76



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\3\AI00004392\Item10DraftQ21011CPReportExec021210v2final3.docsw 

 

• NI 181 – the time taken to process Housing Benefit / Council Tax Benefit 
new claims and change events has demonstrated a positive direction of 
travel as the length of time to process the claims has reduced by 4.98 
days compared to the same period last year;   

• NI 016 – serious acquisitive crime rate has fallen when compared to the 
same period last year, reducing by 74 offences; 

• NI 155 – number of affordable homes delivered (gross) has improved with 
58 properties being delivered for the period compared to 39 properties for 
2009/10; 

• EC 005 – there has been an increase of 17588 visitors to Hewell Road 
and Abbey Stadium when compared to the same period last year; 

• EC 008 – number of visitors to the Museum and Bordesley Abbey Visitor 
Centre has increased by 5,669 compared to the same period last year; 

• EC 015 - number of visitors to the Arrow Valley Countryside Centre has 
increased its visitor numbers by 30011 when compared to the same 
period last year 

• BV 212 – when compared to the same period last year, the average length 
of time taken to re-let local authority housing has reduced from 28.32 days 
to 18.99 days. 

 
4.6 There are also indicators which are highlighted as areas for concern: 

• NI 015 – serious violent crime rate has increased by 14 offences, an 
equivalent of 70%, when compared to the same period last year; 

• NI 195(b) – the levels of detritus have increased when compared to the 
same period last year, rising from 27% to 34%; 

• BV 012 – the number of working days / shifts lost to the Local Authority 
due to sickness absence per full time equivalent staff member has 
increased from 3.88 days to 4.91 days when compared to the same period 
last year; 

• WM 017 – the number of people using the Shopmobility service has fallen 
by 1,410 when compared to the same period last year. 

 

Page 77



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\3\AI00004392\Item10DraftQ21011CPReportExec021210v2final3.docsw 

5.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Poor financial performance will be detrimental to any Council assessment 
and overall performance.  Specific financial indicators included in the 2010/11 
set are listed below: 

• NI 181 – time taken to process housing benefit / council tax benefit new 
claims and change events;  

• BV 008 – percentage of invoices for commercial goods and services that 
were paid by the Council within 30 days of receipt or within the agreed 
payment terms;  

• BV 79b (i) – the amount of Housing Benefit overpayments recovered as a 
percentage of all HB overpayments. 

 
6.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, a 
set of 198 new National Indicators was introduced to replace the previous 
Best Value Performance Indicators.  These cover all public authorities, but 
are not all applicable to Redditch Borough Council.  The Government have 
announced that the NI set is to be reduced and these changes will be 
reviewed as part of the production of the Council Plan 2011/12. 

 
7.  POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Council’s current Council Plan makes a clear commitment to improve the 
way in which priority actions are planned and to improve the way in which 
performance is managed.  Appendix 1 reports on the 2010/11 performance 
indicators contained within the Council Plan. 

 
8.  COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 

The performance data contained in the attached report relates directly to all 
the Council’s priorities and objectives. 

 
9.  RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Assessing the Council’s performance forms part of the Council’s approach to 
risk management. 

 
 

Page 78



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\3\AI00004392\Item10DraftQ21011CPReportExec021210v2final3.docsw 

10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1  Information contained in the attached appendix will be communicated to both 

internal and external customers via the intranet/Internet following resolution at 
committee. 

 
10.2  Additional customer service performance indicators have been added for 

2010/11: 

• WMO 011 – Percentage of calls resolved at first point of contact; 

• WMO 012 – Percentage of calls answered (switchboard and contact 
centre); 

• WMO 013 – Average speed of answer (seconds); 

• WMO 014 – Number of complaints received; 

• WMO 015 – Number of compliments received. 
 
  Performance for these indicators can be found in Appendix 1  
 
10.3  Enhanced performance will assist to improve customer service. 
 
11.  EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are two performance indicators included in the 2010/11 corporate set 
which relate to equality and diversity.  These indicators are both performing 
well with the number of racial incidents recorded (BV 174) improving and the 
percentage of recorded incidents resulting in further action (BV 175) 
remaining at 100%.  

 
12.  VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 

Performance indicators would form part of any assessment of a service’s 
value for money along with financial information and customer feedback. 

 
13.  CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 

There are a total of 4 performance indicators that relate to air quality and 
climate change within the list of National Indicators all of which are included in 
the corporate set.  These indicators are all reported annually. 

 
• NI 185 – Percentage reduction in CO2 from Local Authority operations; 

Page 79



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\3\AI00004392\Item10DraftQ21011CPReportExec021210v2final3.docsw 

• NI 186 – Per capita reduction in CO2 emissions in the local authority area; 

• NI 188 – Planning to adapt to climate change and, 

• NI 194 – Air quality – percentage reduction in NOx and primary PM10 
emissions through local authority’s estate and operations. 

 
14.  HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  

The performance indicator set includes BV 012 which reports on the number 
of working days / shifts lost to the local authority due to sickness absence per 
full time equivalent staff member.  Quarter 2, 2010/11 shows an increase in 
the amount of time lost due to sickness absence compared to the same 
period last year. 

 
15.  GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  

Performance management implications are detailed within this report at 
Appendix 1. 

 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  

There are a number of performance indicators relating to community safety in 
the 2010/11 corporate indicator set. 

• NI 15 – Serious violent crime rate;  

• NI 16 – Serious acquisitive crime rate; 

• NI 17 – Perceptions of anti-social behaviour and  

• NI 21 – Dealing with local concerns about anti-social behaviour and crime 
issues by the local council and police;  

• NI 27 – Understanding of local concerns about anti-social behaviour and 
crime issues by the local council and police and,  

• NI 41 – Perceptions of drunk or rowdy behaviour as a problem 

• CS 002 – Total British Crime Survey crimes.   
 
 Performance for these indicators can be seen in Appendix 1. 
 
17.  HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  

None specific. 

Page 80



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\3\AI00004392\Item10DraftQ21011CPReportExec021210v2final3.docsw 

 
18.  LESSONS LEARNT 
 

Any lessons learnt in the course of carrying out performance management of 
the Council are communicated to the organisation via the Performance 
Management Group. 
 

19.  COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 

The performance indicators are based on the corporate priorities upon which 
the public are consulted.  

 
20.  OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All wards 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
  Appendix 1 Quarter 2, 2010/11 Corporate Performance Report. 
 
 
 
 

Portfolio Holder YES at Portfolio 
Holders Briefing 

Chief Executive YES at CMT 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) YES at CMT 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services YES at CMT 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  YES at CMT 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships YES 

Head of Service N/A 

Head of Resources  YES at CMT 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services YES at CMT 

Corporate Procurement Team NO 

Page 81



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\9\3\AI00004392\Item10DraftQ21011CPReportExec021210v2final3.docsw 

 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 The details to support the information provided within this report are held by 

the Policy Team. 
 
 AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
 Name:   Tracy Beech, Policy Officer  
 E Mail:  tracy.beech@redditchbc.gov.uk 
 Tel:       (01527) 64252 ext 3182 

Page 82



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

Q
u

ar
te

r 
2,

 2
01

0/
11

 -
 P

er
io

d
 E

n
d

in
g

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

0

5
%

24
%

0
%

0
%

5
%

34
%

T
ot

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 s

ho
w

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r
�

4
80

.0
%

14
58

.3
%

2
40

.0
%

20
58

.8
%

T
ot

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 s

ho
w

in
g 

a 
de

cl
in

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r

�
1

20
.0

%
9

37
.5

%
3

60
.0

%
13

38
.2

%

T
ot

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 s

ho
w

in
g 

no
 c

ha
ng

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r*
*

�
0

0.
0%

1
4.

2%
0

0.
0%

1
2.

9%

K
ey

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

fo
r 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
2

A
dd

iti
on

al
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n

In
 q

ua
rt

er
 1

 a
 n

ew
 c

ol
um

n 
w

as
 a

dd
ed

 to
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t s
ho

w
in

g 
th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 d

at
a 

w
he

re
 it

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

  T
he

se
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
fig

ur
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ol
la

te
d 

by
 

ta
ki

ng
 th

e 
be

st
 o

ut
tu

rn
 fr

om
 a

 li
st

 o
f o

ur
 'n

ea
re

st
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

s'
.  

T
he

 n
ea

re
st

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
 li

st
 is

 p
ut

 to
ge

th
er

 b
y 

C
IP

F
A

 (
C

ha
rt

er
ed

 In
st

itu
te

 o
f P

ub
lic

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

cy
) 

an
d 

co
nt

ai
ns

 a
 li

st
 o

f a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

os
t c

lo
se

ly
 m

at
ch

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
of

 R
ed

di
tc

h.
  T

he
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
fo

r 
B

V
 0

08
 (

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f i
nv

oi
ce

s 
pa

id
) 

an
d 

B
V

 0
12

 (
si

ck
ne

ss
 

ab
se

nc
e)

 is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
na

tio
na

lly
, t

he
re

fo
re

 w
e 

ha
ve

 ta
ke

n 
th

e 
be

st
 o

ut
tu

rn
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 a
s 

a 
be

nc
hm

ar
k 

fo
r 

th
es

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

.

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 s
ho

w
s 

th
at

 o
f t

he
 3

4 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 r
ep

or
te

d 
th

is
 q

ua
rt

er
, 5

8.
8%

 h
av

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r.
  B

y 
w

ay
 o

f e
xa

m
pl

e,
 th

e 
tim

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 

pr
oc

es
s 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

/ C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 B
en

ef
it 

ne
w

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
 e

ve
nt

s 
(N

I 1
81

) 
ha

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

of
 tr

av
el

 a
s 

th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f t
im

e 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
s 

ha
s 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 n

ea
rly

 5
 d

ay
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r.
  L

ik
ew

is
e,

 s
er

io
us

 a
cq

ui
si

tiv
e 

cr
im

e 
ra

te
 (

N
I 1

6)
 h

as
 fa

lle
n 

by
 2

9%
 w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r 
an

d 
th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f l

itt
er

 fo
un

d 
(N

I 1
95

a)
 h

as
 fa

lle
n 

fr
om

 9
%

 to
 3

%
 s

ho
w

in
g 

a 
hi

gh
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 s

tr
ee

t c
le

an
lin

es
s.

H
ow

ev
er

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 a

s 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

co
nc

er
n;

 B
V

 0
12

, t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

/ s
hi

fts
 lo

st
 to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
du

e 
to

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
ab

se
nc

e 
pe

r 
fu

ll 
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 s
ta

ff 
m

em
be

r 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

ca
us

e 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

 a
s 

th
is

 h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 3

.8
8 

da
ys

 to
 4

.9
1 

da
ys

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 
ye

ar
.  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, l

ev
el

s 
of

 fl
y-

tip
pi

ng
 h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
(N

I 1
96

) 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 th
e 

le
ve

l i
nc

re
as

in
g 

fr
om

 1
 to

 3
 (

w
he

re
 1

 is
 g

oo
d 

an
d 

4 
is

 p
oo

r)
.

T
ot

al
nu

m
be

r
of

co
rp

or
at

e
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
in

di
ca

to
rs

pr
ov

id
in

g
ou

ttu
rn

da
ta

fo
r 

qu
ar

te
r 

2

N
O

 
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

S
 

E
X

P
E

C
T

E
D

 
T

H
IS

 
Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

N
O

 
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

S
 

E
X

P
E

C
T

E
D

 
T

H
IS

 
Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

**
T

he
 in

di
ca

to
r 

sh
ow

in
g 

no
 c

ha
ng

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

t o
pt

im
um

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 a
s 

su
ch

, n
o 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

s 
po

ss
ib

le

T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pa

ge
s 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
re

po
rt

 fo
r 

al
l c

or
po

ra
te

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

P
la

n,
 fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 d
at

a 
w

as
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 q

ua
rt

er
 

2 
(J

ul
y 

- 
S

ep
te

m
be

r)
 2

01
0/

11
; t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

la
te

s 
to

 a
 y

ea
r 

to
 d

at
e 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 w

he
re

 d
at

a 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
bo

th
 p

er
io

ds
.

F
in

an
ce

 &
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

(F
R

)

Le
is

ur
e,

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

&
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

   
(L

E
C

)

A
re

as
 o

f 
H

ig
he

st
 N

ee
d 

(A
O

H
N

)

P
ol

ic
y,

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

&
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

(P
P

P
)

P
la

nn
in

g,
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n,
 

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

&
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
rv

s 
(P

R
R

H
)

T
ot

al

1

Page 83



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

Q
u

ar
te

r 
2,

 2
01

0/
11

 -
 P

er
io

d
 E

n
d

in
g

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

0

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

pe
rio

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r

�
+v

e
(R

P
)

W
or

se
ni

ng
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

pe
rio

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r

�
-v

e
Lo

w
er

 S
up

er
 O

ut
pu

t A
re

a

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 s
am

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r
�

*
W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s

W
M

N
o 

da
ta

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d

#
T

B
C

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 fo

r 
th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r/

pe
rio

d
N

A
P

la
ce

 S
ur

ve
y

(P
S

)

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e

D
E

C
C

L
S

O
A

R
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
 in

 p
la

ce

T
o 

be
 c

on
fir

m
ed

P
os

iti
ve

 T
re

nd

N
eg

at
iv

e 
T

re
nd

D
at

a 
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

A
re

as
 o

f H
ig

he
st

 N
ee

d 
is

 a
 n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
ac

tiv
el

y 
ex

am
in

ed
 b

y 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

ea
m

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
et

.  
T

he
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

is
 d

is
ag

gr
eg

at
in

g 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

to
 a

 v
er

y 
sm

al
l g

eo
gr

ap
hi

ca
l a

re
a 

(L
ow

er
 S

up
er

 O
ut

pu
t A

re
a)

.  
It 

w
as

 h
op

ed
 th

at
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

th
es

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fr
om

 q
ua

rt
er

 2
 h

ow
ev

er
 th

is
 is

 n
ow

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
fo

r 
qu

ar
te

r 
3 

(O
ct

 -
 D

ec
),

 2
01

0.

T
he

 ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 s
ho

w
s 

a 
ke

y 
to

 te
rm

s 
an

d 
sy

m
bo

ls
 u

se
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t.

K
ey

 t
o

 T
er

m
s 

an
d

 S
ym

b
o

ls

2

Page 84



F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 R

es
ou

rc
es

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

Q
u

ar
te

r 
2,

 2
01

0/
11

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

00
9

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

0 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

01
0

Direction of 
Travel

T
ar

g
et

 
20

10
/1

1

Benchmark 
(where 

applicable)

2008/09

2009/10

T
im

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 p

ro
ce

ss
 H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
/ C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 B

en
ef

it 
ne

w
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
ch

an
ge

 e
ve

nt
s 

(d
ay

s)
N

I 1
81

17
.2

5
12

.2
7

� ���
12

 d
ay

s
5

17
.7

0
13

.4
0

T
ar

ge
t m

et
.

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 r

ec
ov

er
ed

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f a

ll 
H

B
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

B
V

 0
79

b(
i)

70
.4

5%
81

.6
2%

� ���
80

.0
0%

N
A

65
.2

4%
75

.9
9%

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 h
as

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 im
pr

ov
ed

 in
 Q

2.
 H

ou
si

ng
 

B
en

ef
it 

O
ve

rp
ay

m
en

t R
ec

ov
er

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
is

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
re

co
ve

ry
 r

at
es

.
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 in
vo

ic
es

 fo
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 g
oo

ds
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 o

r 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
er

m
s

B
V

 0
08

93
.6

8%
92

.7
7%

� ���
95

%
98

.2
4%

91
.6

2%
93

.5
5%

A
w

ai
tin

g 
ne

w
 s

ys
te

m
 to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s/

sh
ift

s 
lo

st
 to

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
du

e 
to

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
ab

se
nc

e 
pe

r 
F

T
E

 s
ta

ff 
m

em
be

r
B

V
 0

12
3.

88
4.

91
� ���

9.
02

9.
02

9.
60

9.
02

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

fr
om

 la
st

 q
ua

rt
er

.

C
us

to
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f e

nq
ui

rie
s 

re
so

lv
ed

 a
t f

irs
t 

po
in

t o
f c

on
ta

ct
W

M
O

 0
11

N
A

97
.9

9%
N

A
90

%
N

A
N

A
N

A
W

e 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

in
 c

ap
tu

rin
g 

m
or

e 
of

 
ou

r 
en

qu
iri

es
 o

n 
th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

er
.

C
us

to
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f c

al
ls

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 

(s
w

itc
hb

oa
rd

 a
nd

 c
on

ta
ct

 c
en

tr
e)

W
M

O
 0

12
N

A
78

.7
5%

N
A

80
%

N
A

N
A

N
A

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
ee

n 
a 

sl
ig

ht
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

%
 o

f c
al

ls
 

an
sw

er
ed

 d
es

pi
te

 a
ls

o 
lo

gg
in

g 
m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

sy
st

em
s.

 W
e 

ar
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 to

 lo
ok

 a
t w

ay
s 

in
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ca
n 

im
pr

ov
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 

C
us

to
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
av

er
ag

e 
sp

ee
d 

of
 a

ns
w

er
 (

se
co

nd
s)

W
M

O
 0

13
N

A
15

.5
N

A
20

 s
ec

s
N

A
N

A
N

A
T

hi
s 

do
es

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
e 

ca
lls

 a
 c

us
to

m
er

 p
in

s 
in

 th
e 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
fo

r 
th

em
se

lv
es

.

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
W

M
O

 0
14

46
44

� ���
C

o
n

te
xt

u
al

 
m

ea
su

re
N

A
N

A
83

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 q
ua

rt
er

, h
ow

ev
er

 w
e 

ha
ve

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fe

w
er

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

w
he

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r.

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

im
en

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

W
M

O
 0

15
12

2
14

5
� ���

C
o

n
te

xt
u

al
 

m
ea

su
re

N
A

N
A

28
7

W
e 

ha
ve

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 m

or
e 

co
m

pl
im

en
ts

 th
an

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
la

st
 y

ea
r,

 a
nd

 th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 d

at
e 

fig
ur

e 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 w
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 r

ec
ei

ve
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f 

co
m

pl
im

en
ts

.

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

+v
e

(R
P

)

W
or

se
ni

ng
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

-v
e

Lo
w

er
 S

up
er

 O
ut

pu
t A

re
a

L
S

O
A

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 s
am

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
la

st
 

ye
ar

� ���
*

W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s
W

M

N
o 

da
ta

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d

#
T

B
C

D
E

C
C

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 fo

r 
th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r/

pe
rio

d
N

A
(P

S
)

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y

R
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
 in

 p
la

ce

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e

N
eg

at
iv

e 
T

re
nd

T
o 

be
 c

on
fir

m
ed

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

D
at

a 
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
In

d
ic

at
o

r 
R

ef
er

en
ce

C
u

rr
en

t

P
os

iti
ve

 T
re

nd

K
ey

 t
o

 T
er

m
s 

an
d

 S
ym

b
o

ls

H
is

to
ri

c

3
D

at
a 

co
rr

ec
t a

s 
at

 1
7:

00
 o

n 
M

on
da

y 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

Page 85



Le
is

ur
e,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
Q

u
ar

te
r 

2,
 2

01
0/

11

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

00
9

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

0 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

01
0

Direction of 
Travel

T
ar

g
et

 
20

10
/1

1

Benchmark 
(where 

applicable)

2008/09

2009/10

%
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 b
el

ie
ve

 p
eo

pl
e 

fr
om

 d
iff

er
en

t b
ac

kg
ro

un
ds

 g
et

 
on

 w
el

l t
og

et
he

r 
in

 th
ei

r 
lo

ca
l a

re
a 

(f
or

m
er

 P
S

)
N

I 0
01

N
A

V
ie

w
p

o
in

t 
S

u
rv

ey
N

A
+v

e
81

.9
0%

72
%

 (
P

)
71

.7
%

B
i-a

nn
ua

l i
nd

ic
at

or
.  

T
he

 n
ex

t s
ur

ve
y 

is
 to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

at
a 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
w

ar
d 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
1.

S
er

io
us

 v
io

le
nt

 c
rim

e 
ra

te
N

I 0
15

0.
55

0.
70

� ���
0.

98
N

A
0.

57
0.

98

N
I 1

5 
ra

te
s 

ha
ve

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 7
0%

 (
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 o
f 1

4 
ad

di
tio

na
l o

ffe
nc

es
) 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 la
st

 q
ua

rt
er

, a
nd

 b
y 

18
%

 
(e

qu
iv

al
en

t o
f 5

 o
ffe

nc
es

) 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

of
 la

st
 y

ea
r,

 w
hi

ch
 h

ad
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t r
at

e 
of

 a
ll 

qu
ar

te
rs

 la
st

 
ye

ar
. L

as
t y

ea
r,

 h
ig

h 
ra

te
s 

in
 Q

2 
ar

e 
at

tr
ib

ut
ed

 to
 a

 s
pi

ke
 

of
 o

ffe
nc

es
 in

 A
ug

us
t; 

th
is

 y
ea

r,
 th

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
of

 o
ffe

nc
es

 
sh

ar
pl

y 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
 J

ul
y,

 w
ith

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
ls

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
st

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
. Y

ea
r 

to
 d

at
e,

 r
at

es
 a

re
 2

8%
 g

re
at

er
 

th
an

 2
00

9/
10

 (
54

 o
ffe

nc
es

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 4
2 

la
st

 y
ea

r)
. 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 w

or
se

 th
an

 o
ur

 IQ
ua

nt
a 

M
os

t 
S

im
ila

r 
G

ro
up

 p
ee

rs
; w

ith
 R

ed
di

tc
h 

ra
te

s 
m

or
e 

th
an

 
do

ub
le

 th
e 

gr
ou

p 
av

er
ag

e.
 T

ak
in

g 
al

l f
ac

to
rs

 in
to

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r 

N
I1

5 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 

re
d.

S
er

io
us

 a
cq

ui
si

tiv
e 

cr
im

e 
ra

te
N

I 0
16

6.
06

4.
69

� ���
11

.5
0

N
A

12
.9

3
11

.5
1

N
I 1

6 
ra

te
s 

ha
ve

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 b

y 
10

%
 (

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 o

f 2
0 

of
fe

nc
es

) 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 la

st
 q

ua
rt

er
. F

ur
th

er
, t

hi
s 

ra
te

 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 2

9%
 d

ec
re

as
e 

(e
qu

iv
al

en
t o

f 7
4 

of
fe

nc
es

) 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 Q

2 
09

/1
0.

  P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
IQ

ua
nt

a 
M

os
t S

im
ila

r 
G

ro
up

 p
ee

rs
, w

ith
 a

 r
at

e 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 
th

e 
gr

ou
p 

av
er

ag
e.

 A
s 

ra
te

s 
ha

ve
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
 d

ec
re

as
e 

an
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 p
ee

rs
 is

 s
tr

on
g,

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

re
m

ai
ns

 g
re

en
.

P
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 o
f a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 (

fo
rm

er
 P

S
)

N
I 0

17
N

A
V

ie
w

p
o

in
t 

S
u

rv
ey

N
A

19
.5

%
 b

y 
20

11
13

.6
21

.1
%

 (
P

)
12

.9
%

B
i-a

nn
ua

l i
nd

ic
at

or
.  

T
he

 n
ex

t s
ur

ve
y 

is
 to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

at
a 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
w

ar
d 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
1.

D
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
on

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 a

nd
 

cr
im

e 
is

su
es

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

po
lic

e 
(f

or
m

er
 P

S
)

N
I 0

21
N

A
V

ie
w

p
o

in
t 

S
u

rv
ey

N
A

30
.1

%
 b

y 
20

11
30

.8
24

.8
%

 (
P

)
30

.5
%

B
i-a

nn
ua

l i
nd

ic
at

or
.  

T
he

 n
ex

t s
ur

ve
y 

is
 to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

at
a 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
w

ar
d 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
1.

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f l
oc

al
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t a
nt

i-s
oc

ia
l b

eh
av

io
ur

 
an

d 
cr

im
e 

is
su

es
 b

y 
th

e 
lo

ca
l c

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
po

lic
e 

( 
fo

rm
er

 P
S

)
N

I 0
27

N
A

V
ie

w
p

o
in

t 
S

u
rv

ey
N

A
T

B
C

28
.5

25
.1

%
 (

P
)

31
.6

%
B

i-a
nn

ua
l i

nd
ic

at
or

.  
T

he
 n

ex
t s

ur
ve

y 
is

 to
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 a

nd
 in

iti
al

 d
at

a 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

w
ar

d 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

1.

P
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 o
f d

ru
nk

 o
r 

ro
w

dy
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 a
s 

a 
pr

ob
le

m
 (

fo
rm

er
 

P
S

)
N

I 0
41

N
A

V
ie

w
p

o
in

t 
S

u
rv

ey
N

A
T

B
C

20
.5

30
.8

%
 (

P
)

23
.9

%
B

i-a
nn

ua
l i

nd
ic

at
or

.  
T

he
 n

ex
t s

ur
ve

y 
is

 to
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 a

nd
 in

iti
al

 d
at

a 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

w
ar

d 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

1.
N

um
be

r 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 (

gr
os

s)
N

I 1
55

39
58

� ���
64

25
0

10
11

1
C

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 L
A

A
 ta

rg
et

. 

R
es

id
ua

l h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 p
er

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 (

kg
)

N
I 1

91
29

3.
99

30
6.

00
� ���

57
0k

g
48

0
56

6.
74

57
4.

93

T
he

re
 is

 a
 s

lig
ht

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
n 

th
e 

to
ta

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f r

es
id

ua
l 

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r.
 

M
or

e 
w

as
te

 fi
nd

s 
its

 w
ay

 in
to

 th
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

as
te

 s
tr

ea
m

 
ov

er
 th

e 
sp

rin
g/

su
m

m
er

 p
er

io
d 

w
ith

 m
or

e 
ga

rd
en

 w
as

te
 

be
in

g 
pl

ac
ed

 in
to

 g
re

y 
bi

ns
 a

nd
 it

 is
 h

op
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

fig
ur

e 
w

ill
 r

ed
uc

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

au
tu

m
n/

w
in

te
r 

pe
rio

ds
.

C
o

m
m

en
ts

H
is

to
ri

c

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
In

d
ic

at
o

r 
R

ef
er

en
ce

C
u

rr
en

t

4
D

at
a 

co
rr

ec
t a

s 
at

 1
7:

00
 o

n 
M

on
da

y 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

Page 86



Le
is

ur
e,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
Q

u
ar

te
r 

2,
 2

01
0/

11

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

00
9

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

0 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

01
0

Direction of 
Travel

T
ar

g
et

 
20

10
/1

1

Benchmark 
(where 

applicable)

2008/09

2009/10

C
o

m
m

en
ts

H
is

to
ri

c

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
In

d
ic

at
o

r 
R

ef
er

en
ce

C
u

rr
en

t

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 s

en
t f

or
 r

eu
se

, r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
N

I 1
92

28
.5

5%
25

.6
4%

� ���
30

%
51

.9
1%

31
.4

3%
28

.3
0%

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

to
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

s 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 h

as
 

dr
op

pe
d.

 In
iti

al
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 th

is
 is

 d
ue

 to
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 b

rin
g 

ba
nk

 u
sa

ge
, i

nc
re

as
ed

 s
tr

ee
t 

sw
ee

pi
ng

 a
nd

 r
ec

yc
la

bl
es

 in
 g

re
en

 b
in

s 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 
co

ns
ta

nt
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

.

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
- 

le
ve

ls
 o

f l
itt

er
N

I 1
95

(a
)

9%
3%

� ���
6%

0%
5%

8%
T

hi
s 

is
 a

 g
oo

d 
sc

or
e 

an
d 

sh
ow

s 
th

at
 th

e 
st

re
et

s 
ha

ve
 a

 
hi

gh
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 c

le
an

lin
es

s 
w

ith
 r

eg
ar

ds
 to

 li
tte

r 
le

ve
ls

.

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
- 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
de

tr
itu

s
N

I 1
95

(b
)

27
%

34
%

� ���
25

%
1%

11
%

26
%

D
et

rit
us

 le
ve

ls
 a

re
 fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y;

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

is
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

w
e 

kn
ow

 th
at

 w
e 

ha
ve

 s
w

ep
t m

or
e 

de
tr

itu
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

st
re

et
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

fir
st

 q
ua

rt
er

 o
f l

as
t y

ea
r.

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
- 

gr
af

fit
i

N
I 1

95
(c

)
2%

3%
� ���

2%
0%

1%
2%

V
er

y 
lo

w
 le

ve
ls

 o
f g

ra
ffi

ti 
fo

un
d.

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
- 

fly
-p

os
tin

g
N

I 1
95

(d
)

0%
4%

� ���
0%

0%
0%

0%
A

lth
ou

gh
 s

lig
ht

ly
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 in

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
su

rv
ey

s,
 th

is
 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 v
er

y 
lo

w
 le

ve
l o

f f
ly

-p
os

tin
g 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e 

to
w

n.

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
– 

fly
 ti

pp
in

g 
   

 
(L

ev
el

 1
 -

 G
oo

d,
 L

ev
el

 4
 -

 P
oo

r)
N

I 1
96

1
3

� ���
L

ev
el

 1
1

2
1

U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
 fo

r 
th

e 
fir

st
 fo

ur
 m

on
th

s 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 fl

y-
tip

pi
ng

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
is

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 fo
r 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r.
 D

es
pi

te
 th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t a
ct

io
ns

 h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d,
 th

e 
hi

gh
er

 le
ve

l o
f f

ly
-

tip
s 

ha
s 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 a

 lo
w

er
 s

co
re

 s
o 

fa
r.

 It
 is

 h
op

ed
 th

at
 

th
is

 w
ill

 le
ve

l o
ut

 a
s 

th
e 

ye
ar

 p
ro

gr
es

se
s.

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ac
ia

l i
nc

id
en

ts
 r

ec
or

de
d 

by
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n
B

V
 1

74
10

.1
6

19
.0

5
� ���

C
o

n
te

xt
u

al
 

m
ea

su
re

N
A

12
.5

6
23

.8
8

Le
ve

ls
 o

f r
ep

or
tin

g 
ha

ve
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 la
st

 y
ea

r,
 

w
hi

ch
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 in
di

ca
te

s 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
 o

r 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s,
 a

nd
 m

ay
 n

ot
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

ily
 r

ef
le

ct
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 in
ci

de
nt

s.

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 r

ac
ia

l i
nc

id
en

ts
 th

at
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n

B
V

 1
75

10
0%

10
0%

� ���
C

o
n

te
xt

u
al

 
m

ea
su

re
N

A
10

0%
10

0%

A
ll 

re
po

rt
s 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 h

av
e 

in
iti

al
 fo

llo
w

 u
p 

ca
ll 

an
d 

re
fe

rr
al

 to
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 a

ge
nc

y.
  W

he
re

 c
on

ta
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 a
re

 
no

t s
up

pl
ie

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 s
ha

re
d 

ac
ro

ss
 p

ar
tn

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

to
 r

ai
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
re

nd
s.

N
um

be
r 

of
 B

rit
is

h 
C

rim
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

C
om

pa
ra

to
r 

cr
im

es
 r

ep
or

te
d

C
S

 0
02

1,
92

1
#

N
A

C
o

n
te

xt
u

al
 

m
ea

su
re

N
A

3,
69

0
3,

46
9

D
at

a 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

un
til

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 

O
ct

ob
er

. A
n 

up
da

te
d 

qu
ar

te
rly

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

he
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e.

M
or

to
n 

S
ta

nl
ey

 P
ar

k 
- 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 v

is
ito

rs
 to

 th
e 

fe
st

iv
al

C
G

 0
01

4,
50

0
7,

00
0

� ���
7,

00
0

N
A

N
A

N
A

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

nc
re

as
e 

on
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

 d
ue

 to
 fe

st
iv

al
 b

ei
ng

 
he

ld
 o

ve
r 

2 
da

ys
, e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
ap

pr
oa

ch
.

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 p

ar
ks

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

 (
%

)
C

G
 0

02
N

A
V

ie
w

p
o

in
t 

S
u

rv
ey

N
A

B
as

el
in

e 
ye

ar
N

A
N

A
N

A
T

hi
s 

in
di

ca
to

r 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

nd
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ab

ol
iti

on
 

of
 th

e 
P

la
ce

 S
ur

ve
y.

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
ito

rs
 to

 th
e 

A
bb

ey
 S

ta
di

um
 a

nd
 H

ew
el

l R
oa

d 
S

w
im

m
in

g 
P

oo
l

E
C

 0
05

14
4,

64
3

16
2,

23
1

� ���
29

6,
90

3
N

A
N

A
29

1,
08

1
In

cr
ea

se
 o

n 
pr

ev
io

us
 q

ua
rt

er
 d

ue
 to

 n
ew

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
an

d 
su

m
m

er
 h

ol
id

ay
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 S

lig
ht

 
in

cr
ea

se
 fr

om
 s

am
e 

pe
rio

d 
in

 0
9/

10
.

5
D

at
a 

co
rr

ec
t a

s 
at

 1
7:

00
 o

n 
M

on
da

y 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

Page 87



Le
is

ur
e,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
Q

u
ar

te
r 

2,
 2

01
0/

11

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

00
9

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

0 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

01
0

Direction of 
Travel

T
ar

g
et

 
20

10
/1

1

Benchmark 
(where 

applicable)

2008/09

2009/10

C
o

m
m

en
ts

H
is

to
ri

c

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
In

d
ic

at
o

r 
R

ef
er

en
ce

C
u

rr
en

t

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
ito

rs
 to

 th
e 

P
al

ac
e 

T
he

at
re

E
C

 0
06

16
,9

63
18

,3
65

� ���
45

,7
56

N
A

N
A

44
,8

57

S
ea

so
na

l f
ig

ur
e.

  D
ow

nt
ur

n 
in

 v
is

ito
r 

nu
m

be
rs

 in
 q

ua
rt

er
 2

 
as

 a
 li

m
ite

d 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
ho

w
s 

in
 th

is
 p

er
io

d,
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

na
tio

na
l t

re
nd

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, y

ea
r 

to
 d

at
e 

sh
ow

s 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 
in

 v
is

ito
r 

nu
m

be
rs

.

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
ito

rs
 to

 le
is

ur
e 

ce
nt

re
s

E
C

 0
07

27
3,

77
1

28
5,

00
5

� ���
57

6,
46

0
N

A
N

A
56

5,
15

7

In
cr

ea
se

 o
n 

pr
ev

io
us

 q
ua

rt
er

 d
ue

 to
 n

ew
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

an
d 

su
m

m
er

 h
ol

id
ay

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

/ e
xt

en
de

d 
op

en
in

g 
ho

ur
s 

in
 D

ua
l U

se
 C

en
tr

es
. S

lig
ht

 in
cr

ea
se

 fr
om

 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
in

 0
9/

10
.

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
ito

rs
 to

 th
e 

M
us

eu
m

 a
nd

 B
or

de
sl

ey
 A

bb
ey

 
V

is
ito

rs
 C

en
tr

e
E

C
 0

08
11

,0
08

16
,6

77
� ���

15
,3

69
N

A
N

A
15

,0
68

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

nc
re

as
e 

du
e 

to
 tw

o 
ne

w
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
su

m
m

er
 

lo
ng

 D
in

os
au

r 
ex

hi
bi

tio
n.

 W
ea

th
er

 w
as

 m
uc

h 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

fr
om

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 h

ig
he

r 
at

te
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 
st

an
da

rd
 e

ve
nt

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
.

N
um

be
r 

of
 o

ve
r 

60
's

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

us
ag

e
E

C
 0

09
4,

55
4

4,
73

0
� ���

9,
17

6
N

A
N

A
8,

99
6

D
ec

re
as

e 
in

 q
ua

rt
er

 2
 d

ue
 to

 e
nd

 o
f F

re
e 

S
w

im
m

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e;

 a
lth

ou
gh

 y
ea

r 
to

 d
at

e 
fig

ur
es

 s
ho

w
 a

 s
m

al
l 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 n

um
be

rs
.

N
um

be
r 

of
 u

nd
er

 1
6'

s 
sw

im
m

in
g 

us
ag

e
E

C
 0

10
16

,7
71

11
,4

86
� ���

23
,6

67
N

A
N

A
23

,2
03

D
ec

re
as

e 
du

e 
to

 e
nd

 o
f s

um
m

er
 h

ol
id

ay
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
ce

ss
at

io
n 

of
 fr

ee
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ve
nt

s
E

C
 0

11
28

,7
41

49
,1

51
� ���

43
,2

48
N

A
N

A
42

,4
00

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

nc
re

as
e 

du
e 

to
 3

 la
rg

e 
ev

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 
P

re
vi

ou
s 

ev
en

ts
 w

er
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

an
ot

he
r 

se
ct

io
n 

(L
an

ds
ca

pe
 &

 C
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 S
er

vi
ce

s)
.

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t c
om

m
un

ity
 c

en
tr

es
E

C
 0

12
78

,8
96

87
,3

91
� ���

15
4,

68
3

N
A

N
A

15
1,

65
0

S
ea

so
na

l t
re

nd
. R

ed
uc

tio
n 

fr
om

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
qu

ar
te

r 
du

e 
to

 
re

gu
la

r 
pr

e-
sc

ho
ol

 s
es

si
on

s 
cl

os
in

g 
do

w
n 

fo
r 

su
m

m
er

 
pe

rio
d.

  Y
ea

r 
to

 d
at

e 
fig

ur
es

 s
ho

w
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
at

te
nd

an
ce

.

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t s
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

es
si

on
s

E
C

 0
13

29
,2

00
29

,5
56

� ���
60

,9
35

N
A

N
A

59
,7

41
S

ea
so

na
l t

re
nd

, S
ch

oo
ls

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

cl
os

es
 d

ow
n 

fo
r 

S
um

m
er

 p
er

io
d.

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t a
rt

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
es

si
on

s
E

C
 0

14
3,

79
6

8,
72

9
� ���

10
,0

48
N

A
N

A
9,

85
1

In
cr

ea
se

 d
ue

 to
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
A

rt
s 

F
es

tiv
al

. 

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
its

 to
 A

rr
ow

 V
al

le
y 

C
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 C
en

tr
e

E
C

 0
15

18
1,

50
9

21
1,

52
0

� ���
34

1,
72

6
N

A
N

A
33

5,
02

5

S
ea

so
na

l t
re

nd
. H

ig
h 

fig
ur

e 
ov

er
 s

um
m

er
 p

er
io

d 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 v
ie

w
 o

f w
ea

th
er

 c
on

di
tio

ns
. I

nc
re

as
e 

fr
om

 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
pe

rio
d 

09
/1

0 
du

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
ed

 w
ea

th
er

 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

+v
e

(R
P

)

W
or

se
ni

ng
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

-v
e

Lo
w

er
 S

up
er

 O
ut

pu
t A

re
a

L
S

O
A

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 s
am

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
la

st
 y

ea
r

� ���
*

W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s
W

M

N
o 

da
ta

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d

#
T

B
C

D
E

C
C

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 fo

r 
th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r/

pe
rio

d
N

A
(P

S
)

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y

T
o 

be
 c

on
fir

m
ed

D
at

a 
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

K
ey

 t
o

 T
er

m
s 

an
d

 S
ym

b
o

ls

P
os

iti
ve

 T
re

nd

N
eg

at
iv

e 
T

re
nd

R
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
 in

 p
la

ce

6
D

at
a 

co
rr

ec
t a

s 
at

 1
7:

00
 o

n 
M

on
da

y 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

Page 88



A
re

as
 o

f H
ig

he
st

 N
ee

d
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
Q

u
ar

te
r 

2,
 2

01
0/

11

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

00
9

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

0 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

01
0

Direction of 
Travel

T
ar

g
et

 
20

10
/1

1

Benchmark 
(where 

applicable)

2008/09

2009/10

P
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 o
f a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 (

fo
rm

er
 P

S
)

N
I 0

17
 H

N
A

V
ie

w
p

o
in

t 
S

u
rv

ey
N

A
T

B
C

N
A

N
A

39
.0

%
 (

P
)

A
nn

ua
l i

nd
ic

at
or

.

A
ss

au
lt 

w
ith

 in
ju

ry
 c

rim
e 

ra
te

 
N

I 0
20

 H
N

A
#

N
A

T
B

C
N

A
N

A
N

A

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 L

S
O

A
 in

 
W

in
ya

te
s.

 B
as

el
in

e 
da

ta
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 d
is

ag
gr

eg
at

ed
 

an
d 

ar
ea

 s
pe

ci
fic

 ta
rg

et
s 

se
t B

ac
kd

at
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
nc

e 
da

ta
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

R
at

e 
of

 h
os

pi
ta

l a
dm

is
si

on
s 

pe
r 

10
0,

00
0 

fo
r 

al
co

ho
l r

el
at

ed
 

ha
rm

N
I 0

39
 H

N
A

#
N

A
T

B
C

N
A

N
A

N
A

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 L

S
O

A
 in

 
W

in
ya

te
s.

 B
as

el
in

e 
da

ta
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 d
is

ag
gr

eg
at

ed
 

an
d 

ar
ea

 s
pe

ci
fic

 ta
rg

et
s 

se
t B

ac
kd

at
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
nc

e 
da

ta
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

P
er

 c
ap

ita
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

s 
in

 th
e 

LA
 a

re
a

N
I 1

86
 H

N
A

A
n

n
u

al
N

A
T

B
C

N
A

N
A

N
A

A
nn

ua
l i

nd
ic

at
or

.

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
- 

lit
te

r
N

I 1
95

(a
) 

H
N

A
#

N
A

T
B

C
N

A
N

A
N

A

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 L

S
O

A
 in

 
W

in
ya

te
s.

 B
as

el
in

e 
da

ta
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 d
is

ag
gr

eg
at

ed
 

an
d 

ar
ea

 s
pe

ci
fic

 ta
rg

et
s 

se
t B

ac
kd

at
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
nc

e 
da

ta
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

In
ci

de
nt

s 
of

 c
rim

in
al

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 a

ll 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s

S
A

 0
01

a
N

A
#

N
A

T
B

C
N

A
N

A
N

A

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 L

S
O

A
 in

 
W

in
ya

te
s.

 B
as

el
in

e 
da

ta
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 d
is

ag
gr

eg
at

ed
 

an
d 

ar
ea

 s
pe

ci
fic

 ta
rg

et
s 

se
t B

ac
kd

at
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
nc

e 
da

ta
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

In
ci

de
nt

s 
of

 c
rim

in
al

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

pr
op

er
tie

s
S

A
 0

01
b

N
A

#
N

A
T

B
C

N
A

N
A

N
A

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

t a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 L

S
O

A
 in

 
W

in
ya

te
s.

 B
as

el
in

e 
da

ta
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 d
is

ag
gr

eg
at

ed
 

an
d 

ar
ea

 s
pe

ci
fic

 ta
rg

et
s 

se
t B

ac
kd

at
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
nc

e 
da

ta
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

+v
e

(R
P

)

W
or

se
ni

ng
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

-v
e

Lo
w

er
 S

up
er

 O
ut

pu
t A

re
a

L
S

O
A

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 s
am

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
la

st
 y

ea
r

� ���
*

W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s
W

M

N
o 

da
ta

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d

#
T

B
C

D
E

C
C

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 fo

r 
th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r/

pe
rio

d
N

A
(P

S
)

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y

C
o

m
m

en
ts

H
is

to
ri

c

T
o 

be
 c

on
fir

m
ed

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
In

d
ic

at
o

r 
R

ef
er

en
ce

D
at

a 
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

C
u

rr
en

t

K
ey

 t
o

 T
er

m
s 

an
d

 S
ym

b
o

ls

P
os

iti
ve

 T
re

nd

N
eg

at
iv

e 
T

re
nd

R
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
 in

 p
la

ce

7
D

at
a 

co
rr

ec
t a

s 
at

 1
7:

00
 o

n 
M

on
da

y 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

Page 89



P
ol

ic
y,

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
Q

u
ar

te
r 

2,
 2

01
0/

11

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

00
9

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

0 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

01
0

Direction of 
Travel

T
ar

g
et

 
20

09
/1

0

Benchmark 
(where 

applicable)

2008/09

2009/10

T
ot

al
 to

nn
ag

e 
of

 C
O

2 
em

is
si

on
s 

fr
om

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

op
er

at
io

ns
 

N
I 1

85
 (

a)
A

n
n

u
al

A
n

n
u

al
N

A
4%

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 
o

n
 0

8/
09

 
b

as
el

in
e

N
A

3,
63

7
T

B
C

T
hi

s 
is

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 in

di
ca

to
r.

 P
ro

vi
si

on
al

 o
ut

tu
rn

 is
 Q

4 
20

09
/1

0 
ou

ttu
rn

 is
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
a 

6%
 r

ed
uc

tio
n;

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f s

av
in

gs
 c

om
in

g 
fr

om
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
em

is
si

on
s.

 B
ef

or
e 

th
is

 o
ut

tu
rn

 is
 v

al
id

at
ed

 w
e 

ar
e 

aw
ai

tin
g 

gu
id

an
ce

 fr
om

 D
E

C
C

 o
n 

th
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 th
ey

 w
an

t u
s 

to
 

us
e.

 D
E

C
C

 s
til

l h
av

e 
no

t a
nn

ou
nc

ed
 w

he
n 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e.

 

C
O

2 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fr
om

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

op
er

at
io

ns
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

12
 

m
on

th
s 

(A
pr

il 
- 

M
ar

ch
)

N
I 1

85
 (

b)
A

n
n

u
al

A
n

n
u

al
N

A
4%

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 
o

n
 0

8/
09

 
b

as
el

in
e

N
A

N
A

T
B

C
A

s 
ab

ov
e,

 6
%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n.

P
er

 c
ap

ita
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

s 
in

 th
e 

LA
 a

re
a

N
I 1

86
A

n
n

u
al

A
n

n
u

al
N

A
3%

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

8.
1

7.
3

#

T
hi

s 
is

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 in

di
ca

to
r.

   
20

05
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k.
  2

00
8/

9 
da

ta
 r

ef
er

s 
to

 2
00

8 
da

ta
 s

up
pl

ie
d 

by
 D

E
C

C
 (

th
er

e 
is

 
al

w
ay

s 
a 

2 
ye

ar
 ti

m
e 

la
g)

. A
lth

ou
gh

 w
e 

ar
e 

de
m

on
st

ra
tin

g 
a 

6.
4%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
fr

om
 2

00
5 

it 
re

m
ai

ns
 to

 b
e 

se
en

 w
he

th
er

 
or

 n
ot

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

hi
s 

re
du

ct
io

n 
is

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ow
nt

ur
n 

as
 o

pp
os

ed
 to

 a
ct

iv
iti

y 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

R
B

C
.

P
la

nn
in

g 
to

 a
da

pt
 to

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(L
ev

el
 0

 -
 lo

w
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, L

ev
el

 4
 -

 h
ig

h 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
)

N
I 1

88
A

n
n

u
al

A
n

n
u

al
N

A
2

1
0

1
T

hi
s 

is
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 in
di

ca
to

r.
  Q

ua
rt

er
 4

 2
00

9/
10

 s
ho

w
s 

 th
is

 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
, a

nd
 L

ev
el

 1
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

.

A
ir 

qu
al

ity
 -

 to
ta

l N
O

x 
an

d 
P

M
10

 e
m

itt
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
es

ta
te

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
N

I 1
94

(a
)

A
n

n
u

al
A

n
n

u
al

N
A

4%
 r

ed
u

ct
io

n
 

o
n

 0
8/

09
 

b
as

el
in

e
N

A
8,

78
7

T
B

C
T

hi
s 

is
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 in
di

ca
to

r.
 W

ith
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pr
ov

is
o 

as
 fo

r 
N

I1
85

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
vi

si
on

al
 o

ut
tu

rn
 is

 a
s 

sh
ow

n.

A
ir 

qu
al

ity
 -

 %
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 N

O
x 

an
d 

P
M

10
 e

m
itt

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
es

ta
te

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 fo

r 
pr

ev
io

us
 1

2 
m

on
th

s 
(A

pr
il 

- 
M

ar
ch

)
N

I 1
94

(b
)

A
n

n
u

al
A

n
n

u
al

N
A

4%
 r

ed
u

ct
io

n
 

o
n

 0
8/

09
 

b
as

el
in

e
N

A
N

A
T

B
C

T
hi

s 
is

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 in

di
ca

to
r.

 W
ith

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pr

ov
is

o 
as

 fo
r 

N
I1

85
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 o
ut

tu
rn

 is
 a

s 
sh

ow
n.

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

w
ho

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 a
gr

ee
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
pr

ov
id

es
 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

W
M

O
 0

18
N

A
V

ie
w

p
o

in
t 

S
u

rv
ey

N
A

+v
e

N
A

35
.0

%
35

.6
%

 (
P

)
B

i-a
nn

ua
l i

nd
ic

at
or

.  
T

he
 n

ex
t s

ur
ve

y 
is

 to
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 a

nd
 in

iti
al

 d
at

a 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

w
ar

d 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

1.

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 s

at
is

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

w
ay

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ru
ns

 th
in

gs
W

M
O

 0
19

N
A

V
ie

w
p

o
in

t 
S

u
rv

ey
N

A
+v

e
N

A
43

.0
%

47
.3

%
 (

P
)

B
i-a

nn
ua

l i
nd

ic
at

or
.  

T
he

 n
ex

t s
ur

ve
y 

is
 to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

at
a 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
w

ar
d 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
1.

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

+v
e

(R
P

)

W
or

se
ni

ng
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

-v
e

Lo
w

er
 S

up
er

 O
ut

pu
t A

re
a

L
S

O
A

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 s
am

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
la

st
 y

ea
r

� ���
*

W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s
W

M

N
o 

da
ta

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d

#
T

B
C

D
E

C
C

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 fo

r 
th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r/

pe
rio

d
N

A
(P

S
)

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y

D
at

a 
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

T
o 

be
 c

on
fir

m
ed

K
ey

 t
o

 T
er

m
s 

an
d

 S
ym

b
o

ls

P
os

iti
ve

 T
re

nd

H
is

to
ri

c

N
eg

at
iv

e 
T

re
nd

R
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
 in

 p
la

ce

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
In

d
ic

at
o

r 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

R
ef

er
en

ce

C
u

rr
en

t

8
D

at
a 

co
rr

ec
t a

s 
at

 1
7:

00
 o

n 
M

on
da

y 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

Page 90



F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 R

es
ou

rc
es

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

Q
u

ar
te

r 
2,

 2
01

0/
11

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

00
9

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

0 
- 

30
 S

ep
 2

01
0

Direction of 
Travel

T
ar

g
et

 
20

10
/1

1

Benchmark 
(where 

applicable)

2008/09

2009/10

N
um

be
r 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
liv

in
g 

in
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

N
I 1

56
2

7
� ���

15
0

10
7

R
em

ai
ns

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 la
st

 q
ua

rt
er

 w
hi

ch
 is

 w
el

l w
ith

in
 th

e 
se

t t
ar

ge
t o

f 1
5.

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
N

I 1
57

(a
)

10
0.

00
%

80
.0

0%
� ���

97
%

10
0%

93
.7

5%
10

0%
1 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 o

ut
 o

f t
im

e 
th

is
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

of
 m

in
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
N

I 1
57

(b
) 

97
.3

0%
10

0.
00

%
� ���

93
%

10
0%

90
.4

1%
95

.2
4%

A
ll 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 w
ee

ks
.

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

of
 o

th
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
N

I 1
57

(c
)

98
.7

0%
93

.8
8%

� ���
96

%
10

0%
97

.8
3%

98
.1

6%
O

nl
y 

1 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 o
ut

 o
f t

im
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
la

st
 

qu
ar

te
r,

 a
bo

ve
 n

at
io

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
.

N
ew

 b
us

in
es

s 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
ra

te
 (

pe
r 

10
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n)
N

I 1
71

A
n

n
u

al
A

n
n

u
al

N
A

4 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 

W
M

 r
at

e
68

.8
50

.9
51

.4
A

nn
ua

l i
nd

ic
at

or
.

%
 o

f s
m

al
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
in

 a
n 

ar
ea

 s
ho

w
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t g
ro

w
th

N
I 1

72
A

n
n

u
al

A
n

n
u

al
N

A
2%

 p
o

in
ts

 
ab

o
ve

 W
M

 
ra

te
15

.9
0%

15
.9

0%
#

A
nn

ua
l i

nd
ic

at
or

.

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 r

el
et

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ho

us
in

g 
(d

ay
s)

B
V

 2
12

28
.3

2
18

.9
9

� ���
24

 d
ay

s
N

A
27

.4
6

N
A

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 w

el
l w

ith
in

 o
ur

 ta
rg

et
 th

is
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
do

w
n 

to
 te

am
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
ge

th
er

.  
W

he
re

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

ha
ve

 
ta

ke
n 

lo
ng

er
 to

 tu
rn

 a
ro

un
d 

th
is

 is
 n

or
m

al
ly

 d
ue

 th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 b

at
hr

oo
m

s 
/ k

itc
he

ns
.

B
us

in
es

s 
ev

en
ts

 p
er

 a
nn

um
E

C
 0

04
N

A
A

n
n

u
al

N
A

2
N

A
N

A
N

A
A

nn
ua

l i
nd

ic
at

or
.

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

ac
an

t u
ni

ts
 in

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e
E

C
 0

16
N

A
A

n
n

u
al

N
A

T
B

C
N

A
N

A
N

A
A

nn
ua

l i
nd

ic
at

or
.

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

+v
e

(R
P

)

W
or

se
ni

ng
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

am
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r
� ���

-v
e

Lo
w

er
 S

up
er

 O
ut

pu
t A

re
a

L
S

O
A

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 s
am

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
la

st
 y

ea
r

� ���
*

W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s
W

M

N
o 

da
ta

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d

#
T

B
C

D
E

C
C

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 fo

r 
th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r/

pe
rio

d
N

A
(P

S
)

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y

R
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
 in

 p
la

ce

C
o

m
m

en
ts

H
is

to
ri

c

T
o 

be
 c

on
fir

m
ed

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
In

d
ic

at
o

r 
R

ef
er

en
ce

D
at

a 
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

C
u

rr
en

t

K
ey

 t
o

 T
er

m
s 

an
d

 S
ym

b
o

ls

P
os

iti
ve

 T
re

nd

N
eg

at
iv

e 
T

re
nd

9
D

at
a 

co
rr

ec
t a

s 
at

 1
7:

00
 o

n 
M

on
da

y 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

Page 91



Page 92



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\AI00004395\Item11BenefitImprovementReportfinal2.DOC/20.10.10/LW 

BENEFITS IMPROVEMENT PLAN – QUARTERLY MONITORING JULY TO 
SEPTEMBER  2010 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Braley, Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance and 

Resources 
Non-Key Decision  

 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

The report advises Members on the performance of the Benefits Service 
during the third quarter and to provide an update on progress against the 
Benefits Service Improvement Plan. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
subject to any comments, the report be noted. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Benefits Service Improvement Plan was developed in response to the 

Audit Commission Inspection in February 2009. 
 
3.2 Work is progressing towards the aims of the improvement plan.  The service 

was re-inspected in October 2010 and the new findings from the Audit 
Commission will be known in November 2010 and published early January 
2011. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 Claims Performance 
 There is one national Indicator for the Benefits Service, NI181 which 

measures the average time taken to process new claims and change events 
for Housing Benefit and/or Council Tax Benefit claims.  The target average 
of 12 days has been met with new claims taking on average 18 days to 
process and change events taking 11 days on average.  
 

Agenda Item 11Page 93



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\AI00004395\Item11BenefitImprovementReportfinal2.DOC/20.10.10/LW 

NI 181 Average claim processing times 2009 and 2010

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20

Se
pt
em

be
r

Oc
to
be
r

No
ve
m
be
r

De
ce
m
be
r

Ja
nu
ar
y

Fe
br
ua
ry

Ma
rc
h

Ap
ril

Ma
y

Ju
ne Ju

ly

Au
gu
st

Se
pt
em

be
r

Target Actual
 

 
4.2 The table below gives some context to these figures, the most recent 

national data available is the average for the 2009/10 year and as can be 
seen new claims are being processed considerably faster than the 
national average.  Change events are lagging behind the national trend 
but the national figures include a lot of system based work in the final 
quarter which are not part of the indicator but have reduced the national 
average. 
  

  
 
 
 
 
 

 Claims decided within 14 days 
 
4.3 A locally reported performance measure is the percentage of claims 

decided within 14 days of being able to make a decision on the claim.   
A target of 90% has been set for the current year and the average for the 
second quarter was 92%. 
 

Average processing times  

  

National 
Average 
2009/10 

RBC Quarter 2 
2010/11 

Combined 11 12 
New claims 25 18 
Change Events 8 11 

Page 94



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\AI00004395\Item11BenefitImprovementReportfinal2.DOC/20.10.10/LW 

% Decided w ithin 14 days    Target = 90%

75

80

85

90

95

100

04
/04

/20
10

18
/04

/20
10

02
/05

/20
10

16
/05

/20
10

30
/05

/20
10

13
/06

/20
10

27
/06

/20
10

11
/07

/20
10

25
/07

/20
10

08
/08

/20
10

22
/08

/20
10

05
/09

/20
10

19
/09

/20
10

03
/10

/20
10

17
/10

/20
10

 
 
4.4 Case-load and Claims received 

The number of claims received increased in the quarter with 1146 claim 
forms being received compared with 1029 in the previous quarter.  The 
caseload also increased slightly to 8169 up from 8132 at the end of the 
previous quarter.  A total of 6202 change events were worked on in the 
quarter compared to 6282 in the previous quarter.  1387 new claims were 
decided compared to 1463 previously. 

 

New Claims and Change events from April 2009

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju

ly

Au
gu
st

Se
pt
em

be
r

Oc
to
be
r

No
ve
m
be
r

D
ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu
ar
y

Fe
br
ua
ry

Ma
rc
h
Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju

ly

Au
gu
st

Se
pt
em

be
r

C
la
im
s

New Claims Change  Events
 

 
 
 

Page 95



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\AI00004395\Item11BenefitImprovementReportfinal2.DOC/20.10.10/LW 

4.5 New ways of working 
Over the summer the Benefits Services changed how outstanding work 
was distributed.  Rather than some of the team work on new claims in date 
order and some work on change events in date order the caseload has 
been divided into work areas based on surname.  This has enabled 
documents in the services electronic document management system to be 
coded so that they are sent directly to the relevant Officer as soon as they 
are scanned.  

 
4.6 A new performance management framework has also been introduced 

where staff have a target number of claims to process.  Rather than having 
a target for new claims and a target for changes the target can be achieved 
by processing either claim type – a new claim is weighted at 1.5 and 
changes at 0.3 to reflect the extra work normally required to process a new 
claim.  The target of 5 per day is based on completed claims only to reward 
getting it right first time.  The framework will be extended in the new year to 
include an accuracy weighting. 

 
4.7 Overpayment recovery 

The amount of outstanding overpaid Housing Benefit was £1,206,271 at 
the beginning of the quarter.  New overpayments totalling £165,374 were 
identified and £154,838 was recovered in the quarter.  This meant that an 
amount equal to 94% of the debt identified in the quarter was recovered or 
11% of the total debt outstanding at the start of the quarter. 

 

OVERPAID HOUSING BENEFIT RECOVERY

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

Jul - Sept
2009

Oct - Dec
2009

Jan - March
2010

April - Jun
2010

Jul - Sept
2010

Total Outstanding Total OP Identified in period
Total OP Recovered in period Total Write Off

 
 

Page 96



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\AI00004395\Item11BenefitImprovementReportfinal2.DOC/20.10.10/LW 

4.8 The service also monitors that the level of overpayments caused by Local 
Authority Error remains below the threshold.  Only £28,533 or 0.16% of 
qualifying expenditure has been treated as Local Authority error.  

 
4.9 Local Authorities receive a grant to cover all overpayments attributed to 

Local Authority delay or error as long as the total does not exceed 0.48% of 
qualifying expenditure (qualifying expenditure in this case being 
expenditure which attracts 100% subsidy). 

 
4.10 Total expenditure on Benefit payments at the end of quarter was 

£18,537,508. Expenditure for the same period last year was £17,653,940.   
 

Benefits Expenditure as at 01/10/10

£26,814

£6,306,360

£4,727,515

£7,476,819

£0

£1,000,000

£2,000,000

£3,000,000

£4,000,000

£5,000,000

£6,000,000

£7,000,000

£8,000,000

Council Tenants Homeless Rent Allowance Council Tax
 

 

4.11. Counter Fraud work 
In the quarter 372 cases where fraud was suspected were referred to the 
Investigations team, and 15 Cautions and 3 Administration penalties were 
issued. 1 case was identified as being suitable for prosecution and 4 cases 
were successfully prosecuted. 

FRAUD INVESTIGATION OUTCOMES

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20

Oct-08 Jan-09 Apr-09 Jun-09 Oct-09 Jan-10 Apr-10 Jun-10

Dec-08 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 Dec-09 Mar-10 Jun-10 Sep-10

Cautions Admin penalties Prosecutions
 

Page 97



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\AI00004395\Item11BenefitImprovementReportfinal2.DOC/20.10.10/LW 

4.12 Accuracy 
A system generated 4% sample of work processed is undertaken to help 
ensure that the correct decision is being made. The current accuracy figure 
is for 99.84%. The check requires another Officer to verify that the claim 
has been set up correctly. Further quality checks are undertaken by home 
visits three months after a new claim has been put into payment (apart 
from Pension Credit claims).  

 
 Improvement plan 
 
4.13  The majority of the improvement plan has been completed or there are 

plans in place to complete the improvement. Following the October 2010 
re-inspection further recommendations are expected which can be used to 
develop the service. The original inspection set out four main 
recommendations covering; improved management and collection of 
overpaid Housing Benefit, adopting a Take-Up strategy, making the service 
more accessible and setting challenging service standards and 
performance targets. 

 
4.14  The overpayment recovery process has been mapped, a new 

Overpayments Officer appointed and aged debt reports are regularly run 
and monitored.   This has led to improved overpayment recovery. 

 
4.15 A Take-Up strategy has been created to help local people maximise their 

income. Consultation has taken place with stakeholders such as the Job 
Centre Plus, Age Concern and Citizens Advice Bureau. Various activities 
and events are scheduled to promote take-up. More than £100,000 extra 
income has been obtained for local people in the last nine months. 

 
4.16 Service users have been asked their views on aspects of service provision 

and the service is working closer with voluntary and community 
organisations. 

 
4.17  The web site has been updated and made more relevant with electronic 

forms for new claims as well as changes. Work has been done with the 
Customer Service staff to promote the Quick Response process where 
claims can be dealt with within two working days. Closer working with 
landlords including successful trial for a landlord to gather evidence for 
claims.  

 
4.18 Detailed Service standards set, monitored and reported to customers. 

Regular performance reporting to Councillors and Senior Officers and 
improved performance management of processing staff. 

Page 98



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\AI00004395\Item11BenefitImprovementReportfinal2.DOC/20.10.10/LW 

4.19 The final position regarding the Benefits Improvement Plan has been 
included at Appendix 1. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no specific financial implications. 
 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no specific legal implications. 
 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no specific policy implications 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 Enterprising Community 
 Safe 
 Well Managed Organisation  
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 Without adequate performance monitoring arrangements there is a risk that 

the planned/required improvements in the Benefits Service will not be 
achieved. In addition without effective recovery procedures for overallowed 
Housing Benefit the Council will forego the ability to pursue debt recovery 
procedures with a consequential loss of income to the Council. 

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None specific. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None Specific. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
 None Specific. 
 
 

Page 99



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\AI00004395\Item11BenefitImprovementReportfinal2.DOC/20.10.10/LW 

13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 None Specific. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None specific. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None specific. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
 None specific. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None specific. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
 The Performance Development Team are as useful source of learning for 

the Benefits Service. 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 None Specific. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

YES 

Chief Executive 
 

YES 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes 

Page 100



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\9\3\AI00004395\Item11BenefitImprovementReportfinal2.DOC/20.10.10/LW 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

N/A 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 No Specific Ward Relevance. 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 - Position Statement – Benefits Service Improvement Plan 
as at September 2010. 

 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Audit Commission inspection report. 
 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Teresa Kristunas 
E Mail: teresa.kristunas@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel: Ext: 3295 
 

Page 101



Page 102



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 1
 

 K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
8:
  

T
o
 p
ro
d
u
ce
 a
n
d
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n
 a
n
 Im

p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e 
B
en
ef
it
s 
 S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 d
el
iv
er
s 
a 
B
en
ef
it
s 
S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 is
 r
es
p
o
n
si
ve
 t
o
 c
u
st
o
m
er
 

n
ee
d
s 

M
o
n
th
ly
 P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

 
 

 
O
w
n
er
 :
 

H
ea
d
 o
f 
F
in
an
ce
 a
n
d
 R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

 D
at
e:
   

S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
0 

 

 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

April 

May 

June 

July 

Aug 

Sep 

Oct 

Nov 

Dec 

Jan 

Feb 

Mar 

C
o
m
m
en
t 
/  

C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

 
 

25
.1
 

(R
1)
 

Im
p
ro
ve
 t
h
e 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 
an
d
 c
o
lle
ct
io
n
 o
f 
al
l H

o
u
si
n
g
 B
en
ef
it
 o
ve
rp
ay
m
en
ts
.  
  

R
1d
 

R
ev
ie
w
 th

e 
w
rit
e 
of
f p

ol
ic
ie
s 
an
d 

pr
oc
ed
ur
e.
 

 D
av
id
 R
ile
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

N
ew

 p
ol
ic
y 
ap
pr
ov
ed
 

an
d 
be
in
g 
us
ed
. 

 
R
1h
 

O
ve
ra
ll 
pr
of
ile
 o
f t
he
 h
is
to
ric
 d
eb
t 

is
 n
ot
 r
ep
or
te
d 
or
 r
eg
ul
ar
ly
 

m
on
ito
re
d.
 

     

M
an
dy
 

V
er
no

n/
 

S
an

dr
a 

M
ad
do

x 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

R
eg

ul
ar
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
of
 

ag
ed
 d
eb
t a
na
ly
si
s.
 

25
.7
 

(R
7)
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 
   
   
   
  

 

 
P
ro
gr
am

m
ed
 d
at
es
 

 
O
n 
ta
rg
et
 

 
O
ne
 m

on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
O
ve
r 
on
e 
m
on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
R
ep
ro
gr
am

m
ed
/e
xt
en
de

d 
 

S
us
pe
nd

ed
 

 

Page 103



K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
8:
  

T
o
 p
ro
d
u
ce
 a
n
d
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n
 a
n
 Im

p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e 
B
en
ef
it
s 
 S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 d
el
iv
er
s 
a 
B
en
ef
it
s 
S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 is
 r
es
p
o
n
si
ve
 t
o
 c
u
st
o
m
er
 

n
ee
d
s 

M
o
n
th
ly
 P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

 
 

 
O
w
n
er
 :
 

H
ea
d
 o
f 
F
in
an
ce
 a
n
d
 R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

 D
at
e:
   

S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
0 

 

 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

April 

May 

June 

July 

Aug 

Sep 

Oct 

Nov 

Dec 

Jan 

Feb 

Mar 

C
o
m
m
en
t 
/  

C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

R
7b
 

Im
pr
ov
e 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 a
t 

se
rv
ic
e 
le
ve
l. 
In
tr
od
uc
e 
st
af
f 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
pp
ra
is
al
s 
an
d 

in
di
vi
du
al
 o
r 
te
am

 ta
rg
et
s 
fo
r 

pr
oc
es
si
ng
 s
ta
ff.
 M
ea
su
re
 

pr
od
uc
tiv
ity
 s
ys
te
m
at
ic
al
ly
. 

E
m
be
d 
ne
w
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t. 

 

D
av
id
 T
ay
lo
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

D
at
a 
an
al
ys
ed
 a
nd
 

ta
rg
et
s 
se
t. 

R
ev
is
ed
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 fr
om

 A
pr
il 

20
10
. 

 F
ee
db
ac
k 
gi
ve
n 
to
 

pr
oc
es
si
ng
 s
ta
ff 
on
 th
ei
r 

cu
rr
en
t p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
. 

25
.1
0 

(R
10
) 

C
u
st
o
m
er
 A
cc
es
s 
   

 
R
10
d 

B
en
ef
its
 S
er
vi
ce
 h
as
 n
ot
 y
et
 

id
en
tif
ie
d 
its
 h
ar
d 
to
 r
ea
ch
 g
ro
up
s.
 

  

D
av
id
 T
ay
lo
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

R
eg

ul
ar
 a
tte
nd
an
ce
 a
t 

D
is
ab
ili
ty
 G
ro
up
 

m
ee
tin
gs
 to
 id
en
tif
y 
an
y 

po
te
nt
ia
l p
ro
bl
em

s 
or
 

di
ffi
cu
lti
es
. 

R
10
e 

T
he
 S
er
vi
ce
 h
as
 n
ot
 fo
rm

al
ly
 

as
se
ss
ed
 w
he
th
er
 a
ll 
us
er
s 
ha
ve
 

fa
ir 
an
d 
eq
ua
l a
cc
es
s 
to
 th
e 

S
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 it
s 
po
lic
ie
s.
 

D
av
id
 T
ay
lo
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
   

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

In
iti
al
 E
qu

al
ity
 Im

pa
ct
 

A
ss
es
sm

en
t u

nd
er
ta
ke
n 
 

 
P
ro
gr
am

m
ed
 d
at
es
 

 
O
n 
ta
rg
et
 

 
O
ne
 m

on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
O
ve
r 
on
e 
m
on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
R
ep
ro
gr
am

m
ed
/e
xt
en
de

d 
 

S
us
pe
nd

ed
 

 

Page 104



K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
8:
  

T
o
 p
ro
d
u
ce
 a
n
d
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n
 a
n
 Im

p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e 
B
en
ef
it
s 
 S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 d
el
iv
er
s 
a 
B
en
ef
it
s 
S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 is
 r
es
p
o
n
si
ve
 t
o
 c
u
st
o
m
er
 

n
ee
d
s 

M
o
n
th
ly
 P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

 
 

 
O
w
n
er
 :
 

H
ea
d
 o
f 
F
in
an
ce
 a
n
d
 R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

 D
at
e:
   

S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
0 

 

 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

April 

May 

June 

July 

Aug 

Sep 

Oct 

Nov 

Dec 

Jan 

Feb 

Mar 

C
o
m
m
en
t 
/  

C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

R
10
f 

S
om

e 
vu
ln
er
ab
le
 c
la
im
an
ts
 a
re
 

re
ce
iv
in
g 
a 
sl
ow

er
 s
er
vi
ce
 th

an
 

ot
he
r 
cl
ai
m
an
ts
. 

D
av
id
 T
ay
lo
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

A
na
ly
si
s 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 to
 

un
de
rs
ta
nd
 r
ea
so
ns
 –
 

lin
ks
 m
ad
e 
to
 lo
ca
l 

gr
ou
ps
 to
 d
is
cu
ss
 a
ny
 

pr
ob
le
m
s.
   

25
.1
1 

(R
11
) 

V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
   
  

 
R
4g
 

R
el
at
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
co
st
s 
di
re
ct
ly
 to

 th
e 

ou
tc
om

es
 a
nd
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

de
liv
er
ed
, e

st
ab
lis
hi
ng

 w
he
th
er
 

im
pr
ov
in
g 
va
lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on
ey
 is
 

be
in
g 
ac
hi
ev
ed
. 

T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

S
er
vi
ce
 c
os
ts
 id
en
tif
ie
d 

an
d 
fu
rt
he
r 
w
or
k 
to
 b
e 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
re
-

in
sp
ec
tio
n 
re
po
rt
. 

R
11
a 

D
em

on
st
ra
te
 im

pr
ov
ed
 o
ut
co
m
es
 

th
at
 h
av
e 
ar
is
en
 fr
om

 a
ct
iv
el
y 

ex
pl
or
in
g 
op
po
rt
un
iti
es
 to
 w
or
k 
in
 

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 fi
na
nc
ia
l 

ef
fic
ie
nc
ie
s 

D
av
id
 

T
ay
lo
r/
T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na

s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 

sh
ar
ed
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 w
ith
 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 W

yr
e 

F
or
es
t. 
T
o 
be
 c
on
tin
ue
d 

vi
a 
tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 

pr
oc
es
s.
 

 
P
ro
gr
am

m
ed
 d
at
es
 

 
O
n 
ta
rg
et
 

 
O
ne
 m

on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
O
ve
r 
on
e 
m
on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
R
ep
ro
gr
am

m
ed
/e
xt
en
de

d 
 

S
us
pe
nd

ed
 

 

Page 105



K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
8:
  

T
o
 p
ro
d
u
ce
 a
n
d
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n
 a
n
 Im

p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e 
B
en
ef
it
s 
 S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 d
el
iv
er
s 
a 
B
en
ef
it
s 
S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 is
 r
es
p
o
n
si
ve
 t
o
 c
u
st
o
m
er
 

n
ee
d
s 

M
o
n
th
ly
 P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

 
 

 
O
w
n
er
 :
 

H
ea
d
 o
f 
F
in
an
ce
 a
n
d
 R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

 D
at
e:
   

S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
0 

 

 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

April 

May 

June 

July 

Aug 

Sep 

Oct 

Nov 

Dec 

Jan 

Feb 

Mar 

C
o
m
m
en
t 
/  

C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

R
11
c 

C
om

pa
re
 c
os
ts
 to
 o
th
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s,
 

ca
lc
ul
at
e 
un
it 
co
st
s 
an
d 
se
ek
 to
 

ev
al
ua
te
 c
os
t e
ffe
ct
iv
en
es
s.
 

D
av
id
 T
ay
lo
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

Li
m
ite
d 
co
m
pa
ris
on
 

al
re
ad
y 
un
de
rt
ak
en
. 

F
ur
th
er
 w
or
k 
to
 b
e 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 o
nc
e 
re
-

in
sp
ec
tio
n 
re
po
rt
 

av
ai
la
bl
e.
   
  

R
11
d 

C
re
at
e 
ro
bu
st
 p
ro
po
sa
ls
 fo
r 

de
liv
er
in
g 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
sa
vi
ng

s.
 

Id
en
tif
y 
ar
ea
s 
fo
r 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 

sa
vi
ng

s 
th
at
 a
re
 c
as
h-
ab
le
 a
nd
 

su
st
ai
na
bl
e.
 

D
av
id
 T
ay
lo
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
  

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

S
ha
re
d 
se
rv
ic
e.
 

E
-c
la
im
 fo
rm

 a
nd
 B
A
C
S
 

ta
ke
-u
p.
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
oc
es
s.
 

R
11
e 

F
ut
ur
e 
in
ve
st
m
en
t p
ro
po
sa
ls
 

sh
ou
ld
 d
em

on
st
ra
te
 a
n 

aw
ar
en
es
s 
of
 li
nk
in
g 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

in
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 to
 v
al
ue
 fo
r 
m
on
ey
 

D
av
id
 

T
ay
lo
r/
T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na

s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

Li
nk
ed
 to
 a
bo
ve
 w
or
k 
on
 

id
en
tif
yi
ng
 c
os
ts
 a
nd
 

lin
ki
ng
 to
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

an
d 
ou
tc
om

es
. 

     
25
.1
3 

(R
13
) 

S
ys
te
m
 a
n
d
 S
ys
te
m
 R
ep
o
rt
s 
   

 
P
ro
gr
am

m
ed
 d
at
es
 

 
O
n 
ta
rg
et
 

 
O
ne
 m

on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
O
ve
r 
on
e 
m
on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
R
ep
ro
gr
am

m
ed
/e
xt
en
de

d 
 

S
us
pe
nd

ed
 

 

Page 106



K
ey
 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
W
M
8:
  

T
o
 p
ro
d
u
ce
 a
n
d
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n
 a
n
 Im

p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e 
B
en
ef
it
s 
 S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 d
el
iv
er
s 
a 
B
en
ef
it
s 
S
er
vi
ce
 t
h
at
 is
 r
es
p
o
n
si
ve
 t
o
 c
u
st
o
m
er
 

n
ee
d
s 

M
o
n
th
ly
 P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

 
 

 
O
w
n
er
 :
 

H
ea
d
 o
f 
F
in
an
ce
 a
n
d
 R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

 D
at
e:
   

S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
0 

 

 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

April 

May 

June 

July 

Aug 

Sep 

Oct 

Nov 

Dec 

Jan 

Feb 

Mar 

C
o
m
m
en
t 
/  

C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

R
13
b 

Im
pr
ov
e 
H
B
/C
T
B
 S
ub
si
dy
 C
la
im
 

pr
oc
es
se
s.
 In
tr
od
uc
e 
te
st
in
g 
of
 

so
ftw

ar
e 
re
le
as
es
 a
nd
 r
eg
ul
ar
 

te
st
in
g 
of
 c
la
im
 a
cc
ur
ac
y 
du
rin
g 

th
e 
ye
ar
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 s
ub
si
dy
 

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n 
is
 a
cc
ur
at
e.
 

D
av
id
 T
ay
lo
r 

/Ia
n 
S
pr
ot
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE

T
E
 

M
on
th
ly
 m

on
ito
rin
g 
of
 

cl
ai
m
. 

IB
S
 c
on
su
lta
nc
y.
 

W
or
k 
w
ith
 W

yr
e 
F
or
es
t. 

R
13
c 

IB
S
 a
nd
 A
ni
te
 a
re
 n
ot
 b
ei
ng
 u
se
d 

to
 b
es
t e
ffe
ct
.  
 

D
av
id
 T
ay
lo
r 

/V
ic
ki
 L
ew

is
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ur
th
er
 w
or
k 
to
 b
e 
do
ne
 

to
 im

pr
ov
e 
no
tif
ic
at
io
n 

le
tte

rs
 –
 w
ai
t f
or
 fi
nd
in
gs
 

fr
om

 r
e-
in
sp
ec
tio
n.
 

 

 
P
ro
gr
am

m
ed
 d
at
es
 

 
O
n 
ta
rg
et
 

 
O
ne
 m

on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
O
ve
r 
on
e 
m
on
th
 b
eh
in
d 

 
R
ep
ro
gr
am

m
ed
/e
xt
en
de

d 
 

S
us
pe
nd

ed
 

 

Page 107



Page 108



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QUARTERLYMONITORINGOFCOMPLAINTS201011Qtr2
JulySeptReportFINAL1.doc28.10.10jw 

QUARTERLY MONITORING OF COMPLAINTS: JULY-SEPTEMBER 2010 (1st 
Quarter) 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Michael Braley, Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Amanda de Warr, Head of Customer Services 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 This report provides a view on aspects of the Council’s Formal Complaints 

Procedure.  It shows the numbers of complaints at each Stage (Formal, 
Complaint Appeal and Ombudsman) whether they were responded to on 
target and what has been learnt/service improvements that have been 
made. 
 

1.2 The report also shows the compliments recorded during the same period 
and details the Ombudsman Enquiry response times and outcomes. 
 

1.3 This report provides Members with an opportunity to review the Council’s 
performance for quarter 2 of the 2010/11 financial year. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 

 
the update on complaints and compliments for the period July to 
September 2010 be noted. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Council's Formal Complaints Procedure has the following stages: 

 
Stage 1  
Formal Complaint 

Relevant Director/Head of Service for that service 
area responds.  Target for response 10 working 
days.  

Stage 2 
Complaint Appeal 

Chief Executive investigates and responds.  
Target for response 10 working days. 

Stage 3 
Member Complaint 
Appeal 

Panel of Members consider complaint.   
Committee Services respond on Panel's behalf.  
No target set for response time. 

Ombudsman Chief Executive investigates and responds.   
Target of 28 working days (set by Ombudsman) 

Agenda Item 12Page 109



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QUARTERLYMONITORINGOFCOMPLAINTS201011Qtr2
JulySeptReportFINAL1.doc28.10.10jw 

 
3.2 Quarterly reporting is intended to drive improvement based on 

organisational need and local priorities. 
 

4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 Basis of Quarterly Reporting 

 
4.1 The report sets out the statistical details of Formal Complaints, Complaint 

Appeals, Member Complaint Appeals and Ombudsman Enquiries. 
 
4.2 This will enable a baseline to be set for further reporting and monitoring. 

Member involvement in monitoring performance for the remainder of the 
2010/11 reporting year will involve: 

  
Quarter Period Member Group Purpose of 

reporting 
3 Oct – Dec February Executive 

Committee / Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee   

Receive quarter 3 
statistics and to 
recommend any 
improvements to 
services 
 

4 Jan – Mar  May Executive Committee 
/ Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

Receive annual 
outturn statistics 
and to recommend 
any improvements 
to services 
 

 
4.3 77% of Stage 1 complaints were responded to within the 10 day target 

compared to 74% in the same quarter last year 75% for the whole of 2009-
10. 

 
4.4 90% of Stage 2 complaints were responded to within the 10 day target 

compared to 80% in the same quarter last year and 74% for the whole of 
2009-10.   

 
4.5 The Audit Commission monitors the Ombudsman Response times and 

these are used in Audit Commission reports/reviews including Direction of 
Travel and Service Reviews. 

 

Page 110



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QUARTERLYMONITORINGOFCOMPLAINTS201011Qtr2
JulySeptReportFINAL1.doc28.10.10jw 

4.6 There were no Ombudsman enquiries/complaints during the 1st quarter of 
2010-11, but two in the 2nd quarter with an average response time of 23 
days.   

 
4.7 The Ombudsman Response times for previous years are as follows:   

 
Year Number of Enquiries RBC average days 
06/07 8 39.6 days 
07/08 6 26.7 days 
08/09 5 14.6 days 
09/10 6 25 days 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Poor performance may have an impact on the financial position of the 

authority. 
 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 No particular legal issues arising from this report – any legal issues arising 

from complaints or compliments are dealt with on a case by case basis. 
 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 No particular issues arising from this report – any policy issues arising from 

complaints or compliments are dealt with on a case by case basis. 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 Well Managed Organisation 
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 Without analysing the Council’s complaints or compliments the Council 

cannot identify whether there are any patterns to complaints / compliments 
which need to be addressed and any lessons learned in order to improve 
the Council performance and service to the Customer. 

 

Page 111



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QUARTERLYMONITORINGOFCOMPLAINTS201011Qtr2
JulySeptReportFINAL1.doc28.10.10jw 

10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Without analysing the Council’s complaints or compliments the Council 

cannot identify whether there are any patterns to complaints / compliments 
which need to be addressed and any lessons learned in order to improve 
the Council performance and service to the Customer. 

 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None Specific. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
 None Specific. 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 None Specific. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None Specific. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None Specific. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
 None Specific. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None Specific. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
 See Appendices One and Four. 
 

Page 112



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QUARTERLYMONITORINGOFCOMPLAINTS201011Qtr2
JulySeptReportFINAL1.doc28.10.10jw 

19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
  None Specific. 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

Yes 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All Wards 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix One : Monitoring data 2nd Quarter (July-September 2010) 
Appendix Two : Quarterly Complaints Statistics 
Appendix Three : Quarterly Compliments Statistics 
Appendix Four: What has been learnt and Service Improvements 

 

Page 113



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QUARTERLYMONITORINGOFCOMPLAINTS201011Qtr2
JulySeptReportFINAL1.doc28.10.10jw 

23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

The details to support the information provided within this report are held 
by Chief Executive/Directors/Personal Assistants. 
 

24. KEY 
 
 None 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Susan Tasker, PA to Chief Executive  
E Mail: susan.tasker@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel: 01527 53400 ext 3299 
 

Page 114



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QuarterlyMonitoringofComplaints201011Qtr2JulySeptAppendix1FINAL0.doc - 
28.10.10jw 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 
COMPLAINTS MONITORING 
July-September 2010-2011 (2nd Quarter) 
 
Formal Complaints (Stage 1) 
 
 Number of 

complaints 
Target met 
(response 
within 10 
working 
days) 

Complaint 
Justified 

Complaint 
Partly 
Justified 

Complaint 
Not 
Justified 

Still 
awaiting 
response 
from 
officers 
(whether 
justified or 
not) 

1st Quarter 14 11 (79%) 5 1 7 1 
2nd Quarter 26 20 (77%) 6 5 15  
 
Of the 26 Stage 1 complaints, details of the eleven that were Justified or Partly Justified: 
 
Service Nature of 

Complaint 
Justified/ 
Partly 
Justified 

Action Taken or 
explanation 

Service Improvement 

Repairs & 
Maintenance 

Unhappy with 
how disabled 
shower was 
fitted 

Partly 
Justified 

The shower curtain 
was as requested by 
the O/T and the 
water seeping 
underneath is due to 
the fact that tenant is 
assisted into the 
shower by her 
husband so this 
causes the shower 
curtain to move 
which allows water to 
seep across the floor.  
SPI do not give 
times, only dates, as 
to when their 
workmen will call - 
this was not handled 
particularly well by 
either their electrician 
or decorator and SPI 
are now aware of 
this.  However, this is 
the first complaint 
received about SPI 
since taking on 
installation of level 
access showers. 
 

Monitor SPI customer 
service 

Page 115



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QuarterlyMonitoringofComplaints201011Qtr2JulySeptAppendix1FINAL0.doc - 
28.10.10jw 

 

 
Tenancy/ 
OSS 

Tenancy Advice Justified Apology given for the 
way in which the 
residents were 
treated at the OSS, 
and a full explanation 
given of the 
involvement of the 
Special Needs Team. 
 

Further training to be 
arranged for OSS Advisor 
involved. 

Community 
Centres 

Complaint 
about member 
of staff spoke to 
resident when 
son had cut 
himself on 
thistles. 

Justified Courtyard area 
cleared of all weeds 
and potential plants 
of a spiky nature the 
following day. 

Implemented within 48 
hours of Manager being 
made aware of it. 

Repairs & 
Maintenance 

Fence was 
replaced and a 
tree removed 
without advising 
(which was 
special to them) 
and trodden on 
the plants and 
shrubs/trashed 
the garden. 

Partly 
Justified 

Normally tenant 
would be asked to 
clear overgrowth to 
garden themselves, 
however due to age 
of tenant, we 
arranged for 
Landscape to clear.  
Unfortunately they 
removed a tree which 
daughter says was of 
sentimental value.  
Tenant did not point 
out tree should not 
be removed. 

Genuine error as tenants 
themselves did not confirm 
about the removal of the 
tree.  
 

Housing 
Options 

Housing 
application – 
lack of 
information 
from officer. 

Jusified Spoken to member of 
staff.  Team Leader 
now to deal with the 
case to assist the 
customer. 
 

Updated procedures for 
someone being off sick 
and appointment cover.  
All staff trained on new 
procedures. 
 

Capital Central Heating 
– missed target 
dates, work not 
fully completed, 
chasing work 
and claim for 
compensation. 

Partly 
Justified 

Electric fire and 
surround has been 
provided to Mr Ward.  
An inspection has 
been made to check 
the installation after 
Mr Ward has finished 
decorating. 
 

Consult with tenant prior to 
installation. 

Tenancy Problems with a 
mutual 
exchange. 

Partly 
Justified 

Officers failed to 
confirm in writing the 
outcome of a mutual 
exchange 
application. 

Officers will be given 
training on mutual 
exchange procedures. 
 

Page 116



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QuarterlyMonitoringofComplaints201011Qtr2JulySeptAppendix1FINAL0.doc - 
28.10.10jw 

 

Housing 
Options 

Housing for 
parents due to 
disability 

Partly 
Justified 

Housing Options 
Officers spoken to 
regarding giving 
advice and not 
recording this. 
 

Specialist leaflet to be 
produced for owner 
occupiers to explain 
information more clearly 
 

Tenancy/ 
OSS 

Contesting 
payment of rent 
when tenancy 
termination and 
advice given in 
OSS 

Justified Apology given and 
debt written off. 

Arranged for OSS staff to 
have additional training on 
tenancy issues to ensure 
that they know the correct 
procedures and to ensure 
advice given in future is 
correct.  Regular training 
programmes are in place 
where all procedures will 
be tested with the 
Tenancy Team and OSS 
Officers. 

Repairs & 
Maintenance 

SPI workmen 
went to wrong 
address. 
Offered no 
apology. 
Requesting 
compensation 
for loss of 
earnings as 
husband having 
to book further 
day off for 
rescheduled 
appointment 

Justified A letter of apology 
was sent by SPI to 
the tenants and a 
convenient date to 
carry out the works 
was arranged.  This 
work has now been 
done to Mr & Mrs 
Clarke's satisfaction. 
 

The contractor will make 
sure they contact the 
resident if for any reason 
they are not able to carry 
out the works on the 
agreed date or time.  This 
procedure is now in place. 
 

Capital Problem with 
repair to bath 

Justified Arranged to fit a new 
plastic bath and 
discussed customer 
care policy with 
contractor 
 

Only use plastic baths, not 
coated steel; continued 
close communication with 
tenants where there are 
queries/complaints; 
improved customer care 
info delivered to all 
tradesmen visiting Council 
owned properties 
 

Page 117



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QuarterlyMonitoringofComplaints201011Qtr2JulySeptAppendix1FINAL0.doc - 
28.10.10jw 

 

 
Complaints Appeals (Stage 2) 
 
 Number Target Met 

(response within 10 
working days) 

Complaints Upheld 

1st Quarter 4 3 (75%) 2 
(Stage 1 response 
had classed as 
complaint as justified 
– so agreeing that 
was still the case ie 
not overturning 
previous decision) 

2nd Quarter 10 9 (90%) 2 (Stage 1 response 
classed as 
Justified/Partly 
Justified – so 
agreeing that was 
still the case ie not 
overturning previous 
decision) 

 
Member Complaint Appeals (Stage 3) 
 
 Number Dismissed Cases 
1st Quarter 1 1 
2nd Quarter 2 2 
 
 

Page 118



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QuarterlyMonitoringofComplaints201011Qtr2JulySeptAppendix1FINAL0.doc - 
28.10.10jw 

 

COMPLAINTS MONITORING : July-September 2010 (2nd Quarter) 
 
OMBUDSMAN MONITORING – 2010/11 Response times & 
Outcomes 
 
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 

(s
er
vi
ce
) 

Q
u
ar
te
r 

R
ec
ei
ve
d
 

In
fo
 

re
q
u
es
te
d
 o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 f
o
r 

re
sp
o
n
se
  

L
et
te
r 
se
n
t 

o
n
 

(b
y 
e-
m
ai
l)
 

R
es
p
o
n
se
 

ti
m
e 

 A
ve
ra
g
e 

R
es
p
o
n
se
 

ti
m
e 
- 
to
 d
at
e 

O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Housing 2nd 120710 060810 20 07 10 11 
days 

11 days No Maladministration – 
case closed 

Property/ 
WETT 

2nd  100910 011010 14 10 10 35 
days 

23 days Not yet received reply 
from LGO 

 
Year Number of Enquiries RBC average days 
06/07 8 39.6 days 
07/08 6 26.7 days 
08/09 5 14.6 days 
09/10 6 23.8 days 
 

2009/10 STATS FOR DISTRICT COUNCILS 
Less than 28 days 29-35 days 36 days or more 

61% 22% 17% 
 

Page 119



Page 120



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QuarterlyMonitoringofComplaints201011Qtr2JulySeptAppendix2JuneSeptqtr2Ap
pendix2FINAL2.doc 

APPENDIX 2 

Redditch Borough Council 
Quarterly Compliment Statistics 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING & REGENERATION, 
REGULATORY & HOUSING DIRECTORATE 

LEISURE, ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY 
DIRECTORATE 

BusinessCentres(2) Capital(2)

Planning(1) Rent(1)

Repairs&Maintenance(35) HomeSupport(9)

Tenancy(3)

 

Childrens Centres(3) Abbey Stadium (1) Cleansing(1) CommunitySafety(1)

DialARide(1) Landscape(4) WasteCollection(1)

 
FINANCE & RESOURCES DIRECTORATE POLICY, PERFORMANCE AND PARTNERSHIPS 

DIRECTORATE 

Benefits(1) CustomerServices(3) Legal Services(1)

 

None(0)

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

July-Sept 2010 
There were a total of 70 compliments in the last quarter 

What did you compliment? 
The majority of compliments related to Repairs & Maintenance 

Page 121



Page 122



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QuarterlyMonitoringofComplaints201011Qtr2JulySeptAppendix3FINAL2.doc28.
10.10jw 

APPENDIX 3 

Redditch Borough Council 
Quarterly Complaints Statistics 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEISURE, ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY 

DIRECTORATE 
FINANCE & RESOURCES 

DIRECTORATE 

Anti-Social Behaviour(3)

Community Centres(1)

Assets/Drainage(1)

 

Legal(1) Revenues/Council Tax(5)

 

PLANNING & REGENERATION, REGULATORY & HOUSING DIRECTORATE 

Capital(2) Housing Options(3)

Repairs(3) Tenancy(6)

Planning(1)

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

July-September 2010 
There were a total of 26 complaints in the last quarter 

What did you complain about? 
The majority of complaints related to Council Tax and Tenancy 
What did we do about this? 
We addressed each case individually, and tightened up our procedures.  We have 
reviewed/improved services where possible 

Page 123



Page 124



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\3\AI00004394\Item12QuarterlyMonitoringofComplaints201011QtrJulySpetAppendix4FINAL2.doc28.1
0.10jw/amended1.11.10jw 

APPENDIX 4 

Redditch Borough Council 
Quarterly Complaints Statistics 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Issue Action Taken/Improvement 
 
Unhappy with how 
disabled shower was 
fitted 
 

 
Monitor contractor. 

 
Thistles at Community 
Centre cut child 
 

 
Courtyard area cleared of all weeds and potential plants of a spiky 
nature the following day. 

 
Housing application – 
lack of information from 
officer. 
 

 
Staff training and procedures updated 

 
Housing Options – 
problem due to 
disability 
 

 
Specialist leaflet to be produced for owner occupiers to explain 
information more clearly 
 

 
Housing Contractor 
went to wrong address 
and appointment 
missed. 
 

 
The contractor will make sure they contact the resident if for any 
reason they are not able to carry out the works on the agreed date or 
time.  This procedure is now in place. 
 

 
Problem with repair to 
bath 

 
Only use plastic baths, not coated steel; continued close 
communication with tenants where there are queries/complaints; 
improved customer care information delivered to all tradesmen visiting 
Council owned properties 
 

 
Various Complaints 
 

 
Staff Training arranged, procedures updated and apologies given 
where council was at fault 

 

 

July-September 2010 
 

What we Learnt and Service Improvement  

Page 125



Page 126



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\4\AI00005468\Item13TearDropDisposalSiteReportfinal1.DOC/09.11.10sc/amen
ded IW.22/11/10 

DISPOSAL OF LAND – “TEAR DROP” ADJ. A441 ALVECHURCH HIGHWAY, 
REDDITCH 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Michael Braley, Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance and 

Resources 
Key Decision  

 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

To seek formal approval to the disposal of the land known as the “Tear 
Drop”. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
1) the land known as the “Tear Drop” be disposed of for the 

purposes detailed in the report; and 
 
2) Officers be instructed to proceed with the offer from Party E as 

detailed in the confidential Appendix 2 to the report. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 

The Council’s has previously considered the disposal of the site known as 
the “Tear Drop” as part of the former Atlantic Beacon proposal for the 
redevelopment of the Abbey Stadium.  The proposal was for the site to be 
developed for hotel use and possibly a pub which would have been 
acceptable in Planning terms.  It was envisaged in March 2008 that once 
an agent had been engaged to market the site that there may be a start on 
site as soon as early 2009. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 Despite an agreed proposal for the site officers have been unable to locate 

a formal approval by members for the disposal of the site.  However, action 
has been taken to progress the disposal of the site. 

 
4.2 Following local, regional and national advertising and several meetings with 

interested parties 5 offers have been received for the site.  There is a very 
significant range in the value of the bids.  The variation in the bids is due to 

Agenda Item 13Page 127



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\4\AI00005468\Item13TearDropDisposalSiteReportfinal1.DOC/09.11.10sc/amen
ded IW.22/11/10 

the proposed use for the site.  The lowest bid being from a purchaser with 
no immediate plans for development. 

 
4.3 The highest bid is from a purchaser who already has a business in the 

Borough and is interested in acquiring the site to enable them to unlock 
existing expansion plans for which they have already been granted 
planning permission.  The offer is conditional upon planning, survey and 
searches for the proposed development.  

 
4.4 The potential capital receipt for the site will be subject to clawback to 

English Partnerships of approximately 50%, assuming an early 2011 
completion.  English Partnerships have previously agreed to waive the 
clawback but it was blocked by the then Office of the Deputy Prime 
Minister.  Officers will be reopening discussion with English Partnerships 
regarding the clawback and the potential for its waiver. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 The disposal of the “Tear Drop” has the potential to generate a significant 
capital receipt for the Council. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The Council is required to dispose of any interest in land including leases for 

the best consideration possible under Section 123 of the Local Government 
Act 1972. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 It is envisaged that the proposed develop of this site will comply with 

existing policy.  
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 The Council will be able to use the capital receipt from this disposal to invest 

in its priorities. 
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 

There is risk that the proposed purchased is unable to obtain planning 
permission and that survey and search results are unsatisfactory thereby 
affecting the proposed purchase price. 

Page 128



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\4\AI00005468\Item13TearDropDisposalSiteReportfinal1.DOC/09.11.10sc/amen
ded IW.22/11/10 

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no customer implications. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no equality and diversity implications. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 

The disposal of surplus assets to enable the reinvestment in priority areas is 
considered good practice in terms of asset management.  The site has 
been advertised widely and this has result in a good range of interest.   

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 There are no climate change, carbon implications or biodiversity 

implications with the immediate disposal.  There may however, be such 
issues with the proposed development. 

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no human resource implications. 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no governance/performance management implications. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
 
 There are no community safety implications. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no health inequalities implications. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
 None. 
 

Page 129



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\4\AI00005468\Item13TearDropDisposalSiteReportfinal1.DOC/09.11.10sc/amen
ded IW.22/11/10 

19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 There has been no community or stakeholder engagement in the 

preparation of this report.  This disposal has been discussed by the Leisure 
Contracts Advisory Plan and the Development Group. 

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

No 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

No 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

No 

Head of Resources  
  

Author 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 Abbey Ward. 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 - Plan of the site. 
 Appendix 2 - Confidential appendix. 

Page 130



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\4\AI00005468\Item13TearDropDisposalSiteReportfinal1.DOC/09.11.10sc/amen
ded IW.22/11/10 

 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Bids held by Worcestershire County Council Property Services 
(Confidential). 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance and Resources 
E Mail: teresa.kristunas@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:      01527 64252 ext 3295 
 

Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 136



 
�

 

����������	
�
���
��	��
��������� 

�

�

����������	
��
	��������	

����

�

�

� ��	�
�
�

�

�

�������	 ��������	
� �

����
����
���	�������	�����	�
���	�������
����
������
�����
�����
������	
������������������������	����
������
���	� �����!�	���
"	
#�$��
��
�
�

� ����	��������	
	

� �����
����
���
�#��	!��
�	����
������
#��!�����%�&����
�&
�����	��'��(�
�
)�*$+��,�
�

� �  !�����	
	

� -���
#�
��������
�����	���$��	���!��-�������	����������.	!�
�

� "�##!����	���$!���	�  !����	
�

� -��	!��!�	���"��
	����
�
�

��%&	 ���'�(���	��)	����)	��*��������		
�
�&��������(�
�	����
��.�
��
�
��'���������	�(��(�����
����
������	�
��	!����	���/
	�	��0�
#�
!,�
�

��+&	 )�"'�,������	�-	����,���	��)	�-	��,�.	�/��		
�
���
��.�
�������
�	
	�������(�����
������
��(�	�!�&	
�!�.��&,�
�

���&	 �������		
�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�
�	#!�1���	� 	�
�	#���!�2	� 	�
�	"�##!����	
���	��	+�
	
�������	
���	��	��� !�#��	��	�	�������	������	���	�!2���	��	
�
�	"
�!�&	
	

��3&	 �"�����	'���		
�
"����
��
������
��������	�����'�
������(��������������1���
������
2���,��+((�
�
��	�'���������
��	���������������������������
������2�����

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 14Page 137



� � �

�������������������������������������	
�	
�	
�	
����
���
��	����
��	����
��	����
��	�����
����������

�
�

	
	

����������	
��
	��������	
���	

�
��	�����������
���&��(������
��������������
���	�#�	���3������
/
��&��	�������
��(�
�������
������&
�'��������������(�����
���������,������������
���&�.�����
��������(�����
����
��/
	�	��
0�
#�
!����	�
������!�3
!���
���	� �����!�	�����
�#��	!��
,�
�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�
�	���!���	'!��	��	�����&	
�

��4&	 "�''5��	��)	�",����.	�-	�/�	-�,��,)	�'��		
�
���
��.�
�����
	��%����	������������.�
��������(���������������
��1��
3�
.	
����	��	������	����(�
�(�
���
��

����!,�
�

�
�&	 ���6	7	-����/	,�0����	5	),�-�	�"����(	)�"������		
�
���
��.�
������
	(���
�&������
�������(�
�
������
	����,�
�

�
�&	 ���6	��)	-����/	(,����	5	�,�(,���	,���,��		
�
��������������
�
��'�������(����.����
�&�
������
��	��������
�

����

�'��.�4�
�
	�� 56��
�	����(�
����������(���������$��
#�
�

+((�
�
��
�&�
������	��	�(�
���
����������(�����56��
�	��
��(�
����������(���������$��
#�$��
��$�	
&���'��.�/
��&�
.������	#��&�	
�����"���	!�7�����'����
,���
�

��� -�������

����
���
������
�
"����
��.�
��	�'�������	�����
���	����������(�
���
�
�&�	�����������&
��
�����(������
�'��.����
������&
�'�����
���������(��������������,�

�

�� ��
#�56&�
���
��+&&�
���������
�

������	�
��(�����
�'��.������
����
�����
�����
�����	�'�����
��	������/
��&��	��
��'�����	���������.��
��"����
���	��
���
����������
�	&&
�	
���������
�'��.�	����	��������(����
&������	���6&�
��.��������,������/
��&��	��	��������
'��.���
	���������.����	�������&	
��
�&	��������.�
#��6&�
���
��	��
������.���	��,�

�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�
�	18����	��8����	��	�����&	

Page 138



� � �

�������������������������������������	
�	
�	
�	
����
���
��	����
��	����
��	����
��	�����
����������

�
�

	
	

����������	
��
	��������	
���	

�
�

&	 ��������	��	6���	�	-���'.	,���)���	��	�	"���"�'	

�,���,�.	��	�,����"�	,��)		
�
+((�
�
��	�'�������	������+'�
'��.�	���$

����!������������	��	�
�&�
�(�
�
�������
��	��������
������
	������(�
�
�	����!&����(�&��������,��
����&
	!�
�(�
�����&��������
�
��'����!�"����
��
�8���������	��	�
(	���!����	���.������
��	������	�����
���&
�&�
�!���
	�����������
2������	
#�.	
�,������
�����(���������������.	�����������
�����
&
�
���
����	��.	�����&�	
��(�
�����
��������������	�
�����
&	
��
��	
�!����
��	����������

�������	

	��������,���
�
"����
��.�
����(�
������	��$�
�����9:��(��������������
��7;9<�
�������������
��������
��	����������
�
�����	�
���,�������������	�����
���&��	������	�����
��
��������!����������	����
!���

����������	�
&
�&�
�!,��������
�����	����	&&��������	���
������	�
����(�
���
�	��
�	����
��,��+((�
�
�����������
����

������.����
������
������������
	���
	�����,��������������.�
���	������	�
	����!�
	����	����	���
����&	
��
��	
�
�

����	�
����(����	����.�
��
������
���	��&	
���(�
�����&
�
���,������
	���.��
��(�
���������	����(�
�����&���������	��
������������!�
���'	���+((�
�
�����������	���
,�
�
����������.�
��	�������	&&�	��	�!���
��������	���
��	
�����
���	�
!��(�	�����
���������&
�&�
�!,��)���
�������
�

����	�
���
�������	���
�����	&&�	�������������
��1�����������&&�	���
���������,�
�
��������
���	������
��
	�������	�������
������
�����'	
�����
���������&������	'	��	������������	��������'���������	����
	

�����	�����.��������
�&�
���	��
�

����	�
���
�	����,�������
��
��������
��
	�����
������������
������
���.���=�������	���	���
�
&
�&�
�!�.�������������
��(�
������������	������������	�������

���
��,���������
��(���&&�
����
'�
���	���&
�
���������
��	��
������������	���6
�	�����.�
��	'	��	���������&&�
��
������������
���������	����,���
�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�
�	8��!�!��	��	�����&	
�

�
9&	 ,�0���	�-	�/�	)��'5�5,�)�	��,0�"�		
�
+((�
�
���6&�	�������	������
�&�
��	���
�
������	�������	�������
&
���
������	

�
�	�
��.����������������������	���	�������
������������	�
�&�
��&
���
����!�-"������������,��+((�
�
���	��	����
�	#��������	

�����(����	
#�.��
���	�������&
�'������!�
������
��
���	�
������
���
'�!�	�������.�
#��(�������	�%�%������	�#�	���
3������/
��&���	���	�����������
�	#������>??;,�

Page 139



� � �

�������������������������������������	
�	
�	
�	
����
���
��	����
��	����
��	����
��	�����
����������

�
�

	
	

����������	
��
	��������	
���	

�
�
"����
��.�
����(�
������	������(�������	'	��	���������&&�
��

�������!��
	��&�
��	���
��
������	
!�(	
���.��������	((�
�����!�
�����
	��(�
��(�
��&���������!�(�
�
��
������	
!�(	
���(
�������
�
�����
�����!�����
���,����������$�
'�
��+&�
	��
�/
	�����$+/���.��
��
.	������
����������(����
�������!��
	��&�
��	���
��
������	
!�
(	
����.	����#��!�������	((�
����	��&	
���(������&
�
���,��+((�
�
��
.�
��	���
�&	�������	�������$+/��
	������������	�%�%�����$�
'�
���(�
@77�???�.��������
��,������
���������(�������.�����	������&	
�����
&
�'	�������
��&	�����.��
��
�

����!��&�
	����
��
������	
!�
(	
��,���
�
"	�!�
������
��.�
��	.	
����	�������
�����
�
���	���	���
�������
(�������(�
���
	��	����
������
�������&	
�������������'�
!��(���
'�
���
��#����	�%�%����,���������
��(�
������
���	������
	�����������
�

������
���
'�!�
��&��������	�����!�.���������	&&!����&	!�	�
�	
��
�����(�
����������(�������
'�
�,������(���.	��@7,?<�&�
�
A��
��!��	�����.��
���	���������
��'�������(�
������
������
�����
����&	���	�����
�8��
���'����
	��������
�!��
	'����
�����������(!���	���

�	�������&	!�(�
�������
'�
�,��+((�
�
��.�
���������������	��@7,B?�
.��������	���
��
��'�������
�	
���(�
�����
������
����������	�
�����
��	��������������	�����!�.��������.����������&	!�	����
��	��
@>,??,�
�
"����
����������	����������
����	��	��&	
������	�����	������
&���������!��(�
���'����������&	
�������	���
����	��!���������
������
	������������������
���
������
�������'��'�������&�
	���������
��
'�
�,����.�'�
��������&������	�����������(�	�����,�������&	
��
����&
�'�������
'�
��
�'�
�.����	�!��(���������
�'���
����.�
������
�(�
�

��	���������
��!����&����������������������&	
�������
'�
��
����'�
!,��"�
��'�
���������
���
������(������&	
�������	�����&���
��������
����������
����	���	�����	�
��.�
#�.	������
�	#������
������	�%�%�����(�������
��������.��#,���
��
�����������
���
������(�
�����&	
�����������.�
#��	�������
	

���������������'���
������
����
����.��#����	��	��
�	��
�(��	�
�	��
���������������
��,�
�
��������������	����8����������.�!����
���	�������	�
���
��������
���������(�������	�%�%�������
'�
�,��*��&	
���
�	����������	����(�����
��
'�
���

�

����'�
�������������
��������
�����!�	�����
�	��
�������!,��3�
���
��
���
�
����
����
����(�	������
��(���
�	��
'�������	����&	
�������	������
��(�
������
��.����	��
����	
�!�
���������������
'�
�����'�������������
	�����,�
�
"����
����������	����	�%	%������	��������������A�
���(�	��	�#�	���
3������
�'��.�.��
���	�������&�	
������������	
���
��������!�	
,�����
������"����
���	����'���&����6&�
���������������A�
�����.	��
	�
������	�����!���������	'��	���&&�
�����!����
�'��.�����
�&�
��

Page 140



� � �

�������������������������������������	
�	
�	
�	
����
���
��	����
��	����
��	����
��	�����
����������

�
�

	
	

����������	
��
	��������	
���	

�
&
��
����
������
	������(������	���
��!�����56�
���'���������������
7?�����'����
,���
�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�:	 �
�	)!��5�5,!��	���;	���	-!�!�
	(��18	���1�!�!��	�
�	

��8���	!�	 1��
��	����!�	����	�1�<���	��	�
�	�88��$��	� 	�
�	
"
�!�	� 	�
�	�$��$!�=	���	���1�!��	"�##!�����	��8���	!��	
 !��!�2�	 ��	�
�	����!�����!��	� 	�
�	�>��1�!$�	
"�##!����?	���	

	

:	 �
�	��8���	��	�����&	
�
�

�
@&	 ��,-�,���"�	,���,�	5	��,�-�'��	-�,	/�����(�	
'�"�'	��0�,������	��)	/��'�/		
�
��������������
�
��'���	�.
������
�&�
��.��
�����	���������
&�
(�
�	�
���(���
'�
���.����������
������(�������
�(����������
�(�
�
���������2�
	��5�'�
�������	�����	���������
����
��
	�����
��	!���,��+�������	�����(�������(�
�	�����
���	�����.����������
�&�
��
"����
��
�8���������	������(����.����8������������	��
�������!�
������
�(����������
������������	����&�
��������������������.��
��
.	���
������������������'�
������7:�����'����
�>?7?,�
�

�
7�� ��.�	
��/�'�
������&���
!�
�	��������������������(���

�6&�
���������&	
�����������
��
��������C�
�

>�� ��	����&	
������6&�
�����(�����/�'�
�������������	&�
�
��������	
���
����	
�����������	���������������
	����	����
&
�'�����C�

�
D�� ��	��&
��
�����	��������	����������7?47?�����	�����	����

	�
������C�
�
E�� ��	���	'��������������
�����(����.����������&������	������(�

����*��
���
��
!����	�
����$�
'�
�C�
�
<�� ��	���	�����������	((�
���(������.��
���(������	
��	�����&	�
�

��
'�
��(
���	���
	����
'�
�����������

����
���
���	
��	���
��&	�
�����
!C�

�
B�� ��	��
�
����	
������	�����������
�	#�������	
#�����	����

���8�	������C�
�
:�� ��	�����!��
�&��������
��	
������
	����������.��C�

Page 141



� � �

�������������������������������������	
�	
�	
�	
����
���
��	����
��	����
��	����
��	�����
����������

�
�

	
	

����������	
��
	��������	
���	

�
�
9�� ��	��
������������������
���	


����!�
�����������
�	����(�

���
����C�
�
;�� ��	��&�	���	
�����
�����.�
#�.����&	
���
�����&
�'������
�	��

����������
����������6���.��'��������C�
�
7?�� �������������
���
������
����������((�	�!��(������6���������������

���
#C�
�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�:	 �
�	���� ��!�	/�����	 ��	/�1�!�2�	'����	��$!���#���	���	

/����
	��	!�$!���	��	���=��	�
�	A1���!���	����!���	!�	�
�	
8���#���	���$�	=
��	���!$��!�2	
!�	���1��	,�8���	
�� ���	�
�	"�##!����?	���	

	

:	 �
�	��8���	��	�����&	

	
�
%&	 *�)(��	�",����.		

�
"����
��
�
��'���	�&
�����	����������������
��1��(��	�
�	��&��������
(����.�����������&
������'��$&���������'��.,�����&
�����	�����
��
����������
	��'��!�	
����!�	
��
	���
���
�����(���
���������
>?7EF7<,�*��.	��
�

����!�&
���
������	���������	���
	���
���
������&�
���	�����
�������>?7EF7<�.��������@7,E���6
���������(�	������
	�����������.	����
��������	������(���
���.�
������
	��'�,�����/
	���
�����������	�����
������.���������	������>�����
����
�>?7?,��
�
����&
�����	�������(�
����"����
���(�+((�
�
��
�

����(��	�
�	��
	����&������(�
�>?77F7>����
�������	�&	!�(
��=��(�
�	����	�	
�����'�
�
@>7#,�*��.	������������	��-���5'	��	�����.�������	�����	���
���&�
�

������

�	����������	���	��&	!�����,�+((�
�
��	

������&	
�������
.��������
������������
������
���.�(����	���
�	
�������������

	��������
��&���	���(�
�	���6&�
������
���&�
�
����
�������
��(�	����,���������
����	��������.�
#�.����������������
�'��.�(����
	���
�	
������'�����!���
	��	����
������	

������

����
���
�,������
.������((�
�	�����	��(�.��
��(����	���
�	
����
��������
	��������
�����.������������
������
	��	����
�����������

�	���
�'����,�
� �
+((�
�
���6&�	�������.���������
��1���
����@D7���&����(�
�>?7?F77�
�	�������	���
	�������������&	
������,�"����
��.�����
�
��'��
��
��
��&
������'����(�
�	������������(���
���	�������������
�

����!�.�
#���&����>>�����'����
�>?7?,��
�
��
�

����(��	�
�	������	
!�(�
�>?77F7>�.	��&
�'����,������
��
������	�
�

������������	&��(�@7,7<<�,�+((�
�
���	������
�	#���

Page 142



� � �

�������������������������������������	
�	
�	
�	
����
���
��	����
��	����
��	����
��	�����
����������

�
�

	
	

����������	
��
	��������	
���	

�
	�
�'��.��(�
�

�����6&������
��������&���
�'�
�.�	��
����
��������
�	���.��
��.����������	'��	����
�����	����&	
�������	((����	���
������
	��
�������!,���
�
�������
��(�&������	���	'����������������
�����������	�������
������(���,���������
�������	'������	�����
�������	
�����
'�
���
.�����
����
�'������
�
������
��,�+((�
�
��.�
��
������
����.��
��
������&������	������(���	
�����
'�
���
�	�����
��������
	

���
	�������	


���(	���
��	'������	���������������������
��
���	
��!���'��'����	((����
�	����,�$����
�"	�	���������	��
.	���������
�	#��	����
������������
�'��.��������.��
��(�
���
�
�	'�����
���������	��,��
�
+((�
�
��.�����	����.�
#�.��������
�
�����
&	
���	�����������!�
����
����������
����	�����!�����(�������	�'	�
���(�&�	�����
�������
�����!���
'�
��,�"����	�����	
�����.���������������'���&������
��������������((�
���������������
��
�������!,�
�
+((�
�
��
�8���������	��"����
���������	�!�8���������
��	
�����
������������
�
�8������(�
�(�
���
���(�
�	�����	��	���(������������
$

����!���
#���&����>>�����'����
�>?7?������	����+((�
�
�����

���	���	���&
�'����������
���	
!���(�
�	��������	�'	�
�,�
�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�
�	��8���	��	�����&	
�

�
+&	 "/�,(��(	��'�".	5	������,��(	,���,�		
�
"����
��
�
��'���	�������
����
�&�
������������������&	
���(�����
��	
���������
!�	����
�
���
���&
���
����!�����3����	�����	
����
�	�#�	���3������/
��&����>??9�������������
��1��(����	���
�	
����
��������&
�
���,�
�
3����.�����������
���
������(�������	
���������
!�	����
�
���
������
(����	���
�	
������'�����!���������
���(�
�&	
��
��	
���
'�
����	��
�����
�'��.����!�����56�
���'��3����	�����	
����$��%
���������,������$��%�����������	��&
���
���	�3����	���
��	
����
�&�
��(�
�>??;F7?�&
�&�����������(�
	���
�	��������

�	
�����	

	����������&	
��
��	
�!�(�
�2����
��$�
'�
��,��
3�
���
��
���
�	
�����	����������
���
���(�
�	������
��(�
��
'�
����.��
���	�������
�&
�'�����!������(
���	������&������(�
����'�
!��
�.�
����.���
'�
��,����������
����	��	����
�
����!�
��	
�������.�
#�.����������������
��&	
������(����	���
�	
������'����
�!���������
���.��������(����
�	
����(�
������	
���
'�
�������'�
���
�!�����
���
	��	����
�����,���
�

Page 143



� � �

�������������������������������������	
�	
�	
�	
����
���
��	����
��	����
��	����
��	�����
����������

�
�

	
	

����������	
��
	��������	
���	

�
����(����	���
�	
������	��.�
����'����(�
����������(�����(�������
������.�
�����
���������(�
���
����	��,��"����
����������	������
(��������������	&&�	
����������	#����	������	���������������	������
����
�����������������
����	�����
��.	��
��&�����'��&
�
����(�
�
��
'�
���	���'	����(�
�����!�����	�	��������(������8��&�����
&
�'�������������!��,�
�
"����
��8����������.�����
����.	��&�����������	

�
	���!�	������
�����&�
	�����
�����(�
�����(�������������,��+((�
�
��	�'�������	�������
.����������((�
�������	�����,����������
������������	'��	

�����������
��'����(����	���	�����&�����
	�����8��&�������	��.��������
�8��
���
���	

�
	���!�����
�����.�����
�����(��������������.�
���&�
	�����	��
	�(��	�
�	������������������
��,�
�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�
�	��8���	��	�����&	
	

�
�&	 �,�����(	��)����		
�
"����
��&
�'�����(����	
#�����������
�����(��.���
	�������'�����
��	���	���	#���&�	
�����+
����
�>?7?,�
�
	�� ����3���
���(�+'�
'��.�	���$

����!����(�
��
��G�����
����
�

�
���	� �����!�
�

����
����
� �����!�
�&�
������	�������	��	������������3���
��
�(�+'�
'��.�	���$

����!����(�
��
����
�	�������!���������
��
(�
������
�$

����!���(�$������<���+
����
,�����
�8������������
�	��&
���
���	�.
������
�&�
��	���������
��(�
��
���	�
�&!��(�
.��
���	�������&
�'�����(�
�����
������
	������(�������	�
��(�
�������������,�
�
�������
��(��&�	#�
���	��	������������
��(�
��
��	����	��
�������'��������������������&������	����&	
���(�����'	
�����

�	�������	���	�������&
�&������!�����
�	���������'�
������
���+'�
'��.�	���$

����!�	�����
	��	

����	�����!,����.�'�
��
�	�!��(��������&�	#�
���	���������	�������
��������������
����������!��	���������'�����������
������
	��������
��&��
	�������	��!���������&
�&�
�!�	��������	���
�	
�(���,���

�
��� $

����!�$#�������
#���&�G�����
����
������
���������	��	���

$��
��
�
�
"����
��
�&�
������	������$

����!�$#�����.�
#���&��.��
��
.	����������!���

����
���
��
����!�����
�����	���	#���&�	
��
���<���+
����
,�������
	�������	�����������'�
����!�	��

Page 144



� � �

�������������������������������������	
�	
�	
�	
����
���
��	����
��	����
��	����
��	�����
����������

�
�

	
	

����������	
��
	��������	
���	

�
�6��
�	���
�	���	�����.��
���	�����������
	
��'��	
�����
��
���8���,�������
	�������	��
�'�
�����	��	
��	�&�
����(�
�

����!,�

�
��������������	�
������	�����!������������������
��'�����
��	�����
����

����!�
��	����"����
���'���&�����	
��'�����,���
	������.	��
�(��������'�
���	��������.���	���	���"����
��
��	
#�����	�������
�(����
�&
���������
�	��
�'	����(�
�����!���	��	�����	�
��	��
�6��
�	���
	������'�����,��"����
��������������	���
	������
�����

������������������'�
����!��6��
�	��
������	�����.��
��	&&
�&
�	����
	��������.���	������������
	������
�����	�����������'�
���
��	��'��!�

��	&�!��!�����+'�
'��.�	���$

����!�$�&&�
����	((�.��
��
�8��
��,�
�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�
�	��8����	��	�����&	
	

�
3&	 ,�-�,,�'�		
�
���
��.�
�����
�(�

	��,�
�

�
4&	 ��,6	�,�(,����		
�
,���'0�)	�
��	
	
�
�	"�##!����B�	���;	���2��##�	��	�����&	
�
�
�
�
�

����"�������
�����
���	��B,E?�&��
	���
������	��9,>?�&��

Page 145



Page 146



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

 

ADVISORY PANELS, WORKING GROUPS, ETC -  UPDATE REPORT  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Michael Braley, Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Management 
Relevant Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 

and Democratic Services 
Non-Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
 To provide, for monitoring / management purposes, an update on the work 

of the Executive Committee’s Advisory Panels, and similar bodies which 
report via the Executive Committee. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
subject to Members’ comments, the report be noted. 
 

3. UPDATES 
 

A. ADVISORY PANELS 
 

 Meeting : Lead Members / 
Officers :   
 
(Executive Members 
shown underlined) 

Position : 

(Oral updates to  be 
provided at the meeting by 
Lead Members or Officers, 
if no written update is 
available.) 

1.  Climate Change 
Advisory Panel 
(formerly 
Environment 
Advisory Panel 

Chair: Cllr B Clayton / 

Vice-Chair: Cllr 
Anderson 
 
Guy Revans. 

Next meeting –  

8th February 2011. 

 

2.  Economic Advisory 
Panel 

Chair: Cllr Pearce  / 
Vice-Chair: Cllr Braley 

John Staniland / 
Georgina Harris 

Next meeting –  

6th December 2010. 

 

Agenda Item 17Page 147



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

 

3.  Housing Advisory 
Panel 

 

Chair Cllr B Clayton /  
Vice-Chair 
Cllr Quinney 

Liz Tompkin 

Last meeting – 
25th November 2010. 
 
 

4.  Leisure Contracts 
Advisory Panel   
 

 

Chair Cllr Hopkins / 
Vice-Chair 
Cllr Anderson 

Kevin Cook 

Last meeting – 16th August 
2010. 

 

 

5.  Planning Advisory 
Panel 

 

Chair Cllr  Pearce / 

Vice-Chair Cllr M Chalk 

John Staniland /  
Ruth Bamford 

Last meeting –  

24th November 2010. 

 

 
B. OTHER MEETINGS 
 

6.  Constitutional 
Review Working 
Party 

Chair Cllr Gandy /  
Vice Chair  
Cllr Braley 

Steve Skinner 

 

Last meeting – 
1st December 2010. 

7.  Grants Panel 

 

Chair / To be appointed 
at first meeting 
Vice Chair  
Cllr Braley  

Angie Heighway 

Next meeting – Being 
arranged at present. 
 

 

8.  Member 
Development 
Steering Group 

 

Chair Brunner  / Vice-
Chair Cllr Braley 

Steve Skinner / Trish 
Buckley 

Last meeting –  

24th November 2010 

 

9.  Procurement 
Steering Group 

Chair Cllr Braley / Vice-
Chair Cllr Hall 

Sue Hanley 

Last meeting – 18th 
January 2010. 

 

Page 148



 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  2nd December 2010 

 

 

 

10.  Church Hill District 
Centre – Members’ 
Panel 

Chair Cllr B Clayton  

Jim Prendergrast 

Last meeting - 24th August 
2010 

 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 None. 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:   Ivor Westmore  
E Mail:  ivor.westmore@redditchbc.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 64252 (Extn. 3269) 

Page 149



Page 150



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   10th November 2010 

 

 

ACTION MONITORING 
 
Portfolio 
Holder(s) /         
Responsible 
 Officer  

Action requested Status 

13th January 
2009 

  

 
 
Cllr Gandy / 
Executive 
Committee 

Third Sector Task and Finish Group 
 
The Executive to consider the further work 
to be undertaken (detailed in 
recommendation 5) and come back with 
suggestions for further work in due course. 
 

 
 
Awaiting further 
consideration by 
relevant 
Members. 

27th January 
2010 

  

Cllr Gandy / 
A Heighway 

Single Equalities Scheme 
 
Members requested that a report/action 
plan be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Committee or Council detailing what the 
Council, as Community Leader, expected 
to receive in terms of education provision 
for the Borough and its children and young 
people. 
 

 

16th June 
2010 

  

M Braley / T 
Kristunas 

Quarterly Budget Monitoring – Quarter 4 
 
Officers undertook to provide: 
 
1. Councillor Chance with additional 

information regarding Item 8 Debit; 
and 
 

2. all members of the Executive 
Committee a breakdown of amounts 
held in specific reserves from public 
donations. 

 
 

 
 
Information 
provided as 
requested. 

Agenda Item 18Page 151



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   10th November 2010 

 

 

Portfolio 
Holder(s) /         
Responsible 
 Officer  

Action requested Status 

M Braley / 
H Bennett / 
J Godwin / 
T Kristunas 

Quarterly Performance Monitoring – 
Quarter 4 
 
Officers undertook to provide: 
 
Councillor Chance with additional 
information on the percentage of Council 
Tax collected by the Authority in the year 
(BV009) and One Stop Shop: customer 
satisfaction (WMO 003) 

 
 
 
Response 
provided in 
respect of BV009. 

8th 
September 
2010 

  

M Braley 
L Tompkin / T 
Kristunas 

Irrecoverable Debts 
 
Officers undertook to respond to Councillor 
Braley as to whether the damage inflicted 
upon void properties constituted criminal 
damage. 
 

 

10th 
November 
2010 

  

M Braley / 
Jayne 
Pickering 

Sickness / Absence / Vacancy Reports 
 
Officers to re-instate reports to Executive 
Committee on sickness, absence and 
vacancies. 
 

 
 
 

Note: No further debate should be held on the above 
matters or substantive decisions taken, without 
further report OR unless urgency requirements are 
met. 

Report period: 
13/01/09 to 10/11/10 

 

Page 152


	Agenda
	6 New Cemetery - Site and Funding
	Redditch Crematorium - B98 8PX Brooklands Lane

	7 Tenant Involvement Agreement
	Tenant Involvement Agreement-Appendix 1

	8 Voluntary and Community Sector Grants Policy
	Voluntary and Community Sector Grants Policy -Appendix 1
	Voluntary and Community Sector Grants Policy -Appendix 2

	9 Quarterly Budget Monitoring - Quarter 2 - July to September 2010
	Item 9 - Quarterly Budget Monitoring April - Sept - Appendix 1
	Item 9 - Quarterley Budget Monitoring April - September - Appendix 2
	Item 9 - Quarterley Budget Monitoring April - September Quarter - Appendix 3
	Item 9 - Quarterley Budgt Monitoring April - -sept - Appendix 4

	10 Quarterly Performance Monitoring - Quarter 2 - July to September 2010
	Quarter 2, 201011 Corporate Performance Report  Q2 CPR 271010

	11 Quarterly Monitoring of the Benefits Service Improvement Plan - Quarter 2 - July to September 2010
	Benefit Improvement - Appendix 1

	12 Quarterly Monitoring of Formal Complaints and Compliments - Quarter 2 - June to September 2010
	Quarterly Monitoring of Complaints 2010-11 (Qtr 2 July Sept) - Appendix 1(FINAL)
	Quarterly Monitoring of Complaints 2010-11 (Qtr 2 July - Sept) Appendix 2(June-Sept qtr 2) Appendix 2(FINAL)
	Quarterly Monitoring of Complaints 2010-11 (Qtr 2 July - Sept) Appendix 3 (FINAL)
	Quarterly Monitoring of Complaints 2010-11 (Qtr July - Spet) Appendix 4(FINAL)

	13 Disposal of Land â•ﬁ â•œTear Dropâ•š adj. A441 Alvechurch Highway
	Abbey Stadium  - Disposal of Land - Appendix 1
	Abbey Stadium - Disposal of Land - Appendix 2

	14 Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	17 Advisory Panels - update report
	18 Action Monitoring

